
 

 

 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor Craffu 

Cymunedau 
Dyddiad: 

 
30 Awst 2019 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712554 

 ebost: democrataidd@sirddinbych.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, DYDD IAU, 5 
MEDI 2019 am 10.00 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RUTHUN. 
 

 
SYLWER BOD CYFARFOD BRIFFIO AR GYFER POB AELOD O’R  

PWYLLGOR AM 9.15 A.M. YN SYTH CYN Y CYFARFOD 
YN YSTAFELL GYNADLEDDA 1A 

 

 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, AD a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD I FOD YN BRESENNOL YN Y 
RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  (Tudalennau 5 - 6) 

 Dylai’r Aelodau ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu gysylltiad sy'n 
rhagfarnu mewn unrhyw fater a nodwyd i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 

 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 
 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

4 COFNODION  (Tudalennau 7 - 18) 

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau a gynhaliwyd ar 4 
Gorffennaf 2019 (copi wedi’i atodi). 
 

10.05am – 10.10am 
 

 

5 TÂN MYNYDD LLANTYSILIO, HAF 2018  (Tudalennau 19 - 88) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cydlynydd Craffu (copi wedi’i atodi) sydd yn 
cyflwyno adroddiad drafft y Pwyllgor i’w gymeradwyo, yn dilyn adolygiad o’r 
tân ar Fynydd Llantysilio yn ystod haf 2018, a’i effaith ar yr ardal.  Mae'r 
adroddiad hefyd yn gofyn i'r Pwyllgor gychwyn cynnal trafodaethau gyda 
sefydliadau partner a budd-ddeiliaid er mwyn symud ymlaen gyda’r bwriad o 
leihau’r perygl bod digwyddiadau tebyg yn digwydd yn y dyfodol.  
 

10.10am – 11.45am 
 

EGWYL 11.45am - 12pm 
 
6 RHAGLEN WAITH ARCHWILIO  (Tudalennau 89 - 114) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cydlynydd Craffu (copi wedi’i atodi) yn gofyn am 
adolygiad o raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y pwyllgor ac yn diweddaru aelodau ar 
faterion perthnasol. 
 

12pm – 12.20pm 
 

7 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR Y PWYLLGOR   

 Derbyn unrhyw ddiweddariadau gan gynrychiolwyr y Pwyllgor ar Fyrddau a 
Grwpiau amrywiol y Cyngor. 
 

12.20pm – 12.30pm 
 

 
 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Y Cynghorydd Huw Williams 
(Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd Graham Timms (Is-
Gadeirydd) 

Mabon ap Gwynfor 
Brian Blakeley 
Rachel Flynn 
Tina Jones 
Merfyn Parry 
 

Anton Sampson 
Glenn Swingler 
Andrew Thomas 
Cheryl Williams 
 



 

 
 
 
 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 
(*dileuer un) 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais 
ar gyfer caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y 
cwmni sydd wedi gwneud cais am gymorth ariannol'.  

Tudalen 5

Eitem Agenda 2



 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Tudalen 6



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell Bwllgor 1A, 
Neuadd Y Sir, Ruthun, Dydd Iau, 4 Gorffennaf 2019 am 10.00 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Brian Blakeley, Mabon ap Gwynfor, Tina Jones, Anton Sampson, Glenn 
Swingler, Andrew Thomas, Graham Timms, Cheryl Williams a Huw Williams (Cadeirydd) 
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd Mark Young, Aelod Cabinet Arweiniol Cynllunio, Gwarchod Y 
Cyhoedd a Chymunedau Mwy Diogel yn bresennol ar gyfer eitemau rhif 6,7 ac 8 ar y 
rhaglen ac roedd y Cynghorydd Brian Jones, Aelod Cabinet Arweiniol Gwastraff, Cludiant 
a’r Amgylchedd yn bresennol ar gyfer eitem rhif 9 ar y rhaglen.  
 
Arsylwyr - Y Cynghorwyr Rhys Thomas, Arwel Roberts ac Emrys Wynne 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Economi a’r Parth Cyhoeddus (GB), Pennaeth Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (EJ), Rheolwr Rheoli Datblygu (PM), Swyddog Cynllunio (AT), 
Rheolwr Traffig, Parcio a Diogelwch ar y Ffyrdd (MJ), Cydlynydd Craffu (RE) a 
Gweinyddwr Pwyllgorau (KEJ).  
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Y Cynghorydd Merfyn Parry 
 

2 PENODI IS-GADEIRYDD  
 
Gofynnwyd am enwebiadau ar gyfer swydd Is-Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor ar gyfer 
2019/20. 
 
Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd Cheryl Williams  y dylid penodi'r Cynghorydd Graham 
Timms yn Is-Gadeirydd, ac eiliwyd hynny gan y Cynghorydd Brian Blakeley.  Gan 
nad oedd unrhyw enwebiadau eraill ac o'i roi i'r bleidlais - 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid penodi'r Cynghorydd Graham Timms yn Is-gadeirydd y 
Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau ar gyfer blwyddyn y cyngor 2019/20. 
 

3 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  
 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd Huw Williams gysylltiad personol yn eitem rhif 8 ar y 
rhaglen; Rheoli Gwylanod – Adroddiad Diweddaru gan ei fod yn gyfarwyddwr ar 
gwmni rheoli plâu.  
 

4 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw faterion brys. 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Agenda 4



 
5 COFNODION  

 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 9 Mai 2019. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid derbyn a chymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 9 Mai 2019 fel cofnod cywir. 
 

6 MABWYSIADU SIARTER GYDYMFFURFIO Â CHYNLLUNIO  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Chymunedau 
Mwy Diogel adroddiad y Rheolwr Datblygu (Cynllunio a Gwarchod Y Cyhoedd) (a 
ddosbarthwyd eisoes), a oedd yn amlinellu sut yr oedd y Cyngor yn ymdrin ac yn 
gweithio i ddatrys achosion honedig o dorri amodau rheoli cynllunio. Roedd yr 
adroddiad hefyd yn manylu ar sut y gallai Cynghorau Dinas, Tref a Chymuned, 
cwynion a sefydliadau lleol weithio gyda’r Cyngor i sicrhau cydymffurfedd cynllunio. 
Ynghlwm i’r adroddiad oedd copi o siarter cydymffurfio cynllunio drafft i’r Pwyllgor 
roi'i sylwadau arni. Lluniwyd y Siarter hon ar gais y Pwyllgor yn dilyn trafodaeth ar 
adnoddau cydymffurfedd cynllunio yn ei gyfarfod ym mis Rhagfyr 2018. Darparodd 
Rheolwr Datblygu’r Cyngor (Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd) drosolwg o’r Siarter 
ddrafft yn canolbwyntio ar y broses tri cham a ddatblygwyd o fewn y Siarter, sef -  
 

 ymchwiliad o achosion honedig o dorri amodau rheoli cynllunio 

 asesu’r lefel o fuddsoddiad sydd ei hangen er mwyn ymchwilio i’r achosion 
honedig o dorri amodau rheoli cynllunio; a  

 phenderfynu ar y dull mwyaf addas i unioni unrhyw achos o dorri amodau rheoli 
cynllunio a brofwyd. 

 
Dywedodd wrth yr aelodau fod angen i'r Gwasanaeth gynnwys Cynghorau Dinas, 
Tref a Chymuned yn y broses gydymffurfio gan mai’r Cynghorau oedd y ‘llygaid a’r 
clustiau’ lleol a oedd yn debygol o gael gwybod am achosion honedig o dorri 
amodau rheoli cynllunio yn gyntaf, felly gallai eu cymorth â’r broses hon helpu’r 
Cyngor Sir i flaenoriaethau gwaith cydymffurfio yn fwy effeithiol, yn enwedig o 
ystyried ei adnoddau hynod gyfyngedig yn y maes arbenigol hwn. Pe bai’r 
Cynghorau Dinas, Tref a Chymuned yn fodlon cytuno i'r Siarter byddai’n 
cynorthwyo â rheoli eu disgwyliadau eu hunain a disgwyliadau’r cyhoedd ac mewn 
blynyddoedd i ddod fe allai arwain at Ardaloedd Gwella Busnes yn dod yn rhan o’r 
broses. 
 
Wrth ymateb i gwestiynau'r Aelodau, bu i’r Aelod Arweiniol, Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol: Economi a’r Parth Cyhoeddus, Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd, Rheolwr Datblygu a Swyddog Cynllunio - 
 

 amlinellu’r dull amlweddog tuag at flaenoriaethu’r ymchwiliad i achosion honedig 
o dorri cydymffurfedd cynllunio, yn dibynnu ar y brys a oedd yn gysylltiedig â’r 
honiad, fel y gwelwyd ym mharagraff 2.4 o’r Siarter ddrafft. 

 cydnabod, yn debyg i awdurdodau lleol, bod yr adnoddau ariannol sydd ar gael i 
Gynghorau Dinas, Tref a Chymuned yn gyfyngedig iawn. Prif amcan y Siarter 
fyddai sicrhau cymorth yr haen hon o lywodraeth leol i gynorthwyo’r Cyngor Sir 
â blaenoriaethu ei waith cydymffurfio drwy ymgymryd ag archwiliadau lleol o 

Tudalen 8



faterion cynllunio sy’n digwydd yn eu cymunedau ac i ganfod p'run ai oeddent 
wedi cael y caniatâd gofynnol ai peidio. 

 cadarnhau, er i sawl aelod o staff cymorth a gorfodi’r Gwasanaeth Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd, wrth ymweld ag ardaloedd amrywiol o’r sir i gyflawni eu 
dyletswyddau, roi gwybod i’r Swyddog Cynllunio am unrhyw achos posib o dorri 
amodau cynllunio ac roeddent wedi’u hyfforddi i ymgymryd â gwaith ymchwiliol, 
nid oeddent yn gymwys i ymgymryd â dyletswyddau gorfodi cynllunio mewn 
perthynas ag unrhyw achos o dorri amodau cynllunio gan fod hon yn rôl 
arbenigol. Fodd bynnag, roedd y berthynas waith agos hon rhwng swyddogion 
gorfodi amrywiol o gymorth i’r Swyddog Gorfodi â blaenoriaethu ei waith. 

 cynghori er bod y gwaith cydymffurfio cynllunio ar y cyfan yn dueddol o fod yn 
ymatebol, gwnaed peth gwaith cydymffurfio rhagweithiol pan oedd achosion 
posibl o dorri amodau rheoli cynllunio yn dod i’r amlwg ar y dechrau. 

 dweud eu bod o’r farn y byddai’r ddogfen Siarter hefyd yn ddefnyddiol i 
breswylwyr a busnesau lleol gan ei bod yn amlinellu pa safonau oedd yn 
ddisgwyliedig ganddynt a beth allai’r Cyngor ei wneud petaent yn torri unrhyw 
safon cydymffurfio cynllunio.  

 cadarnhau bod y dull o fynd i’r afael â safleoedd hyll yn wahanol i’r dull o fynd i’r 
afael â diffyg cydymffurfedd ag amodau cynllunio. Roedd mynd i’r afael â’r 
safleoedd hynny yn broses gymhleth a oedd yn gofyn bod swyddogion o 
wasanaethau gwahanol yn gweithio â’i gilydd. Yn ffodus, roedd cyllid wedi’i 
ganfod i gyflogi Swyddog Cynllunio dros dro am gyfnod o ddwy flynedd i 
ganolbwyntio ar ganol tref Y Rhyl fel rhan o’r prosiect i adfywio’r ardal.   Roedd y 
swydd dros dro hon wedi profi’n hynod lwyddiannus yn y 12 mis cyntaf.  Roedd 
y swydd dros dro hon wedi’i hariannu am 12 mis pellach, ond oherwydd y 
manteision sydd wedi dod i’r amlwg ar ôl ei chreu, roedd y swyddogion yn 
ymchwilio i ffrydiau cyllido posibl i ariannu’r swydd yn y dyfodol gyda’r 
posibilrwydd o gylch gwaith y swyddog yn cael ei ymestyn i gynnwys yr ardal 
sirol gyfan.  

 cydnabod pryderon yr aelodau ynglŷn â dogfen y Siarter pe bai’n cael ei 
mabwysiadu. Gan ei bod yn ddogfen i’r cyhoedd ac ar gael i bawb ei darllen, 
mae’n bosib y gallai hyn annog rhai preswylwyr i ddiystyru amodau cynllunio yn 
enwedig pe baent yn sylweddoli nad oedd diffyg cydymffurfedd o’r fath yn 
debygol o gael ei drin fel blaenoriaeth ar gyfer camau gorfodi.   Er hynny, roedd 
yr Aelod Arweiniol a’r swyddogion yn hyderus y byddai mabwysiadu’r Siarter a’i 
hargaeledd i’r cyhoedd o gymorth i reoli disgwyliadau preswylwyr mewn 
perthynas â materion diffyg cydymffurfio. Roedd yn bwysig cofio bod pob 
deddfwriaeth gynllunio yn nodi bod gorfodaeth yn ôl disgresiwn, ac yn caniatáu 
amser i droseddwyr unioni achosion o ddiffyg cydymffurfio yn cynnwys gwneud 
cais am ganiatâd cynllunio ôl-weithredol os oedd angen.    

 cynghori na ddylai swyddog gorfodi wastraffu ei amser yn datrys anghydfodau 
rhwng cymdogion.  

 cadarnhau bod y Swyddog Cynllunio yn blaenoriaethu ei waith ar sail brys ac 
oherwydd nifer yr ymholiadau / cwynion a oedd yn eu derbyn roedd y rhestr o 
flaenoriaethau yn newid yn rheolaidd.  

 roedd bob amser yn ddefnyddiol i’r Swyddog Cynllunio dderbyn gymaint o 
wybodaeth â phosibl, yn cynnwys tystiolaeth ffotograffig, pan oedd ymholiadau / 
cwynion yn cael eu gwneud roedd hyn yn helpu â’r broses flaenoriaethu.  Er 
hynny, byddai’n anodd iawn i gynnwys rhestr bendant yn y Siarter o’r math o 

Tudalen 9



wybodaeth neu’r dystiolaeth oedd ei hangen gan yr oedd pob achos yn 
wahanol. 

 hysbysu bod y fframwaith monitro arfaethedig ar gyfer cydymffurfedd mantais 
gymunedol o gytundebau Adran 106 yn gwbl wahanol i’r broses ar gyfer monitro 
cydymffurfedd cynllunio safle busnes neu breswyl unigol.  Byddai dwy swydd yn 
cael eu creu yn y Ganolfan Budd Cymunedol gyda’r bwriad o gefnogi 
cymunedau i gael mynediad at gronfeydd mantais gymunedol, megis cyllid 
Adran 106 ac ati, i helpu i gyflawni blaenoriaethau corfforaethol Yr Amgylchedd 
a Chymunedau Cryf y Cyngor, a  

 phwysleisio mai’r cysyniad o gael Siarter Cydymffurfio Cynllunio gyda’r 
Cynghorau Dinas, Tref a Chymuned oedd i leihau’r risg o dorri rheolau cynllunio 
yn y lle cyntaf, gan fod y sefydliadau hyn wedi’u lleoli o fewn y gymuned a 
byddent yn cael eu hysbysu o unrhyw achos o ddiffyg cydymffurfio yn gynnar.  
Nid oedd disgwyl i Gynghorau Dinas, Tref a Chymuned fod yn arbenigwyr ym 
maes cynllunio ond byddent yn gallu cysylltu â swyddogion y sir am gyngor a 
chyfarwyddyd.  Gallai Swyddogion o’r Gwasanaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y 
Cyhoedd fynychu eu cyfarfodydd i ddarparu hyfforddiant a’u briffio ar faterion 
cydymffurfedd cynllunio yn ôl y galw.  

 
Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd, yn dilyn yr ymgynghoriad gyda Chynghorau Dinas, Tref a 
Chymuned ar y Siarter, bod yr adroddiad, a fydd yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor, yn 
cynnwys gwybodaeth ar yr ymatebion i’r ymgynghoriad, adnoddau staffio, 
amserlenni cyfathrebu gyda’r cyhoedd a nifer y cwynion a dderbyniwyd gan y 
Gwasanaeth mewn perthynas â thorri rheolau cynllunio. Ar ddiwedd y  drafodaeth -  
 
PENDERFYNWYD yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod -  

 
 (a)  cefnogi’r Siarter fel y'i drafftiwyd;  
 
 (b) gofyn bod y Siarter ddrafft yn cael ei chyflwyno i’r Cynghorau Dinas, Tref a 

Chymuned ar gyfer ymgynghori a chynnig sylwadau, a  
 
 (c) bod y Siarter ddiwygiedig, yn dilyn y broses ymgynghori, yn cael ei chyflwyno 

i’r Pwyllgor ei chefnogi ac argymell ei mabwysiadu ym mis Rhagfyr 2019 
ynghyd â’r wybodaeth ychwanegol a geisiwyd.  

 
7 ADOLYGU A DIWEDDARIAD AR Y PROSIECT RHEOLEIDDIO CARAFANAU 

GWYLIAU  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Chymunedau 
Mwy Diogel adroddiad y Rheolwr Datblygu (Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd) (a 
ddosbarthwyd eisoes) i roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r aelodau ar gynnydd y 
gweithgareddau rheoleiddiol, ac archwilio a oedd y dull a gytunwyd gan y Pwyllgor 
yn 2017 i reoleiddio parciau gwyliau ar sail ‘busnes fel arfer’ yn cael yr effeithiau 
dymunol. Yn ystod ei gyflwyniad dywedodd y Rheolwr Datblygu (Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd) wrth y Pwyllgor bod yr adroddiadau cynnydd mewn 
perthynas â’r prosiect hwn wedi cael eu cyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor Craffu ar sawl 
achlysur dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf gan fod aelodau eisiau sicrwydd nad oedd 
unigolion yn defnyddio carafannau mewn parciau gwyliau fel eu preswylfeydd 

Tudalen 10



parhaol ac o ganlyniad yn osgoi talu Treth y Cyngor ac yn cael mynediad at 
wasanaethau’r Cyngor.  
 
Rhoddodd drosolwg o’r broses a ddilynwyd i gyflawni’r prosiect i'r hyn a oedd nawr 
yn cael ei hystyried yn safon foddhaol lle’r oedd modd rheoleiddio parciau gwyliau 
ar sail ‘busnes fel arfer’. Roedd y cam cyntaf wedi cynnwys mynd drwy holl 
gronfeydd data gwasanaethau’r Cyngor i nodi unigolion a oedd yn cael mynediad at 
wasanaethau’r Cyngor yn defnyddio cyfeiriadau parciau gwyliau.  Ar ôl nodi 
achosion posibl o dorri amodau cynllunio a / neu drwyddedu ar safleoedd gwyliau, 
bu i’r swyddogion weithio gyda gweithredwyr y parc gyda’r bwriad o unioni unrhyw 
achos o dorri amodau, ac ar yr un pryd, sicrhau bod preswylwyr diamddiffyn yn cael 
eu diogelu ac nad oeddent yn cael eu gwneud yn ddigartref. Cam olaf y prosiect 
oedd ymgymryd â chamau gorfodi yn erbyn y gweithredwyr hynny a oedd yn 
anfodlon cydweithredu, neu gydymffurfio, er gwaetha’r ffaith eu bod wedi cael y 
cyfle i wneud hynny. Roedd enghreifftiau o’r mathau o gamau gorfodi a 
ymgymerwyd â nhw wedi’u hamlinellu yn Atodiad 2 (cyfrinachol) i’r adroddiad. 
Sicrhaodd y Rheolwr Datblygu yr aelodau mai’r amcan o hyn allan fyddai monitro 
gweithgareddau parciau gwyliau’n rheolaidd drwy ymgysylltu’n rheolaidd â’r 
gweithredwyr a monitro mynediad at wasanaethau’r Cyngor o barciau gwyliau.  
Byddai camau gorfodi yn cael eu cymryd pan fo’r holl ddulliau eraill wedi methu. 
 
Wrth ymateb i gwestiynau aelodau, bu i’r Aelod Arweiniol, y Rheolwr Datblygu a’r 
Swyddog Cynllunio -  
 

 hysbysu y gellid cymryd camau gorfodi yn unol â rheoliadau cynllunio a/neu 
drwyddedu. Fodd bynnag, mewn achos o ddiffyg cydymffurfedd cyson, roedd 
gan ddeddfwriaeth drwyddedu fwy o ddarpariaethau i’w defnyddio i sicrhau 
ataliad gan fod diffyg cydymffurfedd â deddfwriaeth drwyddedu yn golygu cosb 
ariannol neu gellid dirymu trwydded y gweithredwr a fyddai’n arwain at y 
gweithredwr yn colli’i fywoliaeth. Yn debyg i’r gwaith gorfodi cynllunio, roedd 
adnoddau’n gyfyngedig iawn yn y maes hwn ond pe bai'r holl gamau gweithredu 
eraill yn methu byddai’r uchod yn cael ei ddefnyddio.  

 cadarnhau nad oedd gan y Gwasanaeth unrhyw dystiolaeth o garafannau, 
cabanau, neu chalets wedi’u lleoli mewn ardaloedd o goetir anghysbell e.e. at 
ddibenion preswyl.  

 hysbysu mai un o’r prif resymau dros bobl yn byw mewn carafanau gwyliau drwy 
gydol y flwyddyn oedd bod rhai parciau yn cam-werthu ar ran gweithredwyr / 
perchnogion y parciau, a oedd yn hysbysu eu carafanau/ chalets/ cabanau fel 
eiddo preswyl yn hytrach nag eiddo at ddibenion gwyliau.  

 cadarnhau bod swyddogion gorfodi wedi ymweld â’r holl barciau gwyliau yn 
ystod eu ‘cyfnod cau’ i wirio a oedd tystiolaeth eu bod yn cael eu defnyddio at 
ddibenion preswyl. Os oedd cwyn yn cael ei derbyn o ran gweithrediad y parc ar 
unrhyw adeg o’r flwyddyn roedd yn cael ei harchwilio fel mater o drefn.  

 hysbysu y gallai amrywiaeth o swyddogion gorfodi ymweld â rhai o’r parciau 
gwyliau mwy yn ystod y flwyddyn, hynny yw, cynllunio, trwyddedu, y 
Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub.  Os oedd gan un awdurdod gorfodi bryderon am 
agwedd o weithrediad y parc a oedd yn gyfrifoldeb i wasanaeth gorfodi arall, 
byddai’r awdurdod gorfodi hwnnw yn tynnu sylw’r awdurdod perthnasol at 
unrhyw achos posibl.  

Tudalen 11



 amlinellu dull fesul cam y Cyngor tuag at ymdrin ag unrhyw achos o dorri 
amodau, gan ddweud pe bai’r achosion o dorri amodau yn parhau byddai 
proses uwchgyfeirio yn cael ei rhoi ar waith mewn perthynas â chymryd camau 
gorfodi.  

 cadarnhau bod Treth y Cyngor yn cael ei godi ar garafanau preswyl ar 
safleoedd preswyl, fodd bynnag nid oedd y Cyngor yn dymuno cynyddu nifer y 
carafanau preswyl yn y sir ac nid oedd y mwyafrif o weithredwyr parciau 
carafanau yn dymuno gwneud hyn ychwaith gan fod pobl a oedd yn byw mewn 
carafanau preswyl yn dueddol o wario llai yn lleol o gymharu â thwristiaid.  

 tynnu sylw’r aelodau at Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad a oedd yn tynnu sylw at y ffaith 
bod gostyngiad sylweddol wedi’i weld ers dechrau prosiect o ran nifer y bobl a 
oedd yn ceisio mynediad at wasanaethau’r Cyngor o gyfeiriadau ar barciau 
gwyliau, ar wahân i'r Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a oedd wedi nodi cynnydd 
bychan.  Priodolwyd y cynnydd i’r ffaith fod aelodau etholedig eisiau sicrhau bod 
preswylwyr diamddiffyn yn cael eu diogelu ac nad oeddent yn cael gwneud yn 
ddigartref gan y Cyngor, a   

 hysbysu y gallai dinasyddion Prydeinig sydd yn byw dramor ddefnyddio cyfeiriad 
eu carafán at ddibenion Cofrestru Etholiadol i arfer eu hawl i bleidleisio yn y DU, 
waeth os yw’r garafán wedi’i lleoli o fewn parc gwyliau neu ar safle preswyl. 
 

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl gan y Pwyllgor -  
 
PENDERFYNWYD- 

 
 (a)  yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod, cefnogi effeithiolrwydd y dull ‘busnes fel 

arfer’ tuag at reoleiddio defnydd parciau gwyliau yn Sir Ddinbych;  
 
 (b) Cefnogi swyddogion y Cyngor wrth iddynt barhau i ymchwilio i achosion 

anawdurdodedig o feddiannaeth breswyl ar barciau gwyliau, a  
 
 (c) chytuno y gellir parhau gyda rheoliad Parciau Gwyliau a Charafanau yn Sir 

Ddinbych ar sail ‘busnes fel arfer’ heb yr angen am unrhyw gyfeiriad pellach 
i’r pwyllgor Craffu.   

 
Ar y pwynt hwn (11.05 a.m.) cymerodd yr aelodau egwyl am luniaeth. 
 

8 ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU AR REOLI GWYLANOD  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Chymunedau 
Mwy Diogel adroddiad Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod Y Cyhoedd 
(a ddosbarthwyd eisoes) i roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r aelodau ar y cynnydd a 
wnaed yn erbyn y Cynllun Gweithredu Rheoli Gwylanod, yn canolbwyntio ar gamau 
gweithredu penodol a roddwyd ar waith yn Y Rhyl a chynghori ar y camau 
gweithredu arfaethedig i’w rhoi ar waith yn y dyfodol.  
 
Gan ymateb i gwestiynau’r aelodau, bu i'r Aelod Arweiniol a Phennaeth Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd ddweud -  
 

 yn y Rhyl, ffocws y gweithgaredd rheoli gwylanod diweddar oedd storio 
gwastraff a gweithgareddau Strydwedd. Roedd y cynnydd a gyflawnwyd yn y 

Tudalen 12



meysydd hyn o ganlyniad i gydweithio effeithiol rhwng y Gwasanaeth Cynllunio 
a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a’r Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd ac Amgylcheddol, a oedd 
yn gyfrifol am wasanaethau rheoli gwastraff a Strydwedd.  Roedd y 
Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd ac Amgylcheddol wedi llwyddo i drosglwyddo 700 
eiddo ychwanegol yn y Rhyl i finiau gwastraff bwyd o blastig caled, arferai’r tai 
hyn ddefnyddio sachau neu finiau cymunedol mawr a oedd yn denu gwylanod a 
phlâu eraill. Roedd darparu biniau unigol wedi’i gwneud yn anoddach i'r 
gwylanod  fynd at y gwastraff ac o ganlyniad roedd yn lleihau cyfanswm y 
sbwriel yn yr ardal.  Bu i’r Gwasanaeth Strydwedd gyflawni gweithgareddau 
glanhau stryd yng nghanol tref Y Rhyl ac roedd hyn yn cynorthwyo ag edrychiad 
yr ardal ar gyfer preswylwyr, busnesau ac ymwelwyr.  

 roedd y gostyngiad mewn capasiti o fewn y Gwasanaeth Cwsmeriaid, 
Cyfathrebu a Marchnata wedi effeithio rhywfaint ar ddarparu negeseuon i’r 
cyhoedd o ran peidio â bwydo gwylanod ac ati gan yr oedd rhaid i’r Gwasanaeth 
flaenoriaethu ei waith ar sail brys ac argaeledd staff.  Fodd bynnag, roedd 
cyfathrebu’n dda iawn ac nid oedd rhaid bod yn ddwys o ran adnoddau, hynny 
yw, gofyn i bobl  a busnesau osod posteri yn eu ffenestri ac ati, defnyddio’r 
cyfryngau cymdeithasol i gyfleu negeseuon i’r cyhoedd.  

 ni dderbyniwyd pob cwyn mewn perthynas â gwylanod a/neu bobl yn eu bwydo 
drwy system Rheoli Cyswllt Cwsmer y Cyngor, derbyniwyd rhai yn uniongyrchol 
gan y Gwasanaeth ei hun. Os oedd cwyn yn cael ei derbyn, y cam cyntaf oedd 
cyflwyno llythyr rhybuddio (roedd copi ynghlwm wrth Atodiad 3 i’r adroddiad). 
Hyd yma, roedd yr arfer o gyflwyno’r llythyr wedi bod yn ddigonol ac nid oedd 
rhybudd cyfreithiol wedi’i gyflwyno i unrhyw unigolyn am fwydo gwylanod. Ni 
dderbyniwyd cwynion mewn perthynas ag unrhyw un yn bwydo gwylanod mewn 
mannau cyhoeddus.  

 byddai cymryd camau gorfodi yn erbyn unigolion am fwydo gwylanod yn anodd 
iawn ond, pe bai angen, gallai swyddogion gorfodi’r Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd gymryd camau gorfodi yn erbyn troseddwyr cyson. Er 
hynny, hyd yma nid oes wedi bod angen dilyn y trywydd hwn. Bu i’r mwyafrif o 
bobl ymateb yn gadarnhaol i’r posteri a oedd yn cael eu harddangos mewn trefi 
arfordirol yn gofyn yn garedig i bobl “fwydo’r bin gwastraff” ac nid y gwylanod 
(Atodiad 4 i’r adroddiad) ac i’r llythyrau rhybudd a gyflwynwyd.  

 roedd gwylanod yn greaduriaid deallus ac er mwyn goroesi roeddent yn dilyn 
cyflenwadau bwyd, dyna’r rheswm pam ei bod yn ymddangos bod nifer 
gynyddol ohonynt yn nhrefi marchnad mewndirol y sir.   

 roedd mesurau atal megis gosod baneri wedi’u treialu yn yr ardaloedd 
arfordirol.  Roedd hyn yn llwyddiannus i ddechrau nes i’r gwylanod ddod i arfer 
â’r baneri a sylweddoli nad oeddent am eu niweidio. 

 nid oedd y problemau a oedd yn cael eu hachosi gan wylanod yn unigryw i Sir 
Ddinbych, roedd problemau tebyg ar draws Gymru.   Felly, roedd yn siomedig 
iawn nad oedd yr un o’r tri chorff cyhoeddus a gysylltwyd â nhw mewn 
perthynas â’r broblem, yn dilyn trafodaeth y Pwyllgor ar y Cynllun Rheoli 
Gwylanod yn ystod ei gyfarfod ym mis Mawrth 2018, sef Llywodraeth Cymru, 
Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru, wedi 
cydnabod y llythyrau a anfonwyd ar ran y Pwyllgor heb sôn am ymateb iddynt, a  

 lle bo’n bosibl, roedd adeiladau newydd y Cyngor (yn cynnwys ysgolion) yn 
cynnwys mesurau atal gwylanod, hynny yw, ar y toeau, polion lamp ac ati. 
Defnyddiwyd dulliau tebyg pan gynhaliwyd gwaith ailwampio mawr ar eiddo’r 
Cyngor.  

Tudalen 13



 
Pwysleisiodd yr aelodau’r manteision o addysgu plant yn ysgolion y sir am pam na 
ddylent fwydo’r gwylanod a gofynnodd yr aelodau i’r swyddogion holi’r Gwasanaeth 
Addysg a fyddai modd cynnwys yr agwedd hon o gyfrifoldeb cymunedol yn y 
cwricwlwm, yn debyg iawn i’r agwedd a fabwysiadwyd wrth addysgu disgyblion am 
bwysigrwydd peidio â gollwng sbwriel, yn enwedig ymysg disgyblion ysgolion 
cynradd.  Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor bod yr Aelod Arweiniol a’r swyddogion yn 
ysgrifennu at LlC, CNC a CLlLC unwaith eto yn ceisio cefnogaeth a chymorth i 
awdurdodau lleol wrth ymdrin â phroblemau a achosir gan wylanod ac yn nodi eu 
siom na chafodd y llythyrau cyntaf eu cydnabod heb sôn am dderbyn ymateb.  
Ymgymerodd y Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd â gweithredu’r 
pwyntiau hyn a chysylltu â’r Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd ac Amgylcheddol i archwilio 
cyfleoedd posibl i gyflwyno sticeri hyrwyddol, yn seiliedig ar y poster, ar finiau diogel 
ar draws y sir.  
 
Dywedodd yr aelodau y byddai’n fuddiol pe bai’r Cyngor Sir yn gallu gweithio gyda’r 
Cynghorau Dinas, Tref a Chymuned gyda’r nod o gael biniau gwastraff cyhoeddus 
diogel ym mhob cymuned maes o law a hefyd ei gwneud yn orfodol i fusnesau sy’n 
gysylltiedig â bwyd gael cynhwysyddion gwastraff bwyd diogel.  
 
Ar ddiwedd y drafodaeth –  
 
PENDERFYNWYD yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod a darparu’r wybodaeth y 
gofynnwyd amdani - 

 
 (a)  anfon gohebiaeth unwaith eto at Lywodraeth Cymru, Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 

a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru yn ceisio cefnogaeth a chymorth i 
awdurdodau lleol wrth ymdrin â phroblemau yn gysylltiedig â Gwylanod 
oherwydd eu statws rhywogaeth a warchodir; a  

 
 (b) chefnogi’r camau a gymerwyd hyd yma a’r camau sydd wedi’u nodi ar gyfer 

y dyfodol mewn perthynas â Rheoli Gwylanod yn Sir Ddinbych.  
 

9 MEYSYDD PARCIO YN SIR DDINBYCH  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Gwastraff, Cludiant a’r Amgylchedd adroddiad y 
Rheolwr Traffig, Parcio a Diogelwch ar y Ffyrdd (a ddosbarthwyd eisoes) er mwyn 
diweddaru'r aelodau ar y cynnydd a wnaed o safbwynt rhoi'r Cynllun Buddsoddi 
Mewn Meysydd Parcio a mentrau cysylltiedig ar waith. Yn ystod ei gyflwyniad, 
tynnodd sylw’r aelodau at y gwaith a wnaed yn ystod 2018/19, blwyddyn gyntaf y 
cynllun buddsoddi pum mlynedd a’r gwaith a wnaed hyd yma yn 2019/20.  
 
Gan ymateb i gwestiynau’r aelodau, bu i'r Aelod Arweiniol, Pennaeth Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a’r Rheolwr Traffig, Parcio a Diogelwch ar y Ffyrdd -  
 

 ddweud, yn dilyn ail ymarfer tendro dylai’r contract ar gyfer datblygu hen safle 
Swyddfa'r Post yn y Rhyl yn faes parcio arhosiad byr fod yn barod i’w osod yn yr 
hydref 2019.  

 cadarnhau bod y costau'n gysylltiedig â’r gwaith selio rhag dŵr ar loriau'r 
meysydd parcio aml-lawr yn ddiogel rhag chwyddiant. 

Tudalen 14



 cadarnhau fod Cyngor Tref Prestatyn yn rhoi cymhorthdal i feysydd parcio o 
fewn y dref ac felly nid oedd y Cyngor yn derbyn unrhyw refeniw gan y meysydd 
parcio hynny, o ganlyniad roedd gwasanaethau Strydwedd yn cael eu darparu 
yn y safleoedd hyn dan Gytundeb Lefel Gwasanaeth rhwng y Sir a Chyngor 
Tref. Yn y blynyddoedd diwethaf, roedd mathau hyn o Gytundebau Lefel 
Gwasanaeth wedi datblygu’n llawer mwy manwl mewn perthynas â pha 
wasanaethau fyddai’n cael eu darparu am y pris a oedd yn cael ei godi. Roedd 
Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth bellach wedi’u datblygu ar gyfer amwynderau 
cymaradwy ar draws y sir, bu i’r dull hwn gynorthwyo’r Gwasanaeth â monitro’r 
gwaith cynnal a chadw a wnaed yn effeithiol.  

 pwysleisio bod meysydd parcio’r sir yn aml yn byrth ar gyfer ymwelwyr i’r sir a’i 
threfi, felly roedd yn bwysig eu bod yn groesawgar yn esthetaidd oherwydd eu 
potensial i gefnogi a datblygu’r economi leol, dyma’r rheswm dros bwysigrwydd 
cynnal y rhaglen fuddsoddi;  

 hysbysu bod y cynllun datblygu pum mlynedd wedi’i lunio ar sail flaenoriaeth 
gyda’r bwriad o osgoi dirywiad pellach a fyddai’n gofyn am fuddsoddiad 
sylweddol i unioni’r sefyllfa yn y tymor hir. Roedd y prosiectau buddsoddi 
strwythurol mawr wedi’u trefnu ar gyfer blynyddoedd 1 i 4 gyda blwyddyn 5 yn 
canolbwyntio mwy ar y gwaith estheteg llai. Wrth i amser fynd rhagddo byddai 
rhagor o fanylion am y gwaith cynnal a chadw i’w gynnal mewn lleoliadau 
penodol a’r blynyddoedd ariannol y byddai'r gwaith yn cael ei gynnal yn 
ymddangos yn y Cynllun Buddsoddi. Disgwyliwyd yn y pen draw y byddai gwaith 
cynnal a chadw rheolaidd yn ffurfio rhan o gynllunio ariannol ‘busnes fel arfer’ y 
Gwasanaeth ac yn cael ei ariannu o fewn y refeniw yr oedd y Gwasanaeth yn ei 
gynhyrchu.  

 hysbysu mai dim ond oddeutu 33% o feysydd parcio’r sir oedd yn derbyn dulliau 
gwahanol o dalu di-arian ar hyn o bryd, y nod yn y pen draw oedd bod gan yr 
holl feysydd parcio’r cyfleusterau i dderbyn taliadau di-arian ac i fod yn ddi-
bapur drwy system adnabod taliadau digidol.  

 cadarnhau y byddai’r cyfleuster presennol a oedd yn caniatáu talu â ffôn 
symudol yn cael ei ddisodli gan gyfleuster ap ffôn clyfar. 

 cydnabod y byddai darparu arwyddion electronig yn nodi nifer y gofodau parcio 
sydd ar gael yn gyfleuster defnyddiol yn nhrefi twristiaeth y sir, er roedd y rhain 
yn ddrud iawn, felly byddai’n rhaid cynnal astudiaeth ddichonoldeb i 
gyfiawnhau’r buddsoddiad.  

 cadarnhau bod camau gorfodi parcio yn cael eu rhoi ar waith yn ôl yr angen ym 
mhob un o’r 47 maes parcio a weithredir gan Wasanaeth Traffig, Parcio a 
Diogelwch ar y Ffyrdd y Cyngor. Gwasanaeth Cefn Gwlad y Cyngor oedd yn 
gyfrifol am weithredu’r camau gorfodi parcio mewn meysydd parcio gwledig a 
oedd yn cael eu gweithredu gan y sir.  

 cadarnhau bod mynd i gytundeb â busnesau lleol er mwyn galluogi pobl a oedd 
prynu tocynnau parcio i dderbyn gostyngiad gan fusnesau bach neu fawr mewn 
tref neu bentref, hynny yw, drwy daleb adbrynadwy / rhan y gellir ei thorri oddi ar 
y tocyn parcio yn bosibl. Roedd hyrwyddiadau tebyg wedi bod yn y gorffennol.  
Roedd busnesau yn Rhuddlan wedi mynegi diddordeb mewn mynd i gynllun o’r 
fath a disgwyliwyd am gostau mewn perthynas â hwyluso’r cynllun.  Nid oedd 
disgwyl i’r costau fod yn ormodol nac ychwaith yn afresymol, ac 

 fe gadarnhawyd bod y sefyllfa a oedd wedi bod yn weithredol yn Ninbych am 
nifer o flynyddoedd, a oedd yn caniatáu pobl a oedd yn mynychu addoldai ar 
foreau Sul i barcio am ddim yn y meysydd parcio a oedd yn eiddo i’r Cyngor, yn 

Tudalen 15



gwbl unigryw ac roedd yn gytundeb lleol sefydledig. Roedd trafodaethau yn 
mynd rhagddynt ag eglwysi a chapeli lleol gyda’r bwriad o ddatrys y sefyllfa ac 
alinio'r polisi codi tâl ar gyfer y meysydd parcio’r dref a oedd yn eiddo i’r Cyngor 
gyda gweddill y sir lle’r oedd ffioedd yn daladwy rhwng 8am a 5pm ar ddydd Sul.  

 
Ar ddiwedd y drafodaeth –  
 
PENDERFYNODD y Pwyllgor yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod - 

 
 (a)  gefnogi parhad y gwaith a wneir i weithredu’r Cynllun Buddsoddi Mewn 

Meysydd Parcio a’r mentrau parcio eraill a restrir yn yr adroddiad, a  
 
 (b) gofynnodd bod Adroddiad Gwybodaeth yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor mewn 

18 mis i roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r aelodau o ran y cynnydd a wnaed 
mewn perthynas â chyflawni’r Cynllun Buddsoddi / Rheoli Asedau Maes 
Parcio a gweithgareddau cysylltiedig.  

 
10 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU  

 
Cyflwynodd y Cydlynydd Craffu adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd eisoes) yn gofyn i’r 
Aelodau adolygu Rhaglen Waith y Pwyllgor ac yn rhoi diweddariad ar faterion 
perthnasol. 
 
Canolbwyntiodd y drafodaeth ar y canlynol - 
 

 neilltuwyd y cyfarfod nesaf ar 5 Medi i drafod adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar yr 
ymchwiliad a gynhaliwyd i Dân Mynydd Llantysilio – o ganlyniad cytunodd yr 
aelodau y dylid trafod yr eitemau y bwriadwyd eu trafod yng nghyfarfod mis 
Medi yng nghyfarfod mis Hydref.  Cymeradwyodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y 
Cydlynydd Craffu ar yr adroddiad a luniwyd yn dilyn yr ymchwiliad. 

 bod yr holl eitemau eraill ar y rhaglen waith yn cael eu hail-gadarnhau yn 
cynnwys yr ychwanegiad o’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y Siarter Cydymffurfio 
Cynllunio a gytunwyd arni yn gynharach yn y cyfarfod. 

 roedd cylch gorchwyl drafft y Gweithgor Polisi Cludiant i Ddysgwyr wedi’i 
gynnwys yn y briff gwybodaeth (a ddosbarthwyd eisoes) ac fe drafodwyd yr 
enwebiadau ar gyfer y Gweithgor ynghyd â’r amserlen ar gyfer cwblhau’r gwaith 
o ystyried y cyfnod arwain i mewn o 12 mis i weithredu unrhyw newid o fis Medi 
2021.  

 anogwyd aelodau i gyflwyno unrhyw ffurflenni cynnig mewn perthynas â 
phynciau ar gyfer craffu cyn 21 Gorffennaf i’w cyflwyno i gyfarfod nesaf y Grŵp 
Cadeiryddion ac Is-Gadeiryddion Craffu ar 31 Gorffennaf – ychwanegodd y 
Cadeirydd y byddai cynnig i ganiatáu Aelodau i arsylwi cyfarfodydd y Grŵp yn y 
dyfodol yn cael ei drafod. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD – 

 
(a)  yn amodol ar yr uchod, cymeradwyo’r rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol fel ag y mae 

yn Atodiad 1 i’r adroddiad. 
 

Tudalen 16



(b) y dylid penodi’r Cynghorwyr Brian Blakeley, Graham Timms, Cheryl Williams, 
Huw Williams a’r Aelod Cyfetholedig Kathy Jones i fod yn rhan o’r Gweithgor 
Polisi Cludiant i Ddysgwyr; ac, yn amodol ar ei gadarnhad,  y dylid penodi 
Mabon Ap Gwynfor i fod yn rhan o’r Grŵp hwnnw hefyd.  

 
11 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR Y PWYLLGOR  

 
Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd Huw Williams at ganlyniad da'r broses Herio’r 
Gwasanaeth Cyllid  yn ddiweddar ac fe gymeradwyodd y Cyn-Bennaeth Cyllid, 
Richard Weigh, ar ei waith.  
 
Adroddodd y Cynghorydd Brian Blakeley ar Herio’r Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd ac 
Amgylcheddol – roedd rhai o’r pynciau i’w trafod yn cynnwys yn Model Gwastraff 
newydd a’r depo newydd posibl ynghyd â materion eraill y parth cyhoeddus yn 
cynnwys glanhau’r strydoedd a sbwriel.  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau fod y Rhaglen Herio Gwasanaeth bellach wedi’i chwblhau ac fe 
adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol ar y camau i adolygu’r trefniadau herio 
gwasanaeth gyda’r bwriad o addasu a gwella’r broses.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid derbyn a nodi’r adroddiad  au. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 12.37 p.m. 
 
 

Tudalen 17



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:  5 Medi 2019 
 
Swyddog Arweiniol:  Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Cydlynydd Craffu 
 
Testun:    Tân Mynydd Llantysilio, Haf 2018 
 

 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

  
Adolygiad y Pwyllgor o’r tân gwyllt ar Fynydd Llantysilio yn ystod haf 2018. 

 
2.  Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 
  
2.1 Cyflwyno canfyddiadau’r Pwyllgor, ei gasgliadau a’i argymhellion ar sail ei ymchwiliad 

i’r tân ar y mynydd; a  
 
2.2 Hwyluso trafodaethau â sefydliadau sy’n bartneriaid a rhanddeiliaid ynglŷn â’r ffordd 

orau o ymateb i ddigwyddiadau tebyg yn y dyfodol a’u rheoli, a sut i liniaru ar y perygl 
o danau tebyg yn digwydd neu’n ymledu yn y dyfodol.  

  
3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion?  

  
Bod y Pwyllgor yn: 

3.1 derbyn yr adroddiad yn ffurfiol (Atodiad 1) a’i gymeradwyo, ynghyd â’r argymhellion yn 
Adran 10 o’r adroddiad;  

 
3.2 cael trafodaethau â phartneriaid a rhanddeiliaid ynglŷn â’r ffordd ymlaen o ran lleihau’r 

perygl o ddigwyddiadau tebyg yn y dyfodol; a 
 
3.3 derbyn adroddiad ymhen chwe mis ynglŷn â’r cynnydd a wnaed wrth weithredu’r 

argymhellion yn yr adroddiad.  
 
4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

 
4.1 Yn ystod haf poeth 2018 bu tân gwyllt yn llosgi am fwy na deufis ar Fynydd Llantysilio, 

sydd wedi’i ddynodi’n Safle o Ddiddordeb Gwyddonol Arbennig, rhwng mis Gorffennaf 
a mis Medi.  Achosodd y tân gryn ddifrod i’r cynefinoedd ar y mynydd a strwythur y pridd 
arno.  Pan oedd y tân yn ei anterth fe achosodd bryder mawr i drigolion lleol, ac 
anghyfleustra difrifol i fusnesau yn yr ardal.  Yn y tymor canolig a’r hirdymor, gallai 
canlyniadau’r tân amharu ar fusnesau lleol am beth amser. Gallai gael effaith drom 
hefyd ar fywoliaeth ffermwyr, yn enwedig o na fydd preiddiau’n dychwelyd i’w cynefin ar 
y mynydd oherwydd diffyg porfa.  Nid y ffermwyr yn unig sy’n elwa ar y preiddiau hyn, 
gan eu bod hefyd yn allweddol i’r gwaith cadwraeth ar y mynydd ac yn arf werthfawr 
wrth reoli’r rhostir.  Byddai colli’r defaid yn golygu colli treftadaeth y mynydd a’r grefft 

Tudalen 19

Eitem Agenda 5



draddodiadol o reoli’r cynefin hwn, a bydd yn sicr o newid tirlun y mynydd a’r cymunedau 
cyfagos am byth.   

 
4.2 Mewn ymateb i bryderon a gododd trigolion a busnesau lleol ynglŷn â’r modd y rheolwyd 

y tân a’i effaith ar yr ardal, penderfynodd y Pwyllgor gynnal adolygiad o’r tân a’r effeithiau 
tymor byr a hirdymor ar y gymuned, busnesau a’r amgylchedd lleol. 

 
4.3 Bwriad y Pwyllgor wrth gynnal yr adolygiad hwn oedd canfod gwersi i’w dysgu o’r ymateb 

i’r tân a’r modd y’i rheolwyd, gyda’r nod o wella ymatebion amlasiantaethol i 
ddigwyddiadau tebyg yn y dyfodol.  Roedd y Pwyllgor hefyd yn awyddus i wybod a ellid 
gwella arferion rheoli tir er mwyn lliniaru ar y peryglon o danau gwyllt yn cynnau ac yn 
ymledu yn y dyfodol.  Gan fod yno rostir a choedwigoedd helaeth o fewn ffiniau Sir 
Ddinbych, credai’r Pwyllgor ei bod yn werth ymchwilio’n fanwl i’r mater. 

 
4.4 I hwyluso’r adolygiad estynnodd y Pwyllgor wahoddiad i bob sefydliad cyhoeddus a 

phreifat a fu’n ymwneud â’r tân, neu a gafodd eu heffeithio, i gyflwyno tystiolaeth a 
gwybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor.  Gwahoddwyd trigolion lleol hefyd i rannu eu profiadau o’r tân 
a’i ganlyniadau â’r Pwyllgor.   

 
4.5 Roedd hi’n galonogol iawn i’r Pwyllgor fod pob asiantaeth a sefydliad a fu’n ymwneud 

â’r tân a rheolaeth y mynydd wedi ymateb yn gadarnhaol i’r cais am dystiolaeth, ac wedi 
dod i’r ymchwiliad a gynhaliwyd yn Llangollen ar 20 Mawrth 2019 i ateb cwestiynau’r 
Pwyllgor ynglŷn â’r dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd.  Roedd y Pwyllgor yn falch iawn fod 
trigolion a busnesau’r ardal wedi ymwneud yn helaeth â’r ymchwiliad drwy gyflwyno eu 
profiadau personol o’r tân a darparu tystiolaeth ar ffurf ffotograffau a fideos.  Roedd yr 
holl dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd i’r Pwyllgor yn amhrisiadwy wrth gynnal yr adolygiad.   

 
4.6 O’r cychwyn cyntaf fe bwysleisiwyd mai’r amcan wrth adolygu’r tân a’i ganlyniadau oedd 

dysgu gwersi i’r dyfodol drwy feithrin dealltwriaeth o’r hyn a weithiodd yn dda, a pha 
agweddau y gellid eu gwella er mwyn bod yn fwy parod ar gyfer digwyddiadau tebyg yn 
y dyfodol.  Nid oedd bwriad erioed i roi bai ar unrhyw unigolyn, Gwasanaeth, sefydliad 
neu grŵp o ran y tân na’r rheolaeth ohono. 

 
4.7 Mae’r Pwyllgor wedi ystyried yr holl dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd yn fanwl, ynghyd â’r 

atebion a roddwyd yn yr ymchwiliad yn Llangollen fis Mawrth 2019, a’r wybodaeth atodol 
a gyflwynwyd yn dilyn y cyfarfod hwnnw mewn ymateb i gwestiynau na ellid eu hateb ar 
y pryd. Yn awr felly mae’n barod i gyhoeddi ei ganfyddiadau, casgliadau ac 
argymhellion.  Mae adroddiad llawn y Pwyllgor ynghlwm yn Atodiad 1. 

 
4.8 Wrth lunio’r adroddiad hwn mae’r Pwyllgor wedi gwneud pob ymdrech i gofnodi pob 

safbwynt a gyflwynwyd iddo, gan dderbyn y gallai safbwyntiau rhai cyfranwyr wrthdaro 
â rhai eraill o bryd i’w gilydd.  Yn Rhannau 5 a 6 o’r adroddiad pwysleisir fod pob 
paragraff yn cyflwyno barn yr unigolyn, asiantaeth neu sefydliad sydd wedi darparu’r 
dystiolaeth, ac nid o reidrwydd yn adlewyrchu barn y Pwyllgor.   

 
4.9 Mae Rhan 7 o’r adroddiad yn nodi casgliadau Fforwm Gwytnwch Lleol Gogledd Cymru 

ynglŷn â’r hyn a weithiodd yn dda yn ystod ymateb y gwasanaethau a’r asiantaethau i’r 
tân ei hun.  Yn Rhan 8 ceir crynodeb o’r meysydd i’w gwella a nodwyd gan bob 
asiantaeth, sefydliad neu gorff, gan gyfeirio at ymateb i ddigwyddiad tebyg yn y dyfodol 
yn ogystal â rheoli tir. 

Tudalen 20



 
4.10 Cyflwynir casgliadau’r Pwyllgor ei hun yn Rhan 9 o’r adroddiad.  Fe’u rhennir yn ddau 

gategori: 
 

 Rheoli tir:  fe wnaeth diffyg rheolaeth gadarn o’r tir ar y mynydd dros gyfnod estynedig 
o amser gyfrannu at yr hyd o amser y llosgodd y tân a’r dinistr a achosodd.  Felly, 
mae’n hollbwysig cyflwyno rhaglen reolaidd o weithgareddau rheoli tir er mwyn lleihau’r 
risg o danau tebyg yn achosi difrod mawr i’r amgylchedd a’r economi yn y dyfodol. 
 

 Y tân a’r rheolaeth ohono:  mae angen sicrhau llinellau cyfathrebu eglur ac agored 
bob amser rhwng pob asiantaeth sy’n ymateb i ddigwyddiad fel hyn, er mwyn hwyluso 
ymateb cydlynol a darparu gwybodaeth eglur a chywir yn gyson i’r cyhoedd a phawb 
y mae’r digwyddiad yn effeithio arnynt. 

 
4.11 Gwelir argymhellion y Pwyllgor yn sgil ei adolygiad yn Rhan 10 o’r adroddiad.  Mae’r 

argymhelliad cyntaf yn ategu barn Fforwm Gwytnwch Lleol Gogledd Cymru yn dilyn ei 
adolygiad o’r tân ar Fynydd Llantysilio, ac mae a wnelo â pharatoi ar gyfer tanau 
mynydd ac ymateb iddynt.  Mae a wnelo ail argymhelliad y Pwyllgor â chryfhau 
trefniadau gweithio amlasiantaethol wrth ymateb i ddigwyddiadau tebyg, ac elfennau 
y dylid eu cynnwys yn y Cynllun Tanau Gwyllt Rhanbarthol arfaethedig.  Mae’r trydydd 
argymhelliad yn cynnig ffordd ymlaen o ran cydlynu gweithgareddau rheoli tir ar y 
rhostir hwn a rhai eraill, gyda’r nod o leihau’r perygl o danau tebyg yn y dyfodol. Mae’r 
pedwerydd argymhelliad yn gofyn am gefnogaeth Llywodraeth Cymru drwy ei Bolisïau 
Amgylcheddol wrth sicrhau cynaladwyedd economaidd ac amgylcheddol rhostiroedd 
ucheldirol, a gofyn iddo ystyried darparu cymorth ariannol er mwyn hwyluso’r gwaith 
adfer angenrheidiol ar Fynydd Llantysilio. 

 
4.12 Wrth gyhoeddi’r adroddiad hwn dymuna’r Pwyllgor bwysleisio y bydd yno bob amser 

wersi i’w dysgu ar ôl digwyddiad mawr fel hwn, ac er gwaethaf y dinistr a achoswyd ar 
Fynydd Llantysilio a’r anghyfleustra i’r trigolion lleol, ni chollwyd unrhyw fywydau nac 
eiddo o ganlyniad i’r tân.  Dymuna’r Pwyllgor gofnodi ei ddiolch i bawb a weithiodd yn 
ddiflino mewn amgylchiadau anodd iawn er mwyn sicrhau diogelwch a lles y trigolion 
a gwarchod eu heiddo. 

 
5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
  
 Mae blaenoriaeth gorfforaethol y Cyngor ynglŷn â’r Amgylchedd â’r nod o sicrhau fod 

yr ardal yn ddeniadol ac yn cael ei diogelu, nid yn unig er mwyn cefnogi ffyniant 
economaidd, ond hefyd er lles trigolion a chymunedau lleol.  Dymuna’r Cyngor 
gynyddu gwerth bioamrywiaeth y sir drwy ddiogelu rhywogaethau a chynefinoedd 
agored i newid er lles bywyd gwyllt a’r bobl sy’n byw ac yn ymweld â’r ardal.  Byddai 
adfer y cynefin ar Fynydd Llantysilio yn helpu i gyflawni’r flaenoriaeth gorfforaethol hon, 
gan sicrhau y caiff rhostiroedd tebyg eu rheoli’n weithredol ac yn gyson. Byddai dulliau 
rhagweithiol o reoli’r tir hefyd yn lleihau’r perygl o danau gwyllt yn achosi difrod a dinistr 
dros ardaloedd eang, ac yn cefnogi’r ymdrechion i hybu niferoedd grugieir duon, 
gwiberod a rhywogaethau eraill yn y sir. 

 
  

Tudalen 21



6. Faint fydd yn ei gostio a sut fydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
  

Byddai’n rhaid ymchwilio ymhellach i’r costau ar gyfer sefydlu a chynnal swydd 
Swyddog Rheoli Ucheldir/Rhostir, i ganfod a oes unrhyw gyllid allanol ar gael i 
ariannu’r swydd, neu a ellid ei hariannu ar y cyd ag asiantaethau eraill sy’n 
bartneriaid. 

 
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Les?  

 
Nid yw’n ofynnol gwneud Asesiad o Effaith ar Les ar gyfer yr adroddiad hwn, gan mai 
ei ddiben yw cyflwyno argymhellion y Pwyllgor yn sgil ei adolygiad o’r tân a’i 
effeithiau.  
 

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd gyda Chraffu ac eraill? 
 
 Rhannwyd adroddiad drafft y Pwyllgor a’i ganfyddiadau, casgliadau ac argymhellion 

â phob gwasanaeth, asiantaeth a sefydliad a gymerodd ran yn yr adolygiad, er mwyn 
sicrhau cywirdeb.      

 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

 
Er bod yr argymhelliad am swydd Swyddog Rheoli Ucheldir/Rhostir yn cael ei gefnogi 
mewn egwyddor, fel unrhyw swydd ychwanegol, mae’n bwysig bod cyllid yn cael ei 
ganfod cyn y gymeradwyaeth derfynol. Mae angen cyflawni mwy o waith yn y maes 
er mwyn cadarnhau bod cyllid hirdymor wedi cael ei sicrhau. 

 
10. Pa risgiau sydd yna ac oes yna unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w lleihau? 
 

Cynhaliodd y Pwyllgor yr ymchwiliad a’r adolygiad mewn ymateb i bryderon trigolion 
a busnesau yn sgil y tân gwyllt difrifol hwn.  Wedi cynnal yr adolygiad, dod i 
gasgliadau a llunio argymhellion, nod y Pwyllgor yw sicrhau trefniadau gweithio 
amlasiantaethol effeithiol wrth ymateb i ddigwyddiadau mawr ac argyfyngau yn y 
dyfodol, a mynd ati i sicrhau trefniadau gweithio effeithiol rhwng yr holl randdeiliaid er 
mwyn lliniaru ar y peryglon o danau gwyllt yn cynnau ar laswellt ac eithin ac mewn 
mannau eraill, gan achosi dinistr mawr mewn byr o dro.  

 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
  

 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 
 

Mae Adran 7.2.3 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn nodi y gall Craffu ystyried unrhyw fater 
sy’n effeithio ar ardal y Cyngor neu’r trigolion.  

  
Mae Adran 7.4.1(d) o'r Cyfansoddiad yn nodi y gall Craffu feithrin cyswllt â chyrff allanol 
eraill sy'n gweithredu yn yr ardal, boed yn genedlaethol, rhanbarthol neu leol, i sicrhau 
mwy o fudd i’r bobl leol drwy gydweithio. 
 
Mae Adran 7.4.2(e) o’r Cyfansoddiad yn datgan y gall Craffu adolygu a chraffu ar 
berfformiad cyrff cyhoeddus eraill yn yr ardal a gwahodd adroddiadau oddi wrthynt 

Tudalen 22



drwy ofyn iddynt annerch y Pwyllgor Archwilio a phobl leol am eu gweithgareddau a'u 
perfformiad.  
 
 
Swyddog Cyswllt: 
Cydlynydd Craffu 
Ffôn:  01824 712554 

Tudalen 23



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

1 
 

Llantysilio Mountain Fire Summer 2018 
 

 

 

 

Contents         Page(s) 

 

Chair’s Foreword         2 – 3 

Executive Summary         4 

Section 1:  Introduction        5 

Section 2:  Background        5 – 6 

Section 3:  The Review Process       7  

Section 4:  The Fire Incident and its Management    8 

Section 5:  Summary of Evidence relating to Land Management   9 - 17 

Section 6:  Summary of Evidence relating to the Fire Incident   18 - 35 

Section 7:  What Worked Well?       36 

Section 8:  Stakeholders:  Lessons Learnt & Suggestions for Improvement 37 - 42 

Section 9:  Summary and Conclusions of the Scrutiny Committee   43 - 47 

Section 10: Recommendations       48 - 51 

Section 11:  Acknowledgements       52 

Section 12:  Glossary of Terminology      53 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1:  Map of area affected by the fire     55 

Appendix 2:  Timeline of each organisations’ involvement with the fire 57 - 63 

 

  

Tudalen 25



 

2 
 

Foreword  

By Councillor Huw O Williams  

Chair of Denbighshire County Council’s Communities Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

The dry, hot summer of 2018 was a welcome boost to Denbighshire’s economy with 
thousands of visitors attracted to the area to enjoy its scenery, attractions and 
amenities.  Whilst the majority of residents and visitors were enjoying the fine 
summer weather one part of the county was dealt a devastating blow when a wildfire 
ignited on Llantysilio Mountain, near Llangollen.   

Not only is this area popular with tourists and walkers it is also home to a variety of 
wildlife.  Due to the area’s natural habitat it is designated as a Site of Special 
Scientific Interest (SSSI) and forms part of the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).   

The fire on the mountain burnt from mid-July until late August and resulted in 
approximately 250 hectares (617 acres) of the mountain habitat suffering 
catastrophic damage.  Attached at Appendix 1 is a map illustrating the approximate 
area of the mountain affected by the fire.  The extent of the destruction is still visible 
today, some twelve months after the event.  Not only did the fire affect the mountain 
and its ecology, local residents and businesses experienced disruptions to their daily 
lives over an extended period of time due to the restrictions placed upon them while 
the emergency services dealt with the fire.  Furthermore, in the medium to long-term 
the consequences of the fire is likely to have a detrimental effect on the livelihoods of 
those who depend on the mountain and surrounding area for a living, and could 
effectively lead to a centuries old way of life disappearing from this particular part of 
Denbighshire.  

Due to concerns raised by local residents and businesses Denbighshire County 
Council’s Communities Scrutiny Committee decided to conduct an inquiry into the 
incident with a view to establishing what lessons could be learnt in order to reduce 
the risk of further wildfires, and how best to respond to those that do occur. 

The Committee invited public bodies and other organisations involved with, or 
affected by, the fire to submit evidence and contribute to a public meeting in 
Llangollen on 20 March 2019.   

On behalf of the Committee I would like to thank the agencies who tackled this 
difficult mountain fire and subsequently agreed to take part in the committee’s 
venture to understand and learn from it. 

Tudalen 26



 

3 
 

Similarly, I would like to thank local residents and representatives of those who own 
or work on Llantysilio Mountain for their valuable contributions to the inquiry.  

The Committee has now concluded its investigation and its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations are set out in this report. The Committee sincerely hopes that all 
agencies, organisations and individuals who participated in the inquiry will find the 
report informative and useful as a reference point for future collaborative efforts. 

 

  

Tudalen 27



 

4 
 

 

Executive Summary  

This Scrutiny inquiry was conducted in response to concerns raised by local elected 
members and residents in the wake of the wildfire on Llantysilio Mountain during the 
summer of 2018.  The Committee’s objective in undertaking the review was to 
establish what lessons could be learnt from the response and management of the 
fire and what steps should be taken to avoid or reduce the risk of similar severe 
wildfires occurring. 

The Committee was aware that the organisations involved in tackling the wildfire 
would be undertaking their own reviews of the incident. The Committee therefore 
wanted to ensure that these processes had been concluded so it could consider their 
findings as part of the inquiry.     

This report summarises the evidence collated through the inquiry.  Section 5 
focusses on land management issues, whilst Section 6 summarises the information 
received in relation to the fire itself and the management of the incident.  Section 7 
details the North Wales Local Resilience Forum’s assessment of what worked 
effectively during the response to the fire.  Lessons learnt by all organisations 
involved with the fire and land management matters are summarised in Section 8 of 
the report.   

The conclusions the Committee has drawn can be seen in Section 9.  Based on 
these conclusions the Committee has made or endorsed recommendations aimed at 
reducing the risk of future wildfires and to coordinate the most effective response 
possible where they do occur. These are laid out in Section 10 of the report.   

The Committee sincerely hopes that the lessons learnt from this devastating event 
will be applied in order to prevent and tackle similar incidents in future.  The 
Committee hopes that all partners will be willing to work together to implement the 
recommendations with a view to improving multi-agency responses to similar 
incidents in future and to reduce the risk of wildfires. 

Whilst the Llantysilio fire has badly damaged the mountain’s biodiversity and had a 
heavy impact on local farmers, residents and businesses, the fire did not lead to the 
loss of lives or serious injury, nor to the loss of property in the vicinity, thanks to the 
determined and sustained efforts of the agencies involved in tackling the blaze. 

 

  

Tudalen 28



 

5 
 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Within its county boundaries Denbighshire has extensive areas of moorland 
and forestry.  To the west these include part of the Denbigh Moors (Mynydd 
Hiraethog) and the Clocaenog Forest, to the east the Clwydian Range and to 
the south parts of the Berwyn Mountain range, Llandegla Moor, Ruabon Moor 
and the Llantysilio Mountains.  The Clwydian Range, Llandegla and Ruabon 
Moors along with the mountains in the Llantysilio Range also form part of the 
Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  

 
1.2 The possible occurrence of large upland or forestry fires is therefore a 

significant issue for the County due to their potential impact on the local 
environment and on the economy of the area and the county in general. 

 

2. Background 

2.1 Llantysilio Mountain forms part of the Ruabon/Llantysilio Mountains and Minera 
Grasslands Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).  It has been subject to this 
designation since 1991.  This UK wide designation recognises the upland heath 
and blanket bog communities found on the mountain along with the 
assemblage of upland breeding birds including species such as red grouse, 
black grouse and curlew. 

 
2.2 The summer of 2018 was an exceptionally dry summer.  During this prolonged 

period of dry weather a number of wildfires ignited in various parts of the UK.  
Fire ignited on an area of Llantysilio Mountain, near Llangollen, on or about 18th 
July 2018 and fire continued to affect the mountain until the 25th September 
2018.  Between approximately 19th July and 20th August 2018 the daily lives of 
a number of local residents were affected as were local businesses, and those 
who had grazing rights on the mountain.  The livelihood of the latter group may 
be affected for a prolonged period of time.  However, despite the scale, ferocity 
and complexities involved with this fire over an extended period of time, no-one 
was killed or injured and no dwellings were lost,  

 
2.3 As a result the Council’s Communities Scrutiny Committee decided to 

undertake an inquiry into the fire and its short and long term consequences on 
the local area.  The Committee wanted to examine the fire incident and the 
multi-agency response to it, as well as the impact the fire had on the local area, 
environment and businesses.  It was felt that a thorough review of the above 
aspects would help identify and collate any lessons learnt to enable practical 
solutions to be devised with a view to improving multi-agency responses to 
similar emergencies in future.  The Committee also wanted to establish whether 
land management practices could be better utilised in future to mitigate against 
the spread of fires, or to isolate wildfires.  Bearing in mind Denbighshire’s 

Tudalen 29



 

6 
 

extensive areas of moorland and forestry the Committee wanted to make sure 
that plans were in place to effectively mobilise all partner organisations and 
those affected by a similar wildfire to act in a coordinated approach when 
dealing with an incident and its consequences, and also to work together to 
mitigate against the risk of wildfires occurring. 

  

Tudalen 30



 

7 
 

3. The review process  
 
3.1 To facilitate this review the Committee invited public and private organisations 

who were involved with the fire incident, or affected by it, to submit information 
and evidence to it.  Having reviewed the written and photographic information 
received the Committee held a meeting at Llangollen International Pavilion on 
20th March 2019 to which a range of stakeholders, agencies and organisations 
involved with the fire incident, those affected by it and those involved with the 
management and grazing of the land in the area, were invited.  The purpose of 
this meeting was to receive and exchange information and share experiences 
of dealing with the fire and its consequences.  Committee members were able 
to ask questions to representatives from the various organisations in 
attendance.  Members of the public were also given an opportunity to submit 
questions to the various organisations taking part in the meeting.  
Comprehensive replies to any questions raised at the meeting which could not 
be answered on the day were provided in writing later.    

 
3.2 Throughout the evidence gathering exercise and at the meeting itself it was 

emphasised that the purpose of the review was not in any way to apportion 
blame on any individual, service, organisation or group with respect of the fire 
or the response to it, but to better understand and learn from the event to help 
improve the response and management of similar incidents in future, and to 
reduce the risk of similar wildfires occurring. 

 
3.3 The Committee wishes to thank most sincerely those agencies, organisations, 

private and public bodies which contributed and engaged with the review in one 
way or another, namely: 

 North Wales Regional Emergency Planning Service (NWREPS)  
 Natural Resources Wales (NRW)  
 North Wales Fire and Rescue Service (NWFRS)  
 North Wales Police (NWP) 
 The Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association 
 Owners of the Llantysilio Estate and their land agents  
 Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water  
 Hafren Dyfrdwy Water Company  
 Llantysilio Community Council  
 Denbighshire County Council’s: 

 Countryside Services 
 Public Protection Service  
 Highways Service  
 Communication & Marketing Service    

 
We also want to thank local residents, businesses, individuals and other 
interested parties who contributed written, photographic/video and verbal 
evidence to the Committee during the course of the review.  All forms of 
evidence received was extremely useful to the Committee to understand the 
public’s concerns about the fire and its consequential impact.  

 

  

Tudalen 31



 

8 
 

4. The fire incident and its management 
 
4.1 Due to the unpredictable nature of moorland fires and the protracted length of 

this particular wildfire on Llantysilio Mountain, the response and management 
of the incident required a multi-agency approach over a number of weeks. 

 
4.2 A detailed timeline of all organisations’ involvement with the fire and related 

activities from the first report to the Emergency Services to it being declared 
extinguished can be seen at Appendix 2 of this report. 

 
4.3 In their evidence North Wales Fire and Rescue Service (NWFRS) 

acknowledged that the fire on Llantysilio Mountain was one of the worst 
wildfires that it had ever dealt with.   

 
 

  

Tudalen 32



 

9 
 

Summary of the evidence given by the various agencies, organisations and 
individuals during the meeting on the 20th March or provided in written format 
in response to questions asked at that meeting. 

 

5. Land management 

Please note that any views expressed in this section are those of the agencies, 
organisations, or the individuals giving evidence, they are not necessarily those of 
the Committee 

5.1 Natural Resources Wales (NRW)  

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Natural Resources Wales, 
they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

5.1.1 Llantysilio was designated as a SSSI for its heathland habitat communities 
and upland breeding bird assemblage including black grouse and curlew.  
Despite the extensive damage caused by the fire the designation was still 
valid, but the habitat required some extensive restoration work.  250 hectares 
of the total 1150 hectares of SSSI (up to the A542) had been damaged by the 
fire.  Consequently, this would entail changes to grazing patterns on hefts in 
the short and medium term.  Effective partnership working was now needed in 
order to aid the mountain’s recovery. 

5.1.2 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) cited Ruabon Moor as a local example of a 
moorland which is effectively managed by rotational small patch burning and 
mowing. On this particular moorland the main driver for management is red 
grouse management, whereas on Llantysilio there was no such driver and 
individual areas were managed by burning or mowing of larger areas to 
enable the overall mountain to be managed on a suitable timescale. 

5.1.3 In a bid to try and address the immediate concerns and challenges on the 
mountain NRW had gone out to tender to let a contract to secure the services 
of experts with past experience of upland/moorland fire restoration work.  It 
was anticipated that engaging experts in the field would help aid early 
recovery of the mountain’s habitat.      

5.1.4 Despite risk mitigation measures being taken on moorlands such as Llantysilio 
Mountain, fires were likely to continue to happen during hot weather or 
periods of sustained dry weather.  However, effective biodiversity 
management should help reduce the risk of these occurring and reduce the 
availability of fuel for such fires.  The Heather and Hillforts Project, which 
operated between 2005 and 2012, had been a valuable tool to this effect 
(information about this project can be found in paragraph 5.2.5)  

5.1.5 NRW confirmed that the grazing of sheep, combined with managed burning 
and mowing were all essential elements for the maintenance of heathland.  
Controlling bracken and gorse growth as well as tree and scrub growth on 
open heathland was also important in order to support and maintain a 
balanced healthy habitat.  NRW permitted controlled burning on SSSI land in 

Tudalen 33



 

10 
 

accordance with regulations set out in ‘The Heather and Grass Burning Code 
for Wales 2008’1 i.e. the provision of a ‘Burning Plan’.  Under Burning Plans 
the person responsible for burning had a legal responsibility to ensure the 
availability of sufficient people and resources to control the burn, notify the fire 
and rescue service of the details of the proposed burn, notify neighbours, 
adjacent land owners/occupiers etc. of the intention to undertake a ‘controlled 
burn’.  The burning season in upland areas ran annually from 1st October until 
31st March, from late autumn and through the winter months.   

5.1.6 On Llantysilio Mountain the graziers only had grazing rights, the rights to seek 
permission to undertake controlled burns and mowing/management work lay 
with the Estate and landowners.  Whilst landowners were not obliged to 
undertake management or mitigating work on the mountain, in the past both 
the landowners and graziers had undertaken such work with the consent of 
NRW. The landowners and NRW would draw-up and agree upon a 
management plan which would enable the graziers to draw down money to 
undertake the moorland management work required.  This work formed part of 
five year upland management agreements with the Estate.  Such agreements 
had previously been in place, the last agreement lapsed on 1st September 
2014 and included payments for burning and mowing.  These management 
agreements related to habitat management, there had never been 
agreements in place relating to stocking levels.  Looking ahead it was evident 
that more active management of the mountain was required now and into the 
future and NRW was keen for the graziers, Countryside Services and 
Llantysilio Community Council to be involved with this work.  

5.1.7 NRW confirmed that during the period when upland management agreements 
were in place it granted consents for management work to be undertaken, 
permission to undertake management work was never refused. On Llantysilio 
Mountain NRW tried to ensure burns or mowing were kept under control by 
permitting individual areas of up to 1 hectare (2.5 acres) in size to be 
burned/mowed at a time.  Up to 10% of the mountain was permitted to be 
managed in one season on a 10 year rotational basis, this included the 
burning of gorse although no financial recompense could be claimed towards 
the cost of burning gorse. 

5.1.8 In addition, Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Service encouraged 
graziers on the common to carry out work, and the Service itself had been 
undertaking management work in the area.  

5.1.9 Whilst 10 graziers had registered rights to turn sheep up on to Llantysilio 
Mountain, only 4 of the graziers regularly utilised these rights.  It was widely 
acknowledged that the non-utilisation of grazing rights was in the main 
attributed to the downturn in the agricultural economy, as there had been a 
reduction in demand for the smaller Welsh mountain lamb, the native breed of 
sheep which thrived on this type of terrain.  This situation was replicated 
across Wales.  The management of the grazing and hefting flocks was, and 

                                                           
1 The Heather and Grass Burning Code for Wales 2008:  
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-01/heather-and-grass-burning-code.pdf  

Tudalen 34



 

11 
 

would be, the responsibility of graziers, whilst game management on the 
mountain was exercised by the landowners.   

5.1.10 NRW acknowledged that more active land management work needed to be 
undertaken on Llantysilio Mountain, as well as on other similar habitats across 
Wales, now and into the future.  The organisation encouraged land 
management practices and would continue to encourage them in future. 

5.1.11 Whilst NRW had powers to force landowners/graziers to comply with statutory 
SSSI requirements, these were very rarely used as NRW preferred to work 
with the landowners and graziers to encourage effective management of the 
land.  Opportunities were available for land management plans to be drawn up 
and agreed by all parties, under these plans NRW could offer incentives such 
as payments towards the costs of undertaking land management work.  

5.1.12  NRW could not force graziers to turn their sheep up on to the mountain it 
could only encourage them to utilise their full grazing rights.  Unfortunately, 
current agricultural policies and the agri-economic situation was not 
favourable towards the smaller Welsh mountain sheep which would naturally 
graze highland areas such as Llantysilio Mountain.  The demand for the 
smaller mountain lamb had reduced in recent years, which had resulted in the 
market price for such lambs reducing rendering their production economically 
unviable.  Consequently this had a knock-on effect on the grazing of upland 
areas and on land management in upland areas.  If the stock left the mountain 
it would be extremely difficult to manage the mountain and maintain its healthy 
biodiversity and ecosystem.  Therefore regular information sharing meetings 
between all stakeholders would be extremely useful in order to balance 
conflicting views and aid the understanding of each other’s priorities. 

5.1.13  Looking to the future NRW was currently working with NWFRS to develop 
Operational Tactical Fire Plans for the most vulnerable upland sites, of which 
Llantysilio Mountain would be one. These Plans would detail facts such as 
landownership, access points, water supplies etc. to enable the Fire and 
Rescue Service to have the information it required in one place when it initially 
responded to a fire.  NWFRS confirmed that work was underway to develop 
Wildfire Plans with NRW.  It also advised that the Service would welcome any 
joint training opportunities to prepare for such incidents. 

5.1.14 NRW wished to see a partnership between the land owners, graziers, 
NWFRS, Denbighshire’s Countryside Service and itself to improve moorland 
management on all of the moors in Denbighshire and reduce the risk of 
catastrophic fires. In NRW’s opinion the appointment of a moorland 
management officer would help pull such partnerships together.  

 
5.1.15 On the availability of funding opportunities to help support the management of 

the mountain, including the remedial work required, NRW had commissioned 
a thorough assessment of the condition of the mountain, which would include 
the use of a drone to take detailed aerial footage of the area.  This 
assessment would help the organisation to plan the short and long-term work 
required on the mountain to aid its recovery and to seek funding opportunities 
to meet the costs for this work.  

 

Tudalen 35



 

12 
 

5.2 Denbighshire’s Countryside Services 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Denbighshire County 
Council’s Countryside Services, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

5.2.1 The current problem on Llantysilio Mountain was the depth of the burn, in 
places it would take years to restore as the soil structure and seed stock had 
been destroyed.  There was a risk that on certain areas of the mountain 
further soil would be lost through the effects of wind and water run-off.  Whilst 
the area may seem a lot ‘greener’ during the course of the forthcoming year 
this would be as a result of bracken and gorse spreading into the burnt out 
areas.  This had the potential to suppress the recovery of any heather or other 
indigenous moorland vegetation and growth.  It would take some considerable 
length of time for them to return, if at all, as they would be competing with the 
bracken and gorse.  This would present additional challenges in re-
establishing grazing on the mountain.  Therefore in the short-term the 
management of heather growth in flat areas of the mountain would be key. In 
the long-term the aim would be to get a balance of vegetation, not dominance 
of gorse or bracken.  Whilst bracken could be effectively treated through aerial 
spraying this was extremely expensive to undertake, but it would be beneficial 
for both the sheep and grouse population in the area as areas of bracken 
tended to contain high numbers of ‘ticks’ which were problematic for sheep 
and grouse alike. 

5.2.2 AONB and NRW officials had met with the graziers to discuss opportunities 
and challenges for management work on the mountain following the fire. NRW 
was working on putting a Management Agreement in place with the 
landowners on Llantysilio, which would provide a framework for payments to 
graziers for agreed management work.  One immediate issue identified 
related to the stocking of the burned and damaged areas.  NRW had agreed 
that it would not be looking for any reduction in stocking, but recognised that 
there may be issues with stock moving away from their traditional hefts in 
these areas in search of suitable grazing.  

5.2.3 Another issue identified was the difficulty of dealing with gorse and scrub on 
steep slopes where it was not possible to gain access with a tractor and 
where slopes were too steep to burn safely.  With areas like this in mind the 
AONB had secured funding through Cadwyn Clwyd to trial and demonstrate a 
Robo-Flail – a driverless flail mower capable of working on very steep slopes.  
A number of demonstration events for farmers and land managers had 
already been held in the area.  

 
5.2.4 Where time and resources permitted the Council’s Countryside Service would 

continue to offer support to graziers who wanted to carry out land 
management work on Llantysilio Mountain.   

 
5.2.5 The Heather and Hillforts project, which was funded by the Heritage Lottery 

Fund and operated between 2005 and 2012, recognised that moorlands 
across the UK were in decline due to significant barriers to sustainable 
management.  Under this project a Moorland Field Officer was appointed.  

Tudalen 36



 

13 
 

This officer worked with the farming communities to identify and overcome 
specific barriers to retaining these areas as part of the agricultural system, 
and to establish long term management programmes that would benefit 
upland grazing.  As part of this project significant work had been undertaken 
to reduce the extent of bracken through aerial spraying, as well as work with 
landowners and graziers to improve the condition of the heathland.  In 
addition, during the project’s lifetime vegetation condition maps were 
produced, burning and cutting programmes were undertaken with graziers 
who were provided with equipment for heathland management, 
demonstrations and training was provided in management techniques 
(including work with students at Llysfasi College), and work was undertaken 
with the Fire and Rescue Service to promote responsible burning and 
management with a view to reducing fuel load and vulnerability to such fires.   

5.2.6 The Moorland Field Officer also worked with the graziers to obtain the 
necessary Special Area of Conservation (SAC) consents required from NRW 
to undertake the work.  The requirements entailed with these consents often 
presented significant barriers to work being undertaken, so the Officer was 
key in overcoming these obstacles.  Sadly this funding ended and the 
Moorland Field Officer post no longer existed.  No similar funding had been 
introduced to replace it.  Nevertheless, the AONB had continued, where 
possible, to support graziers who wanted to carry out work on Llantysilio 
Mountain and to assist graziers with the consents process.  Where possible 
practical support with burning and cutting was offered through Denbighshire 
Countryside Service’s Area Ranger Team, who often worked with students 
from Llysfasi College.   

5.2.7 One potential method for restoring the mountain habitat following the fire 
would be to transport harvested heather from a similar moorland area to 
Llantysilio Mountain in an attempt to seed the mountain.  If this approach was 
agreed the heather should be baled and moved to the mountain during 
October, as this would enable the seeds to establish over the winter period 
when no livestock would be on the mountain.  Countryside Service did have 
experience of gathering heather brash seeds for baling and re-seeding.  
Nevertheless, due to the terrain, access to parts of the affected area may be 
problematic and may even be difficult for a 4x4 to navigate.  In addition the 
use of 4x4s also had the potential to cause further damage to the mountain’s 
surface. 

5.2.8  Of immediate concern was the future of the ‘hefting flocks’ as there would be 
hardly any grazing material for them to feed on the mountain this year.  If they 
were not turned up on to the mountain they would lose their hefting abilities 
which would consequently lead to the loss of the flocks, and leave the 
mountain ungrazed.  These flocks were key to the effective management of 
the mountain and helped maintain its biodiversity.  Llantysilio Mountain, 
similar to other upland moors in Wales, was in the main an area of open 
mountain therefore it had to be grazed by ‘hefting flocks’ of sheep.  Non-
hefting flocks would roam across the mountain and would be unmanageable 
unless the mountain was fenced into sections, which would be an onerous 
and difficult task to undertake given the terrain. 

Tudalen 37



 

14 
 

5.2.9 Representatives from NRW and the Council’s Countryside Service had met 
with the Graziers Association with a view to helping them access the funding 
available through NRW to progress the recovery work and to ensure the long-
term viability of the mountain.  The reduction in market demand for Welsh 
Mountain lambs, one of the few breeds that had the ability to thrive on this 
type of terrain, further compounded the problems facing those managing and 
grazing the mountain.  Uncertainties in relation to future agricultural policy 
following BREXIT also added to the problem and made planning for the future 
extremely difficult. 

5.2.10 Both NRW and Countryside Services were firmly of the view that continued 
dialogue between them, the Estate owners and the graziers were key to 
securing the future viability and sustainability of the mountain.  It was vital that 
all stakeholders shared information and supported and trusted each other in 
order to ensure success going forward. 

5.2.11  Payments were already available via NRW Management Agreements for land 
management work, but landowners and common land graziers needed to 
agree on management and burning plans, including Fire Management Plans, 
in order to access this money. If the mountain’s future was to be secured it 
was essential that Section 16 Management Agreements were put in place. 

5.2.12 Opportunities may also exist under the National Grid Landscape 
Enhancement Initiative (LEI) fund, a community recompense scheme which 
was available to at least one community which bordered the mountain’s area, 
to realise some financial resources towards the recovery work.  It was 
therefore important for all stakeholders to come together to discuss and agree 
a way forward in relation to the restoration work and the future management 
of the mountain in order for them to access appropriate funding.  

 
5.2.13 Denbighshire’s Countryside Services had jointly with NWFRS applied for fire 

risk reduction monies.  Unfortunately this bid had been unsuccessful. 
 

5.3 Landowners 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the Landowners, they are 
not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

5.3.1 Representatives from Llantysilio Estate advised that when properties with 
grazing rights in the area were sold very few new owners wanted to utilise the 
grazing rights attached to the property.   

5.3.2 The landowners themselves did not have the resources required to undertake 
controlled burning but did consent to graziers and interested parties 
undertaking agreed habitat management works which included heather, 
bracken and gorse control. The agreements that had been in place also had 
provision for the authorities to undertake this management work. 

5.3.3 At present the Estate was in the advanced stages of discussions with NRW 
regarding management agreements for the mountain.  The Estate was eager 
to enter into management agreements with NRW in order to help the graziers 

Tudalen 38



 

15 
 

access the land management funding available. In addition the Estate was 
also willing to undertake some of the management work itself.  Due to the 
terrain, mechanical management of the mountain would prove extremely 
difficult in some areas.  The Estate confirmed its willingness to work with the 
authorities in relation to future management. 

 
5.4 Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association  

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the Horseshoe Pass 
Graziers Association, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

5.4.1 According to the Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association Llantysilio Mountain 
was not alone with regards to current habitat status and the overall lack of 
management.  In many areas across North Wales, and the rest of Wales, 
livestock numbers had reduced for several reasons, these included political 
policies and economic reasons.  The general feeling amongst graziers was 
that this decline would continue. Grazier numbers were reducing, leading to 
reduced manpower available for routine habitat management. As the habitat 
was not maintained, then accessibility for grazing was limited and the general 
husbandry, gathering etc. became more difficult. 

5.4.2 Due to the fact that the smaller Welsh Mountain lambs produced in these 
areas were currently ‘out of fashion’ and generating less income than the 
larger lowland breeds, less incentive therefore existed to maintain flocks of 
pure Welsh Mountain and other hill breeds of sheep. 

5.4.3 In the Graziers Association’s view a cooperative policy should be drawn up 
and agreed between all parties with interests in managing this and other 
areas, namely Natural Resources Wales, Clwydian Range and Dee Valley 
AONB, the landowners and graziers. 

5.4.4 They were also firmly of the view that a change of stance was required with a 
relaxation of some of the rules which had constrained land management 
practices. On the Berwyn Mountain significant fire breaks were being put in 
place by NRW, these were in addition to the small blocks of land previously 
controlled. 

5.4.5 The graziers would like to see the cutting or burning of firebreaks 
reintroduced. There was also the need to manage larger areas as in the past, 
this in addition to the more recent practice of managing only small blocks. 
Roadside verges also needed to be increased in size, being wide enough to 
prevent any fires caused by passing motorists.   

5.4.6 According to the Graziers Association there were strong feelings amongst the 
graziers that NRW had taken the responsibility for the management of the 
mountain away from hill farmers, who warned them of the potential dangers of 
their management practices but they ignored this advice.  Graziers felt that the 
mountain’s SSSI status compounded the problem of utilising management 
practices, as favourable weather conditions had to be aligned to the consents 
given to undertake the work.  There was a feeling amongst graziers that land 

Tudalen 39



 

16 
 

management payments were difficult to access and entailed a substantial 
amount of bureaucracy. 

5.4.7 With respect of the reinstatement and future management of Llantysilio 
Mountain opinions were divided between the various stakeholders on the way 
forward and the mountain’s future management. 

5.4.8 Fortunately, nature had the ability to regenerate itself and there would be 
regrowth, however at this stage the level of success in terms of plant type etc., 
was unknown. The extent of long-term damage caused to the soil structure 
was also unknown, this leading to erosion in its differing forms with the 
reduction in general soil fertility to sustain the regrowth of vegetation. 

5.4.9 Management of the common was difficult, but Llantysilio Mountain was not 
unique in this situation, the underlying factors affected commons throughout 
Wales. 

5.4.10 There was an underlying trend in the reduction of graziers utilising their rights 
to graze. This had led to a reduction in sheep numbers, an invaluable asset in 
habitat management.  In tandem with this was the reduction in the availability 
of labour to undertake habitat management.  Currently, due to many factors, 
economics being one, there was no indication of a significant change to this 
trend.  

5.4.11 Another detrimental factor was the perceived level of governance. Llantysilio 
Mountain along with many others was designated as an SSSI and a SAC and 
therefore fell within the responsibility of Natural Resources Wales.  Any form 
of habitat management there had to be authorised by NRW. The window of 
opportunity for burning/cutting etc. was short, and there was a need to 
implement actions at relatively short notice when the ground and atmospheric 
conditions were right. There was also the concern amongst individuals, that if 
errors were made then they were open to the possibility of prosecution and 
financial penalties.  Due to these constraints farmers were, to a large extent 
frightened to undertake land management work due to the fines and penalties 
that could be imposed if anything went wrong.  In general they were frightened 
of NRW, which they perceived as an extremely powerful body.  If an individual 
received a warning letter from the authorities for something that had 
accidentally happened, they would be extremely wary of undertaking any 
other work in case anything went wrong. 

5.4.12 In order to improve the level of habitat management and help reduce the 
potential for fire outbreaks in future and to lead to more effective land 
management there had to be greater cohesion between all parties, an 
awareness of each other’s requirements and a common goal. A change of 
attitude was needed by farmers, landowners, graziers and agencies alike. 

5.4.13 The ideal situation would be the appointment of a coordinator person to 
develop a cohesive plan, endorsed by all the interested parties.  This 
coordinator would subsequently put the proposals into effect, and monitor 
their delivery.   

 

  

Tudalen 40



 

17 
 

5.5 General public/residents comments at the meeting:  

Please note that the views expressed below are those of individuals, they are not 
necessarily those of the Committee 

 

5.5.1 On land management matters, in addition to the points raised by those giving 
evidence at the meeting, the following observations were received from 
residents and the general public - the need to: 

 draw-up a pre-determined list of firebreaks; and  
 effectively manage the land for the benefit of all 

 

5.6 Additional information submitted by a member of the public following 
the meeting 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the individual, they are not 
necessarily those of the Committee 

 

5.6.1 A member of the public who witnessed last year’s fire and who visits the 
Llangollen area on a regular basis advised that he had seen the severe 
degradation that had taken place.  He was of the view that the fire-damaged 
area was central to the attraction of the area for walkers.  As he lived in the 
Derbyshire/Yorkshire area he has provided information on extensive efforts in 
that area of the UK in a bid to reverse the degradation of moorland 
landscapes (e.g. Bleaklow and Kinder).  He suggested that it may be 
worthwhile to contact Chatsworth Estates who had been re-planting heathers 
and other threatened species, as they may be in a position to offer help or 
advice on remedial action.  He also suggested that Coleg Llysfasi could be 
invited to be involved with the remedial work and that consideration could be 
given to involving volunteers to help with the work. 

 

  

Tudalen 41



 

18 
 

Summary of the evidence given by the various agencies, organisations and 
individuals during the meeting on the 20th March or provided in written format 
in response to questions asked at that meeting. 

 

6. Fire incident 

Please note that any views expressed in this section are those of the agencies, 
organisations, or the individuals giving evidence, they are not necessarily those of 
the Committee 

6.1 North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the North Wales Fire and 
Rescue Service, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.1.1 North Wales Fire and Rescue Service officers confirmed that the 999 call 
relating to the main wildfire on Llantysilio Mountain was received at the 
Service’s Control Centre in St. Asaph at 2.20pm on 19th July 2018.  This call 
reported a fire burning on the mountain.  As a result of this call the Fire and 
Rescue Service dealt with this incident from then until it was officially closed at 
1:45pm on 25th September 2018.  During this period fire appliances and 
officers were on the scene continuously from 19th July 2018 until 13th 
September 2018. 

6.1.2 Regarding the fire on the mountain the previous day, 18th July, which the Fire 
and Rescue Service confirmed they attended, the Service advised that this 
was a separate incident and unrelated to the one they were called out to at 
2.20pm on 19th July.  NWFRS is confident that the fire on 18th July was 
extinguished and that the fire on 19th July was not a re-ignition of the earlier 
fire as had been suggested by some.  They strongly refuted this suggestion 
as the fire on 19th July started some 361 metres, approximately a quarter 
of a mile, away from the location of the previous evening’s fire. This 
second fire was the one that would eventually continue to burn and 
smoulder for over six weeks.  In the Fire and Rescue Service’s 
professional opinion it was very clearly not a re-ignition of the earlier fire.   

6.1.3 According to NWFRS in the case of this particular wildfire the conditions on 
the ground and atmospherically had created a ‘perfect storm’ – a 
combination of difficult terrain, very dry ground, tinder dry growth and the 
existence of peat meant the fire could continue to burn below ground for an 
extensive period of time, hence the reason that the Fire and Rescue Service 
did not declare it extinguished until September.   

6.1.4 NWFRS confirmed that the cause of the fire had never been established. 

6.1.5 From a logistical perspective access to the mountain had not posed the Fire 
and Rescue Service any major problems as the Service had the means to 
transport personnel to large, geographical remote areas.  Nevertheless, the 
unpredictable nature of the terrain and the existence of crumbling tracks had 

Tudalen 42



 

19 
 

caused the Service some problems in getting vehicles to the far extremities 
of the mountain.  This had resulted in the Service suffering damage to a 
number of vehicles whilst attempting to fight the fire.  The topography of the 
area, lack of robust land management resulting in the existence of limited 
firebreaks, dense vegetation and the existence of dry decomposed 
undergrowth, which obscured voids had been both a challenge and a 
problem.  The density of the vegetation and the undergrowth acted as added 
‘fuel’ for the fire, whilst the terrain and the existence of voids posed a health 
and safety threat to Fire and Rescue personnel attempting to navigate the 
mountain to extinguish the fire, be that on foot or in vehicles.   

6.1.6 The entire fire operation on the mountain was conducted in accordance with 
recognised Incident Command procedures.  Upon arrival Fire and Rescue 
Service personnel would report to the Incident Command Unit (ICU) where 
they would be briefed on the incident up to that point, prior to a shift change 
taking place and the new shift assuming responsibility for dealing with the 
incident.  As NWFRS was in overall command of the incident, all agencies 
and organisations involved with the fire incident had a responsibility to report 
to the ICU.   

6.1.7 All properties in the vicinity were visited by personnel from either the Fire and 
Rescue Service or the Police and given appropriate safety and welfare 
advice.  The need to evacuate did not arise.   

6.1.8 Fire and Rescue Service personnel confirmed that the Service had been 
approached with offers of assistance from local farmers and residents.  
Whilst such offers were appreciated and well-intended, decisions in relation 
to whether to accept or decline these offers had to be taken by the duty 
Incident Commander based on their professional training and judgement 
having regard to the risks prevalent at the time.  In taking such decisions the 
Incident Commander would consider factors such as predicted wind direction 
and validated data and information from other recognised agencies, such as 
the Meteorological Office and National Resources Wales (NRW). The 
decision to restrict access for non-Service vehicles and personnel 
onto the burning mountainside was taken entirely on the basis of the 
risk involved to anyone undertaking such action, combined with no 
guarantee that cutting a swathe of vegetation would actually stop the 
fire in its tracks.  Nevertheless, the advice and information received from 
farmers and residents in relation to the local area had been very useful to the 
Service.  NWFRS was also grateful to local residents and businesses for the 
offers of food and drink they received, these were not accepted as the 
Service had procedures in place to meet personnel’s welfare needs.  

6.1.9 Some local farmers had kindly offered to provide water and to transport it to 
Service personnel to help fight the fire, but this was not required as the 
Service had access to a sufficient supply of water from the public water 
system to meet its needs.  All NWFRS fire appliances are fitted with mobile 
data units, these show the latest information on the location of fire hydrants 
in the local area to enable firefighters to quickly locate and access them.  The 
area in and around Llantysilio Mountain is serviced by two water companies, 
Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water and Hafren Dyfrdwy. The Service had a good 

Tudalen 43



 

20 
 

working relationship and effective liaison channels with both companies.   

6.1.10 All decisions relating to the cutting of firebreaks etc. were taken following 
discussions with partner organisations, as the Fire and Rescue Service does 
not possess the appropriate equipment or vehicles to undertake this type of 
work. 

 
6.1.11 NWFRS confirmed that during the course of the fire consideration was given 

to the benefits of using aircraft for firefighting purposes, but the costs of using 
this approach were prohibitive.  With respect of accessing Civil Aid to help 
with the costs of dealing with the fire NWFRS confirmed that Civil Aid was a 
statutory process authorised by Central Government.  This was granted to 
deal with wildfires in areas such as Saddleworth Moor.  However, it is only 
granted when sufficient resources are not available to deal with a situation.  
This was not the case in relation to the fire on Llantysilio Mountain as NWFRS 
had sufficient resources at its disposal to meet its needs to deal with the 
incident. 

6.1.12 Under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 any partner organisation involved with 
the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) can designate an incident a 
‘major/emergency incident’.  The LRF is a forum established in a police area 
by key emergency responders and specific supporting agencies.  A LRF is a 
requirement of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.  The purpose of the LRF 
process is to ensure effective delivery of duties under the Act that need to be 
developed in a multi-agency environment and individually as a Category 1 
responder.  However, the term ‘major/emergency incident’ means different 
things to different agencies within the LRF.  The Fire and Rescue Service 
deals with ‘emergency’ situations as part of its day to day business.  From its 
perspective the fire incident on Llantysilio Mountain did not meet with its 
definition of a ‘major incident’ as in Fire and Rescue Services terminology a 
‘major incident’ is an incident which the Service does not have sufficient 
resources to respond to and deal with.  The Service had sufficient resources 
to deal with this incident despite its duration.   

6.1.13 NWFRS had a Communications Plan to deal with the Llantysilio Mountain fire 
incident and this plan was implemented.  The Service’s Control Room now 
actively used social media as part of its communication when dealing with 
incidents, in an attempt to inform and reassure the public about what was 
happening.   

6.1.14 Following its review of the Llantysilio Wildfire the Local Resilience Forum 
(LRF) was of the view that partner organisations had worked consistently well 
with each other over a protracted period of time in relation to this incident.  
However, it had recommended that future incidents would benefit from the 
establishment of a Tactical Coordination Group (TCG) for the purpose of 
providing consistent, proactive and agreed messages to the public.  
Nonetheless, it was acknowledged that it would be very difficult, if not 
impossible, to prevent the circulation by members of the public of inaccurate 
information on social media. 

6.1.15 NWRFS stated that the Service was extremely proud of all staff who had been 
involved with responding and dealing with the fire over an extended period of 

Tudalen 44



 

21 
 

time, under what were extremely difficult and challenging conditions.  With the 
Service being reliant on a high number of retained firefighters it was indebted 
to primary employers across North Wales who had released staff from their 
primary employment for extended periods of time to attend the incident and 
relieve other staff.  Whilst the incident was local to the Llangollen area it had 
impacted from the Fire and Rescue Service’s staffing perspective on the 
entire North Wales area, as at one time or another all of its 44 fire stations had 
been mobilised to help keep the fire under control.  Following the incident the 
Service had received a total of 104 communications from members of the 
public registering their appreciation of the Service’s work and efforts in 
tackling the fire. 

 

6.2 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Natural Resources Wales, 
they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.2.1 Llantysilio Mountain is a series of contiguous registered Common Land Units.  
The freehold is owned by four main landowners with a series of smaller 
landowners around the periphery of the mountain.  The majority of the SSSI is 
also part of the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC).  This European designation highlights the continental 
importance of the heathland habitats found on Llantysilio Mountain.  All of this 
land is within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 

6.2.2 As the land affected by the fire was in private ownership the role of NRW in 
the fire was as a Category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004.  It also had a role to fulfil as the Nature Conservation Authority in Wales 
in relation to SSSIs.  As a Category 1 responder NRW had an important legal 
responsibility to respond directly to the incident and to support the incident 
management roles of other public organisations i.e. NWFRS, Police and 
Denbighshire County Council through the provision of advice and information. 

6.2.3 From the outset of the incident NRW provided information and advice to 
NWFRS and worked closely with the Council’s Countryside Service who were 
out on site. It also provided equipment and skilled operators upon request.  
This equipment was usually used on the Berwyn National Nature Reserve 
(NNR) which is owned and managed by NRW.  When utilising the equipment 
on Llantysilio Mountain this was done under the direction of NWFRS, as the 
incident lead. 

6.2.4 NRW confirmed that they had not been approached by any individual, 
contractor or company/business seeking permission to cut firebreaks, neither 
had they declined the use of mowing or other machinery by anyone else.  
Decisions on who undertook any such work, and the timings of that work, 
rested with NWFRS as the incident lead. 

6.2.5 NRW emphasised that in an emergency such as this one operational 
decisions i.e. granting permission to dig trenches or to cut firebreaks would 
not entail a bureaucratic form filling exercise.  They would be taken on the 

Tudalen 45



 

22 
 

ground by the Duty Technical Manager (DTM) having undertaken a risk 
assessment on matters such as potential impact on watercourses and water 
supplies etc. 

6.2.6 Following its experiences of being involved with the Llantysilio Mountain fire 
NRW felt that communication channels between the various agencies and 
organisations involved in similar incidents in future need to be co-ordinated 
more effectively, in order facilitate the provision of practical and timely 
messages to residents and affected parties. 

 

6.3 North Wales Police (NWP) 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of North Wales Police, they 
are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.3.1 The Police’s involvement with the fire was primarily around emergency road 
closures.  North Wales Police expressed their gratitude to NWFRS personnel 
for their efforts in tackling the fire, and the general public who had generously 
offered refreshments to those in attendance at the scene.  NWP personnel 
who had assisted with the emergency situation at the time had already been 
formally recognised by the Police Service for their involvement with the 
incident. 

6.3.2 NWP emphasised that whilst powers in relation to emergency road closures 
lie with the Police Service, all road closures were undertaken in liaison with 
NWFRS and Denbighshire County Council’s Highways Department. 

6.3.3 Confirmation was received from the Police that no evidence had been found 
to suggest that the fire was the result of a criminal offence.   

 

6.4 Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Service 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Denbighshire County 
Council’s Countryside Service, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.4.1 Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Service owns two ‘fire foggers’, 
these are highly effective specialist fire-fighting equipment specifically 
designed for heathland fires.  They work through high pressure hose systems 
that emit a fine mist over the fire to starve it of oxygen.  They are highly 
effective and use relatively low volumes of water, so are ideal for working in 
remote areas.  Fire foggers are mounted in the back of an ordinary pickup 
truck so are highly mobile.  The Council made both of these available to 
NWFRS for their use, whilst Countryside Service officers worked alongside 
Fire and Rescue Service personnel under the auspices of the Incident 
Command Unit during the fire. 

6.4.2 Countryside Service officers were well acquainted with both NRW staff and 
the local graziers as they had worked with them on land management matters 

Tudalen 46



 

23 
 

for a number of years.  During the fire Countryside Service officers and the 
graziers were able to provide advice to the NWFRS about the area, the terrain 
and guide Fire and Rescue Service personnel on how to access the mountain. 

6.4.3 It was confirmed that during the fire Countryside Service officers worked 
under the directive of NWFRS, hence the reason firebreaks were not cut any 
earlier than 27th July 2018, the date the Fire and Rescue Service first 
requested Countryside Service to cut them.  Similar to NRW, Countryside 
Service was not approached by a third party with a request to cut firebreaks.  
Countryside Service personnel were of the view that whilst cutting firebreaks 
may seem like the best solution to stop the advancement of a fire, they were 
not always an effective solution as the fire could continue to burn 
underground, particularly in areas where there were high levels of peat, as 
was the case on Llantysilio Mountain. The existence of too many 
precautionary firebreaks on upland grazing areas also had a tendency to 
confuse hefting flocks. 

6.4.4 Officers from the Countryside Service confirmed that a good working 
relationship existed between officers of the Service and those from NWFRS 
and NRW throughout the entire fire incident.  They also confirmed that 
NWFRS was in overall control of the response and management of the fire 
incident throughout its duration. 

 

6.5 Denbighshire County Council’s Highways Service 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Denbighshire County 
Council’s Highways Service, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.5.1 The County’s Highway Service’s first input into the fire and its associated 
issues came late in the afternoon of Friday 27th July 2018.  This was via a 
request from colleagues in the Council’s Countryside Service who requested 
the service of a flail mower to cut back bracken at the edge of the carriageway 
on the Horseshoe Pass.  

6.5.2 Overnight and into the Saturday conditions worsened as the fire (and 
associated smoke) advanced closer to the main road.  At this point the 
Service was requested to put in place a road closure, so cones were put out 
and some basic ‘Road Closed’ signs with no diversion route signposted were 
put in place. This request also came via the Council’s Countryside Service 
staff who were the Highways Service’s only liaison point with the Fire and 
Rescue Service.  Unfortunately, these signs were ignored by drivers and 
caused problems in terms of ensuring the road could not be accessed.   

6.5.3 During the day, and more especially into the evening, conditions worsened as 
the fire approached the Ponderosa Café and the Highways Service was asked 
to ‘beef up’ the closure by putting in staffed control points, as people were still 
choosing to drive through the area. Considerable effort was put into making 
these arrangements but by the time the Highways Service had operatives in 
place the Service was informed that North Wales Police had found the 

Tudalen 47



 

24 
 

resources to be able to staff the closure themselves so the Highways Service 
stood down its crews. 

6.5.4 On the Sunday conditions had eased a little but the Fire and Rescue Service 
still wanted a closure in place and staffing it in the longer term was going to be 
unfeasible for the Highways Service.  With just a few cones in place it was 
clear that road users would continue to abuse this and try to use the road thus 
putting themselves and fire service personnel in jeopardy as they were 
working off the carriageway in what were sometimes almost zero visibility due 
to the smoke.  As a result the Highways Service opted to collect water filled 
barriers from their depot and deploy these to give a robust, physical deterrent 
with better defined signing too.  These substantially beefed up the closure – 
something the Highways Service could have done earlier if it had access to 
guidance. 

6.5.5 In subsequent days, and depending on conditions, the Highways Service 
deployed a combination of this physical barrier arrangement or single lane 
traffic control – which was mainly there to give a protection zone to fire 
personnel who were still having to work off the carriageway. 

6.5.6 Over time, pressure grew from businesses in the vicinity and in Llangollen 
itself to open the road and it was difficult for the Highways Service to 
communicate, via its normal processes, what was happening. Normally the 
Highways Service would liaise with the Council’s Streetworks team who had a 
well-established method of disseminating road closure information out to 
those who needed to know about it. The lack of information available made 
this extremely difficult if not impossible. 

6.5.7 Finally, around the 20th August the area was declared safe and the Highways 
Service was able to remove all restrictions. 

6.5.8 Having reviewed the fire incident the Highways Service highlighted a number 
of issues and difficulties it encountered during the course of the incident.  The 
Highways Service was used to both dealing with and managing emergency 
incidents involving the highway. In the past, during large scale events, the 
Service’s response had been in conjunction with North Wales Police (NWP) 
and invariably this had included on site liaison between officers from both the 
Highways Service and NWP. On other occasions, such as widespread snow 
conditions the Highways Service took control and followed set procedures and 
guidelines. In the case of the fire this proved almost impossible to achieve. 

6.5.9 During the first few days of the Llantysilio Mountain fire incident there was 
almost no direct contact between the lead officer from the Highways Service 
and the Fire and Rescue Service Incident Control Officer. On occasion the 
Highways Service would phone the main Fire and Rescue Control Centre and 
be told who the on-site Officer was and their contact number would be 
provided.  

6.5.10 About a week after the start of the fire a Command Post was set up in a layby 
and more formal meetings began to take place which enabled better planning, 
co-ordination and communication but until then the Highways Service 
experienced communication as being very disjointed making it difficult for 
them to engage properly. 

Tudalen 48



 

25 
 

6.5.11  The Highways Service identified a number of lessons learnt from this incident.  
As stated the Highways Service is regularly used to dealing with incidents 
involving the highway and the need for managing traffic, but this incident was 
different, possibly because a formal Tactical Coordinating Group (TCG) was 
not established which would have aided communication and insight. 

6.5.12 At the multi–agency de-brief that followed the incident the Highways Service 
explained what resources they had at their disposal and NWFRS were 
genuinely surprised how limited these were. The reason for their surprise was 
that they had seen what the Highways Service was able to do in other 
circumstances such as flooding, so they were under the impression that the 
Service could draw on a lot of help. This was not the case. In the winter the 
Highways Service is geared up for long periods of bad weather and a 
substantial on-call system with additional back up is put in place. During the 
summer months this does not exist, but if there was a forecast of bad weather 
such as thunderstorms and potential flooding then the Service would make 
ad-hoc short term arrangements. Normally there are only two out of hours 
operatives available to assist with small scale incidents. The crux of this is that 
these events can be forecast – the fire was completely different. 

6.5.13 A positive outcome from this incident was that there was now a greater 
understanding of mutual capability, and of what was and was not achievable. 

6.5.14 The Highways Service is constantly aware that it is duty bound to re-open 
roads as soon as possible. Pressure builds on the Service when roads remain 
closed for longer than the general public perceive as necessary, irrespective 
of the underlying reason for the closure.  The need to either open the road or 
explain the reasons for its ongoing closure builds. In this particular case there 
was a balance to be struck between ensuring the safety of Fire and Rescue 
Service personnel whilst also trying to keep traffic flowing – not least because 
in this geographical area the alternative routes for some vehicles were 
excessively long. At times this responsibility on the Highway Authority seemed 
to be missed by other agencies, there were frustrations due to the Service not 
knowing and therefore not being able to communicate what was going on or 
was foreseeably going to happen.  

6.5.15 Communication was not at all times as clear as it could have been, this aspect 
required addressing for any future incident of this kind. 

 

6.6 Denbighshire’s Public Protection Service 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Denbighshire County 
Council’s Public Protection Service, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.6.1 Three specific areas associated with the fire lie within the responsibility of the 
Council’s Public Protection Service, these being air quality, private water 
supplies and mains water supplies.  

Air quality: Strategic responsibility for air pollution matters lie with NRW.  
However, the Public Protection Service does have fixed air quality monitoring 

Tudalen 49



 

26 
 

devices located across Denbighshire which undertake routine air quality 
monitoring.  A number of these devices are located around Llangollen town 
centre.  These devices did not record any changes in air quality during the 
course of the fire that could be attributed to the fire itself.  The Service does 
not have mobile monitoring devices, but NRW does and it did have access to 
them during the period of the fire.  No air quality complaints were received by 
the Council throughout the duration of the fire 

Water supplies:  the public water supply to the area is the responsibility of 
Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water, and in part of the area Hafren Dyfrdwy Water 
Company.  These companies would have been responsible for supplying 
drinking water etc. to any affected households.  Neither of these companies 
raised any concerns with the Council’s Public Protection Service in relation to 
supplies during the period in question. 

Private water supplies:  the Council’s Public Protection Service does hold 
responsibilities in relation to the quality and availability of private water 
supplies.  During the period of the fire no contact or complaints were received 
from private water supply users relating to contamination issues.  A few 
queries were received in relation to dry weather problems, but none relating to 
the fire.  During this time the Council’s Customers, Communication and 
Marketing Service communicated with residents via social media asking those 
who were experiencing problems with their private water supplies to contact 
the Council for help and advice on securing alternative supplies. 

6.6.2 The Public Protection Service had less concerns about contamination issues 
in relation to this fire than it would have had it been an industrial fire. 

6.6.3 Routine water sampling in the area in the wake of the fire was not prioritised 
or planned but could be considered for similar incidents in future. 

 

6.7 Denbighshire County Council’s Customers, Communication and 
Marketing Service  

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Denbighshire County 
Council’s Customers, Communication and Marketing Service, they are not 
necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.7.1 In the case of the Llantysilio fire, NWFRS was considered the ‘Lead 
Organisation’, therefore Denbighshire County Council’s Communications Team 
kept in close contact with the Fire and Rescue Service’s Press Team throughout 
the period, as well as with North Wales Police (NWP). 

 
6.7.2  The Council’s main communications activity throughout the period was largely 

limited to sharing updates from the emergency services about the need for 
people to keep away from the mountainside, as well as communicating details 
of road closures as and when they happened.  Denbighshire’s Communications 
Team liaised as normal with the County’s Highways Team to publish 
information about road closures. 

 

Tudalen 50



 

27 
 

6.7.3 In addition the Communications team was on-standby to deal with the 
potential of a rest centre being activated, and had a press statement prepared 
for that eventuality. 

 
6.7.4 The Team also issued a number of updates to county councillors, as well as 

councillors representing Llangollen during the main period of activity. 
 
6.7.5 Having reviewed the incident the Council’s Customers, Communications and 

Marketing Service concluded that communication could have been better, as 
was highlighted in the North Wales Local Resilience Forum’s de-brief report.  
From the Council’s perspective it was important for it to maintain the 
consistency, quality and accuracy of the information it broadcast.  It was 
acknowledged that more effective use could have been made of local 
councillors as information conduits between the Council and its partner 
organisations, with residents and businesses, and vice-versa. 

6.7.6 Messages conveying official, factual information struggled to compete for 
prominence with ‘gossip’-type posts on social media. 

6.7.7 The Council did not have a dedicated team of staff in place to communicate 
with the public or to send social media messages out throughout the duration 
of the fire.  Communication was facilitated by the Customers, Communication 
and Marketing Service staff as part of their daily routine on a priority basis.  
Due to the pressures caused by the incident and still having to undertake their 
daily work no one person had time available to them to trawl social media 
sites for inaccurate information or any misrepresentation of the situation. Out 
of normal office hours communication work was undertaken by the Out of 
Hours team on a goodwill basis. 

6.7.8 The Council’s website was updated regularly with information about the 
incident etc.  This was visible as a banner along the top of the Council’s front 
webpage, with a link in order to receive further information. 

6.7.9 North Wales Police would have taken the lead with respect of any evacuation 
to a rest centre if that had been required.  The Council had made provision for 
Cysgod y Gaer, Corwen to be available as an evacuation centre if required.  
County councillors were made aware of this decision, but it was not widely 
publicised as the need to evacuate had not been confirmed.  Local councillors 
were kept informed of the situation and of the centre’s availability if required, 
they were also informed when the arrangements were stepped down. 

6.7.10 ‘Communication is an art rather than a science.’  Councillors are important in 
the type of situation presented by the fire as they are well-placed to share 
messages amongst the communities they represent. One method for doing 
this would be for councillors to copy and paste the link on the Council’s 
webpage to the social media accounts they use to communicate with their 
residents. 

 

  

Tudalen 51



 

28 
 

6.8 Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water, 
they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.8.1 During the summer of 2018 Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) faced a 
sustained period of hot weather with very little rain. To respond to this it set up 
a Gold and Silver response to the weather incident which ran from the 27th 
June until the 22nd August. This response was required due to multiple water 
supply issues across Wales and Herefordshire.  

6.8.2 The two main areas of concern for DCWW in North Wales arising from the dry 
period were Cwellyn Water Treatment Works in Waunfawr, Caernarfon and 
Glascoed Water Treatment Works, near Bodelwyddan. These two areas 
required continued tanker support by the company’s Emergency Planning 
Logistics Team twenty four hours a day throughout this period to maintain 
supply for customers.  

6.8.3 No customers lost their water supply in the DCWW area over this time period.  
Due to this unprecedented support required over such a long period DCWW 
employed several contractors to assist with logistics. 

6.8.4 As a result of this exceptional dry weather a series of fires broke out across 
Wales. DCWW was therefore also providing support to North Wales Fire and 
Rescue Service (NWFRS) in several other locations including the Bethesda 
and Llŷn Peninsula areas. 

6.8.5 With respect of the fire on Llantysilio Mountain the company was initially 
asked for support with the water supply in the area on the 8th August 2018.  
This involved support from DCWW’s North East Distribution Team in Kinmel 
Park Bodelwyddan with the provision of a tanker filling point in Llandegla.  
Early on this fill point was determined to be ineffective at filling the fire tenders 
in an appropriate time.  DCWW therefore provided assistance with three 
articulated tankers over a twenty four hour period which held 25,000 litres 
each. These were used to fill fire tenders on site which allowed for a faster fill 
time for NWFRS.  

6.8.6 The tankers were situated on site in Llandegla for approximately four to five 
days and nights. Due to the volume of water being held on site in these 
tankers not all of the water was used so DCWW reduced the number of 
tankers to two per day. The articulated tankers were dispatched at 6am and 
returned to the DCWW depot at 10pm and were supplied by the company’s 
contractor.  These tankers held 30,000 litres each. 

6.8.7 This support continued until they were no longer required by NWFRS on or 
around the 20th Aug 2018. 

6.8.8 It was confirmed by DCWW that a problem was encountered with the hydrant 
that was initially used by NWFRS. The fault caused the automatic trigger 
mechanism to suspect a leak when the hydrant was in use, triggering the cut 
off valve to stop the water supply being pumped to houses at Tai Newyddion. 
The alarm was raised at Cardiff who mobilised an inspector to the area to 

Tudalen 52



 

29 
 

reset the pumps, this took approximately 45 minutes.  In the meantime 
DCWW directed the Fire and Rescue Service to use another hydrant nearby.  
In the wake of this incident DCWW has removed the hydrant to prevent a 
reoccurrence of a loss of water to the properties at Tai Newyddion and 
informed NWFRS of the alternative available hydrants in the area.  Work was 
currently underway to install an auto reset mechanism at the Water Pumping 
Station by 2020.  The company was working with NWFRS to decommission 
the faulty fire hydrant and use it only as a ‘wash out hydrant’.  Another hydrant 
approximately 20m away had been identified for designation as a ‘fire 
hydrant’. 

6.8.9 Local residents affected by the loss of pressure were contacted by telephone 
to advise them of the problem and every effort was made to reset the pumps 
as soon as possible.  The loss of pressure whilst water was being drawn to 
fight the fire was for an hour or so at the time, but the water quality in the area 
was satisfactory.  To safeguard residents’ welfare and ensure that adequate 
drinking water was available to all, DCWW purchased 260 pallets of mineral 
water which was made available for distribution in the area.  The company 
also commissioned articulated tankers to carry water to the area. 

 

6.9 Hafren Dyfrdwy Water Company  

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the Hafren Dyfrdwy Water 
Company, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.9.1 Hafren Dyfrdwy Water Company did not attend the inquiry meeting as it had 
little involvement with the fire incident on Llantysilio Mountain, but the 
company was happy to share with the Committee experiences from Severn 
Trent Water (with whom they have a working relationship) of assisting with 
similar fires on Staffordshire Moorland.  They identified the following key 
learning points from their experience there, and felt that the information may 
be useful to the inquiry: 

 As it was a hot and dry summer there was exceptionally high demand for 
water in significant parts of the network.  If the Fire and Rescue Service had 
taken water from their normal locations it would have meant customers going 
off supply.  It was therefore always best if the Fire and Rescue Service 
contacted the water company before drawing water from the network. 

 In Staffordshire good liaison existed between the water company and the Fire 
and Rescue Service about which parts of the treated water network had a 
reliable supply. 

 Arrangements were made for the Fire and Rescue Service to draw water from 
the company’s raw water sources rather than treated, as that did not put 
customer supplies at risk. 

 The company was able to provide the Fire and Rescue Service with access to 
their reservoirs and the company also took water to their location for local 
storage in ponds and tanks.   

Tudalen 53



 

30 
 

 Using raw water also meant that the water company did not have to use 
portable water tankers, keeping them free for the water company to use to 
support customer supply issues. 

 Water company managers attended the field command positions to liaise with 
the Fire and Rescue Service commander during the most sensitive periods of 
the response. 

 Early engagement was key to help the water company plan. 

 

6.10 Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the Horseshoe Pass 
Graziers Association, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.10.1 It was the view of the Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association that there was a 
deficiency during the early stages of the fire.  They feel that if the fire had 
been controlled at that early stage the secondary fire would not have taken 
hold.  Association members advised that controlled burns were not 
undertaken at this particular time of year, neither were they undertaken at 
night.  They were of the view that had NWFRS taken sufficient care to ensure 
that the initial fire had been extinguished the secondary fire would not have 
ignited.   

6.10.2 In their written and verbal evidence the Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association 
raised concerns that very little discussion had taken place with the graziers, 
apart from initial contact in order to establish access points to the mountain 
and also directions to the fire position during the original outbreak.  In the 
graziers’ view the Fire and Rescue Service was reluctant to involve graziers in 
any way, despite the graziers having useful knowledge of the area, quite 
possibly better than anyone else.  This point was also made by the owners of 
the land, Llantysilio Estate.  In addition, little or no discussions at all were held 
with the graziers who had stock on the mountain at the time of the fire. 

6.10.3 Local graziers offered various types of assistance to the Fire and Rescue 
Service i.e. a local water supply from a borehole (possibly insufficient in the 
long term), to transport water in agricultural tankers, cutting of fire breaks 
using their own machinery etc.  The graziers reported that all offers of 
assistance were declined, and advice given as to the unsuitability of certain 
areas for small appliance use was ignored. Consequently, there were 
incidences of Fire and Rescue Service vehicles overturning.  

6.10.4 As regards the Fire and Rescue Service’s role, the graziers felt that there was 
a lack of continuity.  Shift changes resulted in supervisors applying different 
ideas and policies, with no one person in control of work on the ground.  It 
was also perceived that many had little or no experience of dealing with such 
incidents and insufficient care was taken to ensure that the initial outbreak, 
which was quickly brought under control, was completely extinguished before 
leaving the site. The Graziers’ view was that the fire reignited resulting in the 
subsequent major incident. 

 

Tudalen 54



 

31 
 

6.11 Landowners 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the Landowners, they are 
not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.11.1 The landowners, Llantysilio Estate, stated that in their view had the small fire 
that ignited on the 19th July been “hit hard” at the outset it would not have 
spread.  They felt that the Fire and Rescue Service left the site too early, had 
they stayed on site until the fire was properly contained it would not have 
ignited the bracken debris which enabled it to take hold rapidly from then on. 

6.11.2 In their opinion there appeared to be a lack of communication between fire 
commanders during their change-overs on site, many of whom were attending 
from far afield. The Estate understood that a local farmer was on site for a 
substantial amount of time at the beginning of the fire and had to inform each 
commander of how and where to access the mountain and explain the routes 
for water carriers etc.  The Estate was of the view that there was no continuity 
in the application of ideas and tactics to fight the fire, with different shifts of 
personnel applying different tactics, with no one person in control of the work 
on the ground. 

 
6.11.3 The Estate questioned the decision to refuse offers of assistance by local 

farmers who had offered toppers to cut fire breaks.  In their view the cutting of 
firebreaks ahead of the fire front could have substantially mitigated the losses 
that actually occurred.  The Estate suspected that such offers may have 
possibly been refused on the grounds that they might cause damage to the 
SSSI status.  

 
6.11.4 To Estate personnel it appeared that many of the fire fighters had little or no 

experience in dealing with mountain and heather fires.  Consequently, fire-
fighter training should be extended to include recognition of the different types 
of ground vegetation including bracken (green bracken did not indicate that it 
was wet) as instructions were given by the fire and rescue service not to damp 
down areas of green bracken on the grounds that they were “wet”.  The Estate 
feels that this evidently highlighted a lack of understanding that there was 
always a substantial amount of dry bracken debris at ground level.   

 
6.11.5  The Estate felt that all offers of assistance were declined and advice given as 

to the unsuitability of certain areas for small appliance use was ignored. This 
led to incidences of vehicles overturning. Fire and Rescue Service training 
should therefore also extend to the use of the all-terrain vehicles in fully laden 
conditions to avoid the roll-overs that occurred.  In order to support and 
facilitate the development of these skills Llantysilio Estate would be agreeable 
to granting access to the land for training purposes. 

 
  

Tudalen 55



 

32 
 

6.12 Llantysilio Community Council 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of Llantysilio Community 
Council, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.12.1 Llantysilio Community Council raised concerns that no organisation or 
individual had made any contact with the clerk of the Community Council 
throughout the fire incident, despite its impact on the local community.  The 
Community Council had serious concerns about the intermittent road 
closures, which took place over the course of a month, and how they had 
impacted on local businesses, particularly tourist related business during one 
of the best summer seasons for a number of years.  The Community Council 
was firmly of the view that communication by all agencies dealing with similar 
incidents needed to improve. 

6.12.2 In its capacity as the ‘go to point’ for local people the Community Council 
would be more than willing to assist in communicating messages to residents 
and businesses etc. in the event of a similar incident happening in future.  It 
was therefore imperative that the local community council was included as a 
key partner/stakeholder in any future communication strategy for dealing with 
similar incidents. 

6.12.3 The Community Council felt that the County Council should be in a position to 
help support local businesses when a protracted incident like this happens in 
future. 

 

6.13 North Wales Regional Emergency Planning Service (NWREPS) 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of the North Wales Regional 
Emergency Planning Service, they are not necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.13.1 The regional Emergency Planning Service’s first involvement with the fire 
incident was on 26th July 2018 when it received an e-mail notification from 
Denbighshire County Council’s Duty Gold officer requesting operational 
support in the form of a mechanical digger.  At this point there was no specific 
action required from the NWREPS.  At 8pm on 27th July notification was 
received from North Wales Police’s Duty Emergency Planning Officer that the 
fire was advancing towards properties.  NWREPS through its representative 
organisations co-ordinated safety and welfare checks on residents, instigated 
work to prepare evacuation plans and arranged a rest centre for residents 
which may have needed to be evacuated at short notice. NWREPS continued 
to co-ordinate all potential evacuation and stand-by arrangements until 1st 
August when NWFRS, during a telephone conversation, stated that they were 
considering the establishment of a Tactical Co-ordinating Group (TCG) in 
order to update all partners.  This group was never formally established.  
During the fire incident a great deal of the liaison and information sharing 
between NWREPS and NWFRS took place over the telephone.  

Tudalen 56



 

33 
 

6.13.2 Following the conclusion of this incident, Denbighshire County Council held an 
internal debrief, attended by the Duty Emergency Planning Officer, to ensure 
any issues encountered during the response were identified and could be used 
to contribute to organisational learning.  This took place on 5th September 2018.  
Amongst the points raised at Denbighshire’s internal de-brief were the 
advantages of developing and adopting a forest fire/moorland plan that would 
be in place and available to call upon in the event of a similar occurrence 
happening in future.  The benefits of sharing details of the Emergency Planning 
(Gold Rota) more widely within the organisation was also identified as a 
possible measure to improve communication and co-ordination for similar 
events in future. 

6.13.3 By October 2018, no arrangements for a multi-agency debrief on this incident 
were in place.  Due to the multi-agency issues that had been raised in the 
internal Denbighshire County Council debrief, NWREPS submitted a request to 
the North Wales Local Resilience Forum for a multi-agency debrief to be held.  
The request was submitted on 10 October and officers of the Council attended 
a multi-agency debrief on 14 November 2018.   

6.13.4 NWREPS concluded that Denbighshire County Council’s response to this 
incident was timely, appropriate and proportionate.  Several staff from a range 
of departments and roles were involved over several days by linking-in with 
professional partners to support their requests in managing the fire event and 
its impact on the local area and its residents.  Appropriate post-incident 
activities were undertaken in the form of an internal debrief and contributing to 
the Local Resilience Forum’s multi-agency debrief. 

6.13.5 The Regional Emergency Planning Service also concluded that all agencies 
had worked well together and had been proactive in their approach to the 
situation.  As this incident was never formally designated as a Major Incident 
formal tactical coordination procedures were not instigated.  Whilst 
communications officers from each agency did link together well, in hindsight 
and due to the protracted nature of the event, communication would have 
benefited if a TCG had been established. 

6.13.6 NWREPS was of the view that having a readily available ‘template’ action plan 
for dealing with this type of incident in future would be worthwhile.  The North 
Wales Local Resilience Forum (NWLRF) was willing to consider and progress 
this suggestion.  To facilitate this the Local Resilience Forum’s Environment 
Group had included in its business plan an action to complete the 
development of a Wildfire Plan by April 2020.  NWREPS, on behalf of all local 
authorities in North Wales would assist with the Plan’s development. 

 

6.14 General public/residents 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of individuals, they are not 
necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.14.1 At the meeting in Llangollen on 20th March 2019 local residents shared their 
experiences and concerns in relation to the fire.  In addition to points already 

Tudalen 57



 

34 
 

raised by the various agencies and organisations local residents raised the 
following concerns:  

 at times, due to the density of the smoke coming off the mountain visibility in 
the area was down to 0.5km to 1km.  Constant inhalation of the smoke was 
very hazardous for those in good health let alone those in poor health, yet no 
health related bodies or organisations made contact with them to check on 
their welfare  

 consideration should be given to the installation of temporary air quality 
monitors to safeguard that there are no risks to the public’s health during 
these type of incidents 

 communication about the developing situation with residents was poor, non-
existent even, throughout the duration of the incident   

 whilst NRW’s own guidelines stated that no permission was required in an 
emergency situation such as a flood, storm etc. to dig trenches, cut 
firebreaks etc. one individual stated that he was denied permission to cut 
firebreaks by the Fire and Rescue Service, despite having had personal 
contact with three fire commanders 

 a list of local contractors to assist with the cutting of firebreaks etc. (similar to 
the winter maintenance contractor list) should be compiled and updated on a 
regular basis.  During emergencies these contractors could be called upon at 
short notice 

 

6.15 Additional information received following the meeting 

Please note that the views expressed below are those of individuals, they are not 
necessarily those of the Committee 

 

6.15.1 Denbighshire’s Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) staff who 
responded to the fire have advised that they did not have suitable resources 
available to them at present to undertake similar roles on a more frequent 
basis, for example, as a consequence of climate change. They have identified 
the following areas as ones that merit further investment in order to prepare 
AONB staff to respond to similar incidents in future.  However they were 
currently beyond the Service’s available budget: 

 Joint Training 
 Joint Exercises 
 Specialist Firefighting Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
 Firefighting equipment and transport  

 

6.15.2 Telecommunications:  whilst no telecommunications/TV/Radio masts in the 
area were affected by this particular fire consideration should be given when 
developing wildfire plans on how to deal with the potential loss of any masts 
and technology links and their immediate effect on emergency services’ 
response to incidents, local businesses, tourism and other industries and 
possibly local and national security.   

 

Tudalen 58



 

35 
 

6.16 Differing opinions 

Two separate fires 

6.16.1 There were differing opinions on whether the fires on 18th and 19th of July 
were one and the same, or two different fires. 

6.16.2  A county councillor for the Llangollen area and member of the Scrutiny 
committee disputes the Fire and Rescue Service’s conclusion that the fire on 
the 18th and 19th July were two separate incidents, advising that: 

“…I was there at the time when the fire reignited just after 2pm on 19th July. I 
was standing next to the [local member of the public]2 when he/she phoned 
for [assistance] 

I arrived on the scene just before 2pm as I returned from observing the 
Performance Scrutiny Committee. I stood chatting to the local farmer and a 
former game keeper about the fire and other incidents over the last few years. 
The game keeper was going around the edges of the fire trying to extinguish 
the place where it had just begun to reignite in very small areas. Shortly after 
2pm the fire reignited in a serious way at the highest part, suddenly reigniting 
a large area covered in gorse. Within about 5 minutes it became obvious that 
the fire needed the professional support of the fire brigade and a call was 
made by the [member of the public3].  

The fire brigade say that the fire reported on 19th July at 2.20pm was a 
different fire. This is not true as I was there with two other local residents. It 
was the same fire that reignited the gorse at the top edge of the original fire. 
The fire burnt very fiercely with huge flames appearing within two or three 
minutes.  

This is a crucial part of the evidence that supports the fact that the fire was 
deemed to be out and the fire brigade had been returned to base when the 
fire reignited. On the day of the Llangollen meeting a number of people 
commented that they thought more could have been done at the initial stage 
of the fire and that the fire brigade went back to base too quickly.”   

6.16.3 Responding to the above viewpoint North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 
subsequently re-affirmed its position in writing that the fire did not re-ignite as 
it was never declared as extinguished, this was the fire that ignited on 19th 
July. The fire on 18th July was viewed by NWFRS as a separate fire.  NWFRS 
also advised that:  

“Contrary to what was claimed at the meeting, North Wales Fire and Rescue 
Service ensured that fire appliances and officers were on scene continuously 
from 19th July 2018 until 13th September 2018. 

During the hours of darkness, when firefighting on the mountainside would 
have been unacceptably hazardous for firefighters, crews continued to watch 
over the area for signs of any sudden flare-ups or of the fire spreading.” 

                                                           
2 North Wales Fire and Rescue Service refer to this member of the public as “a local contact person” 
3 This was the same member of the public as referred to in footnote 3 – “a local contact person” 

Tudalen 59



 

36 
 

7. What worked well? 

 
7.1  The North Wales Local Resilience Forum (NWLRF) concluded following its 

post incident de-brief that: 
 the collaboration between all agencies at the scene was successful, with three 

organisations working together over a protracted period.  These organisations 
also stated that a good working relationship and a mutual level of trust existed 
between all the Category 1 responders (the main agencies) 

 once the agencies were in touch with the Incident Commander and other staff, 
updates were usually comprehensive, helpful and assisted the local authority 
response 

 Denbighshire County Council’s welfare and humanitarian team, responded 
quickly to mobilise a rest centre and have staff on standby in case they were 
needed 

 at an operational level regular Joint Emergency Services Interoperability 
Principles (JESIP) meetings between key partners achieved an agreement on 
actions and a shared awareness of the developing situation  

 the use of North Wales Police’s drone to gather information and 
understanding of the incident scale and progress of operations was invaluable 

 the provision of water supplies in water bowsers by the water utility 
companies in response to the automatic emergency cut-off system operating 
was successful, and provided a sufficient supply of water to the incident 
ground for the duration of the cut-off 

 firefighters worked tirelessly in very difficult terrain and conditions for a 
prolonged period of time.  There was substantial impact on NWFRS and its 
staff, a mixture of full-time and retained personnel, who did their utmost to 
control and extinguish the fire in challenging and exhausting conditions 

 there was good communication between NWFRS and Denbighshire County 
Council’s Highways Service to open roads when possible to help with traffic 
management, with the Police providing personnel to assist. 
 

  

Tudalen 60



 

37 
 

8. Stakeholders:  Lessons Learnt and Suggestions for 
Improvement 

8.1 Each organisation, agency, individual or affected party have identified their 
own learning points as a result of the fire incident and its consequences (the 
views listed in this section are those of the individuals and bodies listed and 
not necessarily those of the Committee): 

8.1.1 Land Management: 

With respect of land management practices the following aspects have been 
identified as lessons learnt or areas for improvement by the various agencies 
and those affected by the fire:   

 
North Wales Fire and Rescue Service (NWFRS) 

 the lack of robust land management activity in recent years meant that 
firebreaks on the mountain were limited and increased the amount of 
combustible material available to fuel the fire.  Effective and robust land 
management of upland areas would be key to reducing the risks associated 
with wildfires 

 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW): 

 future management of the mountain would benefit from NRW and partners 
(including Llantysilio Community Council) looking at a range of management 
techniques i.e. burning, mowing, roboflail etc. 

 the historical non-availability of payments for gorse management may have 
compounded the fire problem, due to increasing the amount of vegetation 
available to fuel the fire.  It was now acknowledged that this should be looked 
at as part of the site management package for the area.  Monitoring of any 
agreed works would also be important i.e. field visits to agree works, identify 
the age of the heather, etc.  Large upland sites could be monitored by using 
aerial photography.  Therefore, in the short-term, it would be beneficial to 
renew current land management agreements between NRW and Llantysilio 
Estate and to review the payment levels for the carrying out of works on the 
mountain 

 in the longer term NRW hoped to have Management Agreements in place 
with the 4 major landowners within the SSSI and also any other landowners 
who would wish to undertake positive management of their land.  Through 
these agreements NRW hoped to work with the landowners and the common 
land graziers to actively manage the heathland on the mountain through 
mowing and controlled burning 

 a need to urgently engage experts with past experience of remediation of 
upland moorland damaged by fire 

 looking ahead at changes to agricultural subsidies in Wales and the effects of 
BREXIT, both of which would have a significant impact on the agricultural 
industry and on land management practices in upland areas - the Welsh 
Government (WG) was currently proposing a change to a payment system for 
public goods rather than agricultural production.  It would therefore be vitally 
important for NRW to work with WG to develop new policies that would 

Tudalen 61



 

38 
 

support the WG’s vision whilst safeguarding upland areas, their habitat and 
the livelihoods of those who were dependent on them for their living 
 

Denbighshire County Council’s Countryside Services 

 the need for regular and effective land management work in moorland areas 
to mitigate against the risk of wildfires spreading 

 the benefits of having a dedicated resource, such as the former Moorland 
Field Officer post, to work with landowners and graziers to obtain the 
necessary consents to undertake land management work and to support them 
with developing the associated plans to enable them to access payments 
available for undertaking the work  

 the need to find a solution on how to deal with gorse and scrub on steep 
slopes where it was not possible to gain access with a tractor and where 
slopes were too steep to burn safely 

 

Landowners 

 effective and robust land management was key to reducing the risk and 
impact of such fires on the mountain in future.  Whilst the landowners did not 
have the resources required to undertake the required habitat management 
work they were eager to enter into management agreements with NRW to 
enable the graziers to access the funding available.  In addition the Estate 
would also undertake some management work itself, and would be willing to 
work with the authorities in relation to future management. 

 The vegetation on the area opposite the Ponderosa Café had become 
denatured through intense vehicle use and parking and some control or 
restriction of this may be beneficial to the management of the mountain 

 

Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association: 

 a need for NRW to work closer with the landowners and the graziers in 
respect of managing the mountain.  The farmers had warned NRW of the 
potential dangers of their management of the mountain, but this advice was 
ignored  

 current agricultural policies were contributing towards the decline in 
management of upland areas.  Fewer graziers and reduced manpower to 
undertake routine habitat management work led to upland moorland areas 
being more difficult to access for grazing and undertaking general husbandry 
work.  This coupled with the fall in demand for Welsh Mountain lambs 
produced in these types of areas meant that there was less incentive to 
maintain flocks on the mountain, as it was not economically viable to do so. 

 the cutting or burning of firebreaks should be reintroduced and the size of 
roadside verges should be increased, being wide enough to prevent any fires 
caused by passing motorists.   

 the mountain’s SSSI status and the perceived governance arrangements 
associated with it compounded the problem of utilising management 
practices.  The process for applying for land management payments should 

Tudalen 62



 

39 
 

also be simplified in order to aid better engagement with the process.  For 
farmers/graziers to feel confident to apply for the payments and undertake the 
work a mutual level of trust and confidence had to be built between them and 
NRW. At present they were fearful of the repercussions of accidentally, or due 
to adverse weather conditions, being unable to comply with NRW’s strict rules  

 all parties with interests in managing this and other areas, i.e. Natural 
Resources Wales, Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB, the landowners 
and graziers should work together to draw up and agree a cooperative policy 
to ensure the area’s future viability 

 with current indications being that future agricultural policy would be aimed 
towards paying farmers for delivering public goods, there was an urgent need 
for somebody to take the lead to drive projects forward and deliver them.  
Ideally one individual should be appointed to develop a cohesive plan that 
would be endorsed by all interested parties.  This officer could subsequently 
be charged with co-ordinating the delivery of the plan 

 In order to improve the level of habitat management and help reduce the 
potential for fire outbreaks in future, and lead to more effective control there 
needed to be greater cohesion between all parties, an awareness of each 
other’s requirements and a commitment towards working for a common goal. 
A change of attitude was needed by farmers, landowners, graziers and 
agencies alike. 

 

8.2 Each of the Category 1 responders have identified their own learning points 
as a result of responding to and managing the fire incident (the views listed in 
this section are those of the individual bodies listed and not necessarily those 
of the Committee): 

 

8.2.1 Fire incident and response to it: 

North Wales Fire and Rescue Service (NWFRS): 

Following a review of all the wildfire incidents it attended during the summer of 2018 
NWFRS identified six main areas of internal learning and improvement.  These 
being: 

 Incident command and control and the need for a consistent approach across 
all levels of command 

 command support and the need for systems to be standardised in order to 
better support the decision-making of the Incident Commander 

 resources, in particular vehicles, and the need to review their 
capability/capacity to support and enable the effective resolution of wildfires 

 the need to provide suitable and sufficient welfare facilities for staff during 
protracted incidents 

 the benefits of joint-working and the application of the Joint Emergency 
Service Interoperability Principles (JESIP);  

 the benefits of the proactive management of staff availability and how this 
impacted on the operational response and resolution of fires, staff, their 
families; and, in the case of retained members of staff, their employers; and  

Tudalen 63



 

40 
 

 the insistence on safety despite opposition from various individuals or groups 
contributed to there being no serious injury or loss of human life during a 
large, protracted fire  

 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW): 

 a need for the Fire Severity Index (FSI) on Access Land to be reviewed 
(NRW was already taking part in a UK wide review of the Fire Severity 
Index)  

 NRW as a Category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act (CCA) 
2004 could have called for the Tactical Command Group (Silver) to be 
established to aid co-ordination and sharing of information with common land 
graziers, local residents and the public 

 the holding joint familiarisation sessions between NWFRS, NRW and local 
authorities periodically would be useful in order to improve understanding of 
equipment and expertise availability within partner organisations 

 the importance of working closely with NWFRS and local authorities to 
develop fire plans for high risk sites.   

 

Denbighshire County Council: 

Countryside Service: 

 the need to designate similar incidents as an ‘major/emergency incident’, 
under the provisions of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, in order to invoke 
the establishment of a Tactical Command Group to formalise direct 
communication channels between all Category 1 responders to support 
prompt and effective information sharing between all involved and to maintain 
continuity during shift changes.   

 a need for better information sharing between all Category 1 responders on 
the type of equipment, knowledge, experience, and level of resources they 
had available to respond and manage similar incidents  

 

Highways Service: 

 the need to establish a formal Tactical Coordinating Group in order to aid 
communication and insight 

 all agencies should share information and intelligence on each other’s mutual 
capability to respond to such incidents  

 all agencies need to raise awareness of each other’s duties in relation to such 
incidents and the public’s expectations on them to ‘resume normal service’ 
(an effective communication strategy may aid the latter point). 

Public Protection Service: 

 consideration should be given to undertaking routine drinking water quality 
sampling during such incidents to ensure that there are no risks to people’s 
health   

Tudalen 64



 

41 
 

Customers, Communication and Marketing: 

 communication could have been better.  From the Council’s perspective it was 
important for it to maintain the consistency, quality and accuracy of the 
information it broadcast.  The establishment of a Tactical Co-ordinating Group 
would have ensured open communication channels between all agencies and 
facilitated effective joint information sharing between incident responders the 
public and affected parties   

 

North Wales Police: 

 the need to establish a Tactical Co-ordination Group to support effective 
communication and regular targeted information sharing to ensure that all 
agencies were fully informed 

 the need for a proactive media strategy in order to inform residents etc. on 
developments and reduce the risk of misinformation being distributed on 
social media  

 

Areas of learning identified by other parties affected by the fire 

Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association 

 the need for improved and continual communication with graziers and 
landowners in relation to the fire incident and the safety of stock etc.   

 utilisation of graziers, landowners and local residents’ knowledge of the area 
and terrain to mitigate against the risk of personal or vehicle accidents 
occurring   

 Fire and Rescue Service personnel should on a regular basis be provided 
with practical training on how to deal with wildfires and how to navigate 
difficult terrain on foot and in appropriately loaded all-terrain vehicles. 
 

Landowners 

 Improved communication required between Fire and Rescue Service 
personnel when changing shifts along with continuity of approach to tackling 
the fire 

 Greater utilisation of advice and knowledge of local people, graziers, farmers 
and landowners with respect of the local area and terrain would have avoided 
unnecessary accidents occurring  

 provision of further training to Fire and Rescue Service personnel to enhance 
their knowledge of the nature of wildfires and their unpredictability 

 Llantysilio Estate was willing to allow the Fire and Rescue Service access to 
the mountain for the purpose of training and developing personnel to gain the 
necessary skills to navigate difficult terrain to deal with wildfires 

 
Llantysilio Community Council 

 better communication required by all agencies with local residents and 
businesses to keep them informed about what was happening – the 

Tudalen 65



 

42 
 

community council could be utilised for the purpose of informing local 
residents 

 more assistance should be available from the County Council to local 
businesses when protracted incidents similar to this one happen 

 
North Wales Regional Emergency Planning Service (NWREPS) 

 better communication by all agencies through the provision of regular and 
consistent messages.  The establishment of a Tactical Co-ordinating Group at 
the earliest possible opportunity would support this as would designating the 
incident as an ‘Emergency Incident’ in order to instigate formal Emergency 
Planning procedures 

 as early as possible following the conclusion of the incident a multi-agency 
de-brief should be convened for the purpose of sharing experiences and 
identifying any lessons learnt from it 

 information on the Emergency Planning (Gold Rota) should be shared more 
widely amongst Category 1 responders 

 the development of a template Forest and Moorland Fire Plan for use by all 
agencies when responding to similar incidents in future 
 

  

Tudalen 66



 

43 
 

9. Summary and Conclusions of the Scrutiny Committee 

9.1 Land management 

9.1.1 Having reviewed the evidence submitted to it the Committee concludes that 
the lack of robust land management on Llantysilio Mountain contributed 
towards the length of the fire incident and its devastating effects.   

9.1.2 The Fire and Rescue Service stated that the lack of robust land management 
in recent years and the nature of terrain in the area had made it difficult at 
times for it to deal with the fire.   

9.1.3 The Committee agrees with the view of the Graziers Association that 
Llantysilio Mountain is not alone with regards to current habitat status and the 
overall lack of land management.  The situation is replicated in a number of 
upland areas across Wales due to the agricultural and environmental policies 
of central government, coupled with economic factors and the reduction in 
livestock numbers in recent years.  In addition, the number of graziers are 
reducing, leading to reduced manpower available for routine habitat 
management. When the habitat is not maintained, then accessibility for 
grazing is limited and the general husbandry, gathering etc. becomes more 
difficult.  It is widely acknowledged by graziers, farmers and Natural 
Resources Wales that the grazing of sheep, combined with managed burning 
and mowing are all essential elements of the maintenance of healthy, 
manageable and productive heathland. 

9.1.4 Of immediate concern in relation to Llantysilio Mountain is the future of the 
‘hefting flocks’ due to the fact that there will be very little grazing material for 
them to feed on the mountain following the fire.  If they are not turned up on to 
the mountain they will lose their hefting abilities which will consequently lead 
to the loss of the entire flocks, and leave the mountain ungrazed.  These 
flocks are key to the effective management of the mountain and help maintain 
its biodiversity.  Llantysilio Mountain is in the main an open mountain therefore 
it has to be grazed by ‘hefting flocks, as non-hefting flocks would roam across 
the mountain and would be unmanageable unless the mountain was fenced 
into sections. This would be an onerous and difficult task to undertake given 
the terrain and would in some measure change the nature of the landscape. 
Consequently, if the ‘hefting flocks’ were ‘lost’ the mountain would become 
extremely difficult to manage, and its healthy biodiversity and ecosystems 
would be at risk.   

9.1.5 Whilst management agreements with NRW were not available for funding 
habitat management work on Llantysilio Mountain since 2014, Consents 
(permissions) were granted for work to take place. Works were undertaken on 
the western side of the mountain, but little vegetation management took place 
on the eastern side during this time.  

9.1.6 It is therefore crucial that more active land management of the mountain takes 
place immediately and in future.  The Committee was encouraged to 
understand that NRW is keen for the landowners, graziers, Denbighshire 
County Council’s Countryside Service and Llantysilio Community Council to 
be involved with this work.  It is also encouraging that NRW wishes to see a 
partnership between the land owners, graziers, NWFRS, Denbighshire’s 

Tudalen 67



 

44 
 

Countryside Service and itself to improve moorland management on all moors 
in Denbighshire to reduce the risk of catastrophic fires.   

9.1.7 However, for this to be successful some longstanding barriers and levels of 
mistrust between the landowners, graziers, farmers and NRW need to be 
overcome.  There are strong feelings amongst the graziers that NRW has 
taken the responsibility for the management of the mountain away from hill 
farmers.  It was reported to the Committee that farmers had warned NRW of 
the potential dangers of their management practices but felt that the 
organisation had ignored this advice.  They also feel that the mountain’s SSSI 
status was problematic in respect of undertaking effective land management 
practices because of the levels of governance and bureaucracy entailed with 
seeking consents and executing the work.  In their view stringent rules relating 
to undertaking land management practices and for drawing down monies for 
the work were onerous and time consuming.  NRW’s enforcement role was 
perceived as a powerful factor in the unwillingness to undertake land 
management work in case errors were made which carried the risk of 
prosecution and/or financial penalties.  A change in attitudes which have 
constrained land management work from being undertaken is required.  
Consideration should be given to reintroducing regular cutting or burning of 
firebreaks and to increasing the width of roadside verges to prevent the risk of 
fires caused by passing motorists.   

9.1.8 To safeguard Llantysilio Mountain’s future it is essential that all stakeholders 
meet regularly to discuss and agree a way forward in relation to the 
restoration work and the future management of the mountain, and to help 
access any available funding.  Such meetings would be extremely useful in 
order to balance conflicting views, aid the understanding of each other’s 
priorities, help build relationships and increase levels of mutual trust.  The 
Graziers Association’s suggestion of developing a cooperative policy between 
all parties with interests in managing the mountain i.e.  Natural Resources 
Wales, Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB, the landowners, graziers, 
Llantysilio Community Council etc. may be a worthwhile one to pursue. 

 
9.1.9 The appointment of a moorland management officer, similar to the one which 

had been in existence during the Heather and Hillforts Project could help to 
draw such a partnership together.  This coordinator could work with all parties 
to identify and overcome specific barriers to retaining and managing moorland 
areas as part of the agricultural system and to establish long term 
management programmes to benefit upland grazing and the natural 
environment.  However, we do realise that funding for such a post will 
undoubtedly be limited. 

9.1.10 The Committee acknowledges that uncertainties in relation to future 
agricultural policies further compounds the problem of planning for the future. 

9.1.11 Nevertheless, it is pleasing to learn that Llantysilio Estate is willing to work 
with the authorities in relation to future land management work and that it is in 
discussion with NRW regarding management agreements with a view to 
assisting the graziers to access the land management funding available.  In 
addition, the Estate is also willing to undertake some of the land management 
work itself.   

Tudalen 68



 

45 
 

9.1.12 Confirmation that NRW and NWFRS are working together to develop 
Operational Tactical Fire Plans for the most vulnerable upland areas in North 
Wales is welcomed, as is the fact that all major agencies are open and willing 
to participate in joint training opportunities to prepare for such incidents. 

9.1.13 In order to improve the level of habitat management, reduce the potential for 
fire outbreaks in future and to lead to effective responses to wildfires there 
must be greater cohesion between all parties and an awareness of each 
other’s roles, capabilities and requirements in working towards a common 
goal. 

 

9.2  The fire incident and the management of it 

9.2.1 Having reviewed the evidence submitted to it the Committee concludes that 
there was no evidence upon which to determine whether the fire on Llantysilio 
Mountain during the summer of 2018 was accidental or deliberately ignited.  
Its effect was devastating due to what could be described as a ‘perfect storm’ 
- a combination of atmospheric and ground conditions that assisted the fire to 
burn above and below ground for an extensive period of time.  Despite this 
public safety was paramount and maintained throughout the incident and no 
dwellings were lost to the fire. 

9.2.2 The lack of robust land management resulting in the existence of limited 
firebreaks, dense vegetation and the presence of dry decomposed 
undergrowth provided the fire with added ‘fuel’.  Difficult terrain and the 
existence of voids posed problems to Fire and Rescue Service personnel 
attempting to navigate the mountain to extinguish the fire.  Whilst local 
farmers had generously offered to provide water to the Fire and Rescue 
Service to help fight the fire, this was not required as the Service, via its 
liaison with the water companies had access to a sufficient supply of water 
from the public water system to meet its needs.   

9.2.3 Under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 any Category 1 organisation involved 
with an incident similar to this one can designate the incident as 
‘major/emergency incident’.  However, the term ‘major/emergency incident’ 
means different things to different agencies.  As the Fire and Rescue Service 
had been mobilised to deal with the fire it took the role of the ‘lead 
organisation’ from the outset.  From the Fire and Rescue Service’s 
perspective the fire incident on Llantysilio Mountain did not meet its definition 
of a ‘major incident’.  In Fire and Rescue Service terminology a ‘major 
incident’ is an incident which the Service does not have sufficient resources to 
respond to and deal with it.  The Service considered that it had sufficient 
resources to deal with this incident despite its duration, hence the reason it 
was never designated as a ‘major incident’. 

Communication    

9.2.4 With the benefit of hindsight the Committee agrees with the view expressed 
by a number of the agencies, other stakeholders and the North Wales Local 
Resilience Forum, that the management of the fire incident would have 
benefited from it being designated as a ‘major/emergency incident’.  If this had 

Tudalen 69



 

46 
 

happened Emergency Planning procedures would have been instigated, 
including the establishment of a Tactical Coordination Group (TCG).  This 
would have facilitated the opening of communication channels between all 
agencies and affected parties and would have assisted with the provision of 
clear, agreed, consistent and proactive messages to the public.  
Communication, or the lack of clear, regular and consistent information to 
those affected by the fire was a recurring theme in the evidence submitted to 
the Committee.  Whilst the Committee acknowledges that it would be 
impossible to control social media and the public’s use, or misuse, of it, the 
existence of a TCG may have proved useful to respond to messages posted 
on social media through the provision of clear, accurate and timely information 
from those dealing with the incident.  The TCG could also have been used to 
provide the public with information from the various agencies on matters such 
as rights to cut firebreaks, road closures, air and water quality etc.  The 
Committee is therefore firmly of the view that a TCG should be established as 
early as possible during a response to an incident, such as a hill or mountain 
fire, floods etc., regardless of whether the incident is likely to be designated an 
‘major/emergency incident’ under the provisions of the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004.  The TCG could be stood down later if it became evident that it was not 
needed. 

9.2.5 In addition the establishment of a formal TCG would have facilitated an open 
communication channel between all agencies which would have ensured that 
each Category 1 responder had direct contact with each other, and were 
regularly updated on the situation as it developed.  It would also have enabled 
each agency to have a greater understanding of their mutual capability and 
the resources available to them.  Existence of a TCG would have assisted 
with the dissemination of information to local councillors, residents and the 
general public on a regular basis.  It would have also provided those affected 
by the incident with an accessible contact point for validated information. 

Fire or fires and how to deal with them in future? 

9.2.6 From the evidence submitted there is a difference of opinion on whether this 
fire was actually one fire or two separate fires.  In the professional opinion of 
North Wales Fire and Rescue Service, the fires on Llantysilio Mountain on 18th 
July and 19th July 2018 were two separate and unrelated incidents.  The Fire 
and Rescue Service is firmly of the view that the fire on the 19th July was 
“clearly not a re-ignition of the earlier fire” as it was located “some 361 metres, 
almost a quarter of a mile away from the location of the previous evening’s 
fire.”  Local residents and some other groups disagree with the Fire and 
Rescue’s opinion on this, as does one local county councillor who was 
present when the fire re-ignited.   

9.2.7 The Horseshoe Pass Graziers Association, landowners and residents 
expressed the view that there were deficiencies during the early stages of the 
fire.  They felt that if the fire had been controlled at that early stage the 
secondary fire would not have got hold as it did.  All these stakeholders were 
in agreement that had the fire been “hit hard” at the outset it would not have 
spread as it did.   

Tudalen 70



 

47 
 

9.2.8 Graziers and landowners expressed concerns that very little contact or 
discussion took place with them, apart from initial contact in order to establish 
access points to the mountain and gain directions to the fire position during 
the original outbreak.  They felt that the Fire and Rescue Service was 
reluctant to involve them in any way, despite the fact that they had useful 
knowledge of the area and had stock grazing on the mountain at the time.  In 
their view had their advice been heeded and their knowledge been sought the 
incidences of Fire and Rescue Service vehicles overturning may well have 
been avoided.  

9.2.9 Both graziers and landowners felt that there was a lack of continuity following 
shift changes which resulted in different ideas and approaches to dealing with 
the fire being applied.  They were left with the impression that no one person 
was in control of work on the ground, nor the same tactics applied, and that 
many of the Fire and Rescue Service personnel had little or no experience of 
dealing with mountain and heather fires.  Consequently, they were of the view 
that fire-fighter training should be extended to include recognition of the 
different types of ground vegetation including bracken, and the use of the all-
terrain vehicles in fully laden conditions to avoid the roll-overs that occurred.  
To facilitate the development of these skills Llantysilio Estate has offered to 
grant access to its land for training purposes. 

9.2.10 By their very nature wildfires such as this one are extremely unpredictable. 
The Committee agrees with the suggestion made at Denbighshire County 
Council’s internal de-brief on the advantages of developing and adopting a 
forest fire/moorland plan that would be in place and readily available for all 
agencies to call upon in the event of a similar occurrence happening in future.   

9.2.11 It is felt that the availability of a standard guide for all agencies would aid the 
response to similar incidents and facilitate open and effective communication 
between all involved (including local town and community councils).  The 
Committee is of the view that it would be useful if this plan included: 

1. a list of local contractors and resources to assist during emergencies with the 
cutting of firebreaks etc. (similar to the winter maintenance contractor list) 

2. information on how to deal with the potential loss of any 
telecommunications/TV/Radio masts and other crucial technology links and 
their immediate effect on the emergency services’ response to incidents, local 
businesses, tourism and other industries and possibly local and national 
security 

3. a requirement to liaise with the local Health Board and Public Health Wales 
where the welfare of sick and vulnerable residents is in question; and 

4. consideration of the installation of temporary air/water quality monitors to 
safeguard the public’s health during the duration of incidents;  

9.2.12 The Committee acknowledges that generally all agencies worked hard 
together and in good faith under what were extremely difficult conditions over 
a prolonged period of time, and had been proactive in their approach to the 
situation.    

 

  

Tudalen 71



 

48 
 

10. Recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee 

 

10.1 Following its joint review of the fire on Llantysilio Mountain incident the North 
Wales Local Resilience Forum (NWLRF) has already agreed its 
recommendations for implementation at future mountain fire incidents.  The 
Communities Scrutiny Committee endorses those recommendations, namely: 

 Responsible 
agency/organisation(s) 

 
(i) Convening of a physical or 

virtual Tactical Co-ordinating 
Group (TCG) to promote:  

 Multi agency 
interoperability 

 Consistent, proactive 
and agreed messages 
to public 

 Daily updates from 
agencies 

 Consideration of 
recovery issues earlier 
in response phase 

 Better understanding 
of the technical and 
equipment resources 
for firefighting across 
different organisations. 

 Understand the 
stresses and impacts 
on personnel in the 
primary (NWFRS) and 
supporting agencies 

 

 
All Category 1 responders 

(ii) To arrange and hold a joint 
familiarisation session to 
share knowledge and 
experience of heathland and 
grassland fires. This will also 
gain awareness of available 
resources and equipment of 
agencies across North Wales. 

 

 Denbighshire County Council 
 Natural Resources Wales 
 North Wales Fire and Rescue 

Service 

(iii) More structured engagement 
with graziers and landowners 
would assist in encouraging 
active land management. 
Consider using the National 

 Denbighshire County Council 
 Natural Resources Wales 
 North Wales Fire and Rescue 

Service 
 Conservation Land Managers 

Tudalen 72



 

49 
 

Strategic Arson Reduction 
Board (SARB) as a method of 
achieving wider support and 
buy in for reduction of wildfire 
risk. 
 

 Farmers 
 Graziers 

(iv) All agencies to review 
NWFRS gateway control 
procedures to ensure safety 
and for the incident command 
unit to be informed who is 
present at the scene 

 All agencies 

v) NRW to review Fire Risk 
Index and assess the 
information being fed into it.  
Once the index has been 
reviewed to share with other 
agencies 

 

 Natural Resources Wales 

(vi) Develop a regional wildfire 
plan for North Wales 

 

 Natural Resources Wales 
 North Wales Fire and Rescue 

Service 
 North Wales Local 

Authorities 
(vii) DCC and NRW to consider 

what further engagement is 
required to address concerns 
of local councillors and 
business interests that were 
affected during the response 
phase. 

 Denbighshire County Council 
 Natural Resources Wales 

 

10.2 In addition Communities Scrutiny Committee, proposes the following 
recommendations in relation to dealing with major/emergency incidents and 
requests that they be included in the Regional Wildfire Plan: 

 Responsible 
agency/organisation(s) 

(i) that a Tactical Co-ordinating 
Group should be established 
during the early stages of 
responding to a 
major/emergency incident, such 
as a wildfire, in order to 
facilitate a single-point of 
contact for all agencies, those 
affected, press/media and 
public to ensure that all involved 
are fully briefed on the 

 all Category 1 responders  
 

Tudalen 73



 

50 
 

developing situation on a 
regular basis.  The existence of 
this Group would aid effective 
handover of incident 
management responsibilities 
during shift changes.  The TCG 
could be stood down if it 
became clear that it was no 
longer needed;  

(ii) the development of a list of 
local contractors and resources 
to assist during emergencies 
with the cutting of firebreaks 
etc. (similar to the winter 
maintenance contractor list 
which local authorities compile 
on a regular basis).  

 Denbighshire County 
Council 

 North Wales Regional 
Emergency Planning 
Service 

 Natural Resources Wales 

(iii) information on how to deal with 
the potential loss of any 
telecommunications/TV/Radio 
masts and other crucial 
technology links and their 
immediate effect on the 
emergency services’ response 
to incidents, local businesses, 
tourism and other industries 
and possibly local and national 
security;  

 Denbighshire County 
Council 

 North Wales Fire and 
Rescue Service 

 North Wales Regional 
Emergency Planning 
Service 

 North Wales Local 
Resilience Forum 

(iv) a requirement to liaise with the 
local Health Board and Public 
Health Wales where the welfare 
of sick and vulnerable residents 
is in question; and 

 

 Denbighshire County 
Council  

 North Wales Fire and 
Rescue Service 

 Natural Resources Wales 
 North Wales Regional 

Emergency Planning 
Service 

 North Wales Local 
Resilience Forum 

(v) consideration of the installation 
of temporary air/water quality 
monitors to safeguard the 
public’s health during the 
duration of this type of incident;  

 

 Denbighshire County 
Council 

 Natural Resources Wales 
 North Wales Regional 

Emergency Planning 
Service 

 

 
 

Tudalen 74



 

51 
 

10.3 The Communities Scrutiny Committee recommends that an Upland/Moorland 
Management Officer post be established.  The Committee sees the benefits of 
this post to include leading on the effective co-ordination with the various 
agencies, landowners, farmers, graziers and local communities on land 
management activities and plans, with a view to supporting the habitat, 
ecosystems and economies of upland areas and reducing the risk of wildfires.  
Relevant agencies are recommended to agree on how this key post can be 
financed and supported.  

Responsible 
agency/organisation(s) 

 Denbighshire County Council 
 Natural Resources Wales 
 North Wales Fire and Rescue 

Service  
 

10.4 The Committee recommends that correspondence be sent to the Welsh 
Government seeking it to: 

 
(i) act urgently to make sure that future Agricultural Policies are aimed 

at securing the economic and environmental sustainability of upland 
and moorland areas across Wales by ensuring that sheep farming 
practices and production, essential components for effective and 
sustainable land management in these areas, is economically viable 
and maintained for the future; and  

 
(ii) to seek financial assistance for the restoration work on Llantysilio 

Mountain 
 

Responsible 
agency/organisation(s) 

 Denbighshire County Council 
 Natural Resources Wales 
 North Wales Fire and Rescue 

Service  
 

 

 

  

Tudalen 75



 

52 
 

11. Acknowledgements  

The Committee wishes to thank all services, agencies, organisations, businesses 
and individuals for their co-operation and assistance in undertaking this review.  All 
contributions, be they written, verbal, photographic or video footage have been 
extremely useful to the Committee in its work, and have helped ensure that the 
review’s findings are based on a broad cross-section of experiences and 
professional opinions.  The production of this report would not have been possible 
without everybody’s willingness to contribute and engage with the review.  

We are confident that all involved or affected by the fire will give due consideration to 
our recommendations and will endeavour to work effectively together with a view to 
averting a similar incident occurring in future.  If, another wildfire ignited or a similar 
emergency incident did occur, we hope that the lessons learnt from this particular fire 
will result in any multi-agency response being effectively co-ordinated, with all 
partners and stakeholders being kept abreast of developments on a regular basis.  

As a Committee we sincerely hope that given time and the appropriate support the 
habitat on Llantysilio Mountain will recover and that the local economy and 
communities will benefit as a consequence.  We genuinely hope that the lasting 
legacy of the environmental tragedy that happened on this particular mountain will be 
that the lessons learnt will have a positive effect on land management, the 
prevention of fires or the subsequent response to moorland fires wherever or 
whenever they occur, in Denbighshire, across Wales and further afield. 

  

Tudalen 76



 

53 
 

12. Glossary of Terminology 

Abbreviation  Full title or name 
  
AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
Category 1 
Responder 

An agency which is designated under the Civil Contingencies 
Act 2004 as a Category 1 responder – in the case of those 
involved with this particular fire they were North Wales 
Police, North Wales Fire and Rescue Service, Natural 
Resources Wales and Denbighshire County Council    

CCA 2004 Civil Contingencies Act 2004 
CRoW 2000 Countryside Rights of Way Act 2000 
DCC Denbighshire County Council 
DTM Duty Technical Manager 
DCWW Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water 
FSI Fire Severity Index 
FRS Fire and Rescue Service 
ICU Incident Command Unit 
JESIP Joint Emergency Service Interoperability Procedures 
LEI Landscape Enhancement Initiative 
LRF Local Resilience Forum 
NNR National Nature Reserve 
NRW Natural Resources Wales 
NWLRF North Wales Local Resilience Forum 
NWFRS North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 
NWP North Wales Police 
NWREPS North Wales Regional Emergency Planning Service 
PCSO Police Community Support Officer(s) 
PPE Personal Protective Equipment 
SAC Special Area of Conservation 
SARB Strategic Arson Reduction Board 
SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest 
TCG Tactical Co-ordination Group 
  
Hefting (the Welsh term is ‘cynefin’)  

is a traditional method of managing flocks of sheep on large 
areas of common land and communal grazing, it allows 
different farmers or graziers in an extensive landscape such 
as moorland to graze different areas without the need for 
fences, each ewe keeps to her particular flock’s area of the 
mountain/common.  Hefting flocks have been bred over a 
number of generations.  Initially, sheep had to be kept in an 
unfenced area of land by constant shepherding. Over time 
their territory has become learned behaviour, passed from 
ewe to lamb over succeeding generations.  These flocks 
therefore have an instinctive ability to keep to a certain 
heft/(cynefin) (a small local area) throughout their lives and 
as a result the lambs learn their heft from their mothers 

 

Tudalen 77



 

54 
 

 

Tudalen 78



 

55 
 

Appendix 1 

Map showing approximate area of Llantysilio Mountain affected by the fire (copyright of Natural Resources Wales) 

T
udalen 79



 

56 
 

  

Tudalen 80



 

57 
 

Appendix 2 

Timeline of the fire incident and its management 

Timeline of all organisations’ involvement with the fire and related activities from the 
first report to the Emergency Services to it being declared extinguished 

 
Date Activity 
18th July 2018 At 11pm North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

(NWFRS) responded to a 999 call reporting a fire 
“behind the Conquering Hero…just above 
Maengoron Isaf, Rhewl”.  Fire personnel were 
actively involved in bringing this fire under control 
until the morning of 19th July. (see section 6.16 of 
the report on ‘Differing Opinions’) 

19th July NWFRS stated that from 1:49am on the morning 
of the 19th July resources were scaled down 
incrementally as the fire was gradually brought 
under control.  A crew of 4 firefighters remained 
on fire watch and located and dealt with a single 
area of re-ignition shortly after 3.30am.  More 
resources were brought back to the area and 
proceeded to damp down hot spots for the next 2 
hours before it was determined that no further 
action would be needed.  As a precaution, a re-
inspection of the area was programmed for 7am 
that day.  By 7:40am the re-inspection had 
confirmed that the fire was out, although smoke 
could still be seen issuing from the burnt ground.  
A member of the public was in attendance at the 
time, and confirmed that he/she would be 
monitoring the area throughout the day.  A 
message received from the scene at 8:21am 
confirmed that the site would probably continue to 
smoulder for another 48 hours, which might 
prompt further 999 calls from members of the 
public.  This did occur, 2 calls were received at 
11:39am & 12:02pm reporting smoke rising, but 
no flames.  A call was made by NWFRS to a local 
member of the public who was in contact with the 
Fire and Rescue Service at approximately 
11:50am who confirmed that although there were 
occasional flare-ups they were dying down and in 
his/her opinion NWFRS attendance was not 
required. 
  
 
2.20pm:  a 999 call was received at the Fire and 
Rescue Service’s Control Centre in St. Asaph 
reporting a fire burning on the mountain.  This fire 

Tudalen 81



 

58 
 

was approximately 361 meters (quarter of a mile) 
away from the location of the fire of the previous 
evening, and was therefore in the professional 
opinion of NWFRS not a re-ignition.  NWFRS 
dealt with this incident from then until it was 
officially declared closed at 1:45pm on 25th 
September 2018.   
 
North Wales Police (NWP) received a report from 
NWFRS stating there was a fire on Llantysilio 
Mountain and asking if NWP could assist.  The 
request was for officers to attend and speak with 
occupants of houses in the area to make them 
aware of the fire.  There was no requirement to 
evacuate at this time.  Within a short period of 
time, and without any officers having to attend, 
NWFRS called the Police back cancelling the 
request as they had matters in hand. 
 
Fire reported to Denbighshire’s Countryside 
Services by a local resident.  Fire and Rescue 
Service were already in attendance when 
Countryside Services arrived.  Countryside 
Services made available both its ‘Fire Foggers’ 
and staff, who worked alongside NWFRS staff in 
a bid to bring the fire under control, staff 
continued to work alongside the NWFRS 
throughout the week. 
 
News of the fire reported to Natural Resources 
Wales (NRW) via Denbighshire County Council’s 
Countryside Services – Countryside Services and 
NWFRS staff in attendance.  NRW do not attend 
fires on private land unless a request for 
assistance is received from the Fire and Rescue 
Service 

20th July NRW discussed the equipment they had available 
with NWFRS & the Council’s Countryside Service 
and offered the use of off road vehicles.  Tracked 
vehicle not required at that time 

24th July According to Countryside Services the fire 
appeared to be out on this date 

25th July NRW considered the fire to be extinguished, but it 
re-ignited and a change in wind direction moved 
the fire south towards a forest plantation. 
 
The Council’s Countryside Services also stated 
that by this date the fire appeared to have re-
ignited and was burning out of control 

Tudalen 82



 

59 
 

26th July NWFRS asked if the Police could determine the 
availability of a drone and pilot in order to assist 
them to check the extent of the fire on the 
mountain.  Police drone pilot and spotter made 
available and both attended at the Ponderosa at 
2:30pm.   
 
NRW agreed with NWFRS that a trench could be 
dug within the SSSI on the edge of a block of 
woodland to protect forestry and adjacent 
properties.  Due to a change in wind direction the 
fire did not approach the woodland. 

27th July Denbighshire County Council’s Highways 
Service’s first involvement with the fire was during 
the late afternoon of 27th July when Countryside 
Services requested a flail mower to cut back 
bracken at the edge of the carriageway on the 
Horseshoe Pass. 
 
Overnight and into Saturday the conditions 
worsened as the fire approached the main road.  
A request was received, from NWFRS via 
Countryside Services, to put in place a road 
closure.  During the day, and more especially into 
the evening, conditions worsened as the fire 
approached the Ponderosa and the Highways 
Service was asked to ‘beef up’ the closure by 
putting in staffed control points as people were 
still choosing to drive through the area.  
 
The Highways staff were stood down and 
replaced by the Police on the staffed control 
points. 
 
The Council’s Highways Service closed the road 
on safety grounds (due to smoke affecting 
visibility).  Police media team engaged.  It was 
confirmed by the Police that NWFRS had not 
declared this a ‘Major/Emergency’ Incident.  
Police Drone and two operators at the scene.  
Additional Police resources attended as the fire 
was spreading.  Sufficient staff were available 
should the requirement to evacuate be made.  
The majority of Police staff were Police 
Community Support Officers (PCSOs) assisting at 
the road closure points with the Council’s 
Highways Service staff.   
 
The Police made contact with six nearby 
properties to ensure they were aware of the 

Tudalen 83



 

60 
 

situation and assess options should the need to 
evacuate arise.  According to the Police this was 
a resource intensive day, with officers on site all 
day and night. 
 
The Council established a rest centre in 
readiness for an evacuation of properties 
following liaison between the Council, NWFRS, 
NWP & North Wales Regional Emergency 
Planning Service (NWREPS).  Of 12 local 
residents that may have to be evacuated 6 would 
require accommodation, the remainder had 
access to alternative provision.  Evacuation not 
eventually required. 
 
NWFRS requested firebreaks be cut in order to 
slow down the fire which had reached the slopes 
of Moel y Faen, above the Horseshoe Pass.  The 
Council’s Countryside Services and Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) officers 
arranged for NRW to undertake the work.  NRW 
provided machinery and expertise to undertake 
the mowing of fire breaks (2 men and machinery 
deployed and remained on site for 6 days).  This 
work was undertaken under the direction of the 
Fire and Rescue Service 
 
During the evening the fire advanced towards the 
Horseshoe Pass road and NWFRS requested 
that breaks be cut alongside the road – this 
required a tractor with a side-mounted flail which 
DCC’s Highways Service provided.  Countryside 
Service Rangers continued to work alongside 
NWFRS staff to bring the fire under control 

28th July 10 properties potentially at risk from the fire, but 
weather conditions, and the road forming a 
firebreak, were favourable.  Rest Centre retained, 
but not used.  Ponderosa Café evacuated 
overnight 

29th July Conditions had eased a little and no properties 
were now under threat, but NWFRS still wanted a 
road closure in place, staffing it in the longer term 
was going to be unfeasible for the County’s 
Highways Service.  With just a few cones in place 
it was clear that some road users would ignore 
the unstaffed road closure point and try to use the 
road thus putting themselves and fire service 
personnel in jeopardy as they were working off 
the carriageway in what was sometimes almost 
zero visibility due to the smoke. As a result the 

Tudalen 84



 

61 
 

Highways Service opted to collect water filled 
barriers from its depot and deploy these to give a 
robust, physical deterrent accompanied by better 
defined signing.  During subsequent days, and 
depending on the conditions, the Highways 
Service deployed a combination of this physical 
barrier arrangement or single lane traffic control – 
which was mainly there to give a protection zone 
to fire personnel who were still having to work off 
the carriageway below the top layby. 
 
Rest Centre stood down, but state of alert 
maintained. 
 
Large areas of the fire continued to smoulder 
underground therefore Countryside Services 
personnel continued to work with NWFRS staff to 
dampen down these areas.  This work continued 
until 1st August. 

30th July Further NRW tractor and hedge flail deployed at 
the NWFRS’s request.  Local NRW staff visit the 
Incident Command Unit (ICU) everyday up until 
the 17th August 

1st August  During the morning all NRW off road vehicles 
were withdrawn from the site.  
 
During the afternoon/evening a meeting of all 
agencies was held at the ICU (NWFRS, County 
Council’s Countryside & Highways Services, 
Police, NRW Operational and Local Teams, and 
local County Councillor). 
 
NRW was requested to withdraw public access to 
the Access Land on Llantysilio Mountain once the 
road was re-opened.  (Relevant authorities have 
powers under the Countryside and Rights of Way 
(CRoW) Act 2000 to restrict access for the 
purposes of fire prevention, but only when 
exceptional conditions exist – NRW was the 
‘relevant authority’ in this case).  Relevant 
authorities use the Fire Severity Index (FSI)4 
provided by the UK Meteorological Office to 
assess whether conditions are exceptional). 
 
NWREPS log indicated that NWFRS was 
considering the establishment of a Tactical Co-
ordinating Group (TCG) in order to update all 

                                                           
4 The Fire Severity Index (FSI) is provided by the Meteorological Office and is used by relevant authorities in England and Wales to assess 
whether conditions are exceptional. 

Tudalen 85



 

62 
 

partners – a TCG was never formally established.  
At this point NWREPS involvement with the 
incident ceased. 
 
This was the last date that the Council’s 
Countryside Service received a formal request for 
operational support from NWFRS, although the 
Service kept in contact with the Fire and Rescue 
Service throughout August. 

2nd August Main road (A542) re-opened but NRW was 
unable to support the suspension of public access 
as per the request the previous day as “the Fire 
Severity Index (FSI)5 had not reached the 
exceptional level for the area which would 
suspend the right of access for fire prevention.”  

4th August Ten reports of re-ignition were received by the 
Police therefore the road remained closed.  The 
Police’s involvement with the incidents was 
mainly around emergency road closures. 

6th August Fire smouldering in the area of the road in the 
Horseshoe Pass itself.  NRW advised that it had 
no objection to home owners cutting vegetation in 
this area, but safety concerns raised by Fire and 
Rescue Service. 

7th August A meeting took place between NRW, the agent 
for the Llantysilio Estate, the County Council’s 
Countryside Services and NWFRS to discuss 
whether any further mowing was required. 

8th August Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) received an 
initial request for support in the Llantysilio 
Mountain area with the water supply.  This 
involved the provision of a tanker filling point in 
Llandegla.  It became apparent early on that this 
fill point was ineffective in filling the fire tenders in 
an appropriate time.  Therefore DCWW provided 
assistance in the form of 3 articulated tankers 
over a 24 hour period, each holding 25,000 litres 
of water – these were used to fill fire tenders – 
and were located on site in Llandegla for 
approximately 4 to 5 days and nights.  Due to the 
volume of water held in the tankers on site not all 
of the water was used, consequently a decision 
was taken to reduce the number of tankers to two 
per day.  These tankers were supplied by 
DCWW’s haulage contractor and held 30,000 
litres of water each and were despatched from 
the depot at 6am and returned at 10pm.  This 

                                                           
5. The FSI provides a trigger for fire prevention restrictions on access land mapped under the Countryside and Rights of Way Act (2000). 
Fire prevention restrictions aim to minimise accidental fires on access land vulnerable to wildfires by suspending open access rights when 
conditions become exceptional (FSI level 5).   

Tudalen 86



 

63 
 

support continued until they were no longer 
required by NWFRS, on or around the 20th 
August. 

10th August NWFRS requested assistance from NRW with 
further fire break creation or flailing, but NRW’s 
equipment was not available due to annual 
servicing and main operator being on annual 
leave. 

14th August Contractor for the Llantysilio Estate met NWFRS 
and NRW on site. NWFRS advised the contractor 
where mowing would be beneficial. Contractor 
decided which locations were suitable for mowing 
based on previous experience and the available 
equipment. This was agreed on site and mowing 
carried out that evening. 

17th August BBC Wales News reports ‘Llantysilio mountain 
fire ‘out’ after burning for 40 days’ as NWFRS had 
said that staff should finally leave the scene:  
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-45218857    

circa 20th 
August 

Area declared safe to enable all highways 
restrictions to be removed. 

5th September NRW informed by NWFRS that the ICU had been 
removed from the site. 

13th 
September  

NWFRS withdraw from site. 

25th 
September 

NWFRS formally close down the incident at 
1:45pm. 

 

Tudalen 87



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Adroddiad i’r:    Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   5 Medi 2019 
  
Swyddog Arweiniol:   Cydlynydd Craffu 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Cydlynydd Craffu  
 
Teitl:     Rhaglen Waith Craffu  
 

 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 
 Mae’r adroddiad yn cyflwyno drafft rhaglen waith i’r dyfodol y Pwyllgor 

Craffu Cymunedau i’r aelodau ei hystyried. 
 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 
 Gofyn i’r Pwyllgor adolygu a chytuno ar ei raglen waith i’r dyfodol, a rhoi’r 

wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i aelodau ar faterion perthnasol. 
 
3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
  
 Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried yr wybodaeth a ddarparwyd ac yn: 
 
3.1 cymeradwyo, diwygio neu'n newid ei raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol fel y gwêl yn 

briodol; 
 

3.2 enwebu cynrychiolydd i fod ar y ‘Bwrdd Prosiect isadeiledd i’w gwneud yn 
haws cynnal digwyddiadau’; a  

 
3.3 Penodi dau gynrychiolydd i fod ar y Grŵp Monitro Safonau Ysgolion. 
 
4. Manylion am yr adroddiad. 
 
4.1 Mae Adran 7 o Gyfansoddiad Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn nodi cylch 

gorchwyl, swyddogaethau ac aelodaeth pob Pwyllgor Craffu.  Mae’r Adran 
hon hefyd yn cynnwys rheolau gweithdrefnau a thrafodaeth ar gyfer 
cyfarfodydd pwyllgorau.   

 
4.2 Mae’r Cyfansoddiad yn amodi bod yn rhaid i bwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor 

baratoi ac adolygu rhaglen ar gyfer eu gwaith i’r dyfodol. Drwy adolygu a 
blaenoriaethu materion mae modd i aelodau sicrhau fod y rhaglen waith 
yn cyflwyno rhaglen dan arweiniad yr aelodau.  

 
4.3 Arfer sydd wedi’i fabwysiadu yn Sir Ddinbych ers nifer o flynyddoedd yw 

bod pwyllgorau craffu’n cyfyngu ar nifer yr adroddiadau a ystyrir mewn 
unrhyw gyfarfod i uchafswm o bedwar, yn ogystal ag adroddiad rhaglen 
waith y Pwyllgor ei hun. Nod y dull hwn yw hwyluso cael trafodaeth fanwl 
ac effeithiol ar bob pwnc. 

Tudalen 89

Eitem Agenda 6



 
4.4 Yn y blynyddoedd diweddar mae Llywodraeth Cymru a Swyddfa Archwilio 

Cymru wedi tynnu sylw at yr angen i gryfhau rôl craffu ar draws 
llywodraeth leol a gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys 
defnyddio craffu fel modd o ymgysylltu â phreswylwyr a defnyddwyr 
gwasanaeth. O hyn ymlaen disgwylir i graffu ymgysylltu'n well ac yn 
amlach â'r cyhoedd gyda golwg ar sicrhau penderfyniadau gwell a fydd yn 
y pen draw yn arwain at well canlyniadau i ddinasyddion. Bydd Swyddfa 
Archwilio Cymru yn mesur effeithiolrwydd craffu wrth gyflawni'r 
disgwyliadau hyn. 

 
4.5 Gan ystyried y weledigaeth genedlaethol ar gyfer craffu ac ar yr un pryd 

ganolbwyntio ar flaenoriaethau lleol, argymhellodd y Grŵp Cadeiryddion 
ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu (GCIGC) y dylai pwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor, 
wrth benderfynu ar eu rhaglenni gwaith, ganolbwyntio ar y meysydd 
allweddol canlynol:  

 
 arbedion ar y gyllideb; 
 cyflawni amcanion y Cynllun Corfforaethol (gyda phwyslais arbennig ar y 

modd o’u cyflawni yn ystod cyfnod o galedi ariannol);  
 unrhyw eitemau eraill a gytunwyd gan y Pwyllgor Craffu (neu'r GCIGC) 

fel blaenoriaeth uchel (yn seiliedig ar y meini prawf profion ‘PAPER’ - 
gweler ochr gefn y ‘ffurflen gynnig aelodau’ yn Atodiad 2 ) a; 

 Materion brys, materion na ellir eu rhagweld neu faterion â blaenoriaeth 
uchel 

 
 Ffurflenni Cynnig ar gyfer Craffu 
4.6 Fel y crybwyllwyd ym mharagraff 4.2 uchod, mae Cyfansoddiad y 

Cyngor yn gofyn i bwyllgorau craffu baratoi ac adolygu rhaglen ar gyfer 
eu gwaith i’r dyfodol. Er mwyn cynorthwyo’r broses o flaenoriaethu 
adroddiadau, os yw’r swyddogion o’r farn fod pwnc yn haeddu’r amser i 
gael ei drafod ar agenda fusnes y Pwyllgor, mae’n rhaid iddynt wneud 
cais ffurfiol i’r Pwyllgor i ystyried derbyn adroddiad ar y pwnc hwnnw. 
Gwneir hyn trwy gyflwyno ‘ffurflen gynnig’ sy’n egluro pwrpas, 
pwysigrwydd a chanlyniadau posibl y pynciau a awgrymir. Nid oes un 
ffurflen gynnig wedi dod i law oddi wrth swyddog i’w ystyried yn y 
cyfarfod cyfredol. 

 
4.7 Er mwyn gwneud gwell defnydd o amser craffu drwy ganolbwyntio 

adnoddau pwyllgorau i graffu testunau’n fanwl, gan ychwanegu gwerth 
drwy’r broses o wneud penderfyniadau a sicrhau gwell canlyniadau ar 
gyfer preswylwyr, penderfynodd y GCIGC y dylai’r aelodau, yn ogystal â 
swyddogion, gwblhau 'ffurflenni cynnig ar gyfer craffu’ yn amlinellu pam 
eu bod yn credu y byddai'r testun yn elwa o fewnbwn craffu. Gellir gweld 
copi o ‘ffurflen gynnig' yn Atodiad 2. Mae ochr gefn y ffurflen hon yn 
cynnwys siart lif sy'n rhestru'r cwestiynau y dylai aelodau eu hystyried 
wrth baratoi i gynnig eitem ar gyfer craffu, ac y dylai pwyllgorau eu gofyn 
wrth benderfynu ar addasrwydd testun arfaethedig i'w gynnwys ar raglen 
gwaith i’r dyfodol craffu. Os, ar ôl cwblhau’r broses hon, y penderfynir 
nad yw’r testun yn addas i’w craffu’n ffurfiol gan bwyllgor craffu, yna 

Tudalen 90



gellir ystyried dulliau eraill o rannu’r wybodaeth neu craffu ar y mater e.e. 
darparu ‘adroddiad gwybodaeth', neu os yw’r mater yn un o natur leol 
gellir ei graffu gan y Grŵp Aelodau Ardal (GAA) perthnasol. Ni ddylai 
unrhyw eitemau gael eu cynnwys ar raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol heb i 
‘ffurflen gynnig ar gyfer craffu' gael ei chwblhau, ac i’r testun gael ei 
gymeradwyo i'w gynnwys ar y rhaglen gan un ai'r Pwyllgor neu’r GCIGC. 
Mae cymorth ar gael i lenwi’r ffurflenni gan y Cydlynydd Craffu. 

 
4.8 Er mwyn gallu neilltuo’r cyfarfod presennol i drafod adroddiad y Pwyllgor 

ar dân Mynydd Llantysilio, yn y cyfarfod diwethaf, penderfynodd yr 
aelodau aildrefnu’r drafodaeth ynghylch yr eitemau canlynol i gyfarfod y 
Pwyllgor ar 24 Hydref: 

 Cyfrifoldebau Rheoli Llifogydd yn Sir Ddinbych 

 Dyluniad Gwasanaeth Gwastraff ac Ailgylchu Newydd Arfaethedig 

 Strategaeth Arwyddion Twristiaeth Sir Ddinbych 

Ar ôl trafod gyda swyddogion, mae bellach yn amlwg y byddai’n rhy fuan 
trafod dwy o’r eitemau uchod ym mis Hydref, sef:  

(i) Cyfrifoldebau Rheoli Llifogydd yn Sir Ddinbych:  Mae Cyfoeth Naturiol 
Cymru (CNC) wedi penderfynu y bydd y gwaith a wnaeth mewn perthynas 
â Ffos y Rhyl a Gwter Prestatyn yn mynd ymlaen i 3ydd cam. Bydd hwn yn 
ceisio datblygu camau gweithredu penodol ar gyfer y lleoliadau a fydd yn 
wirioneddol fanteisiol i’r Rhyl a Phrestatyn o ran llifogydd. Tan mae’r 3ydd 
cam hwn wedi’i gwblhau, mewn oddeutu 12 mis, mae swyddogion yn 
credu na fyddai’n ddefnyddiol iawn gwahodd CNC a Dŵr Cymru i’r 
Pwyllgor Craffu tan mae Cam 3 wedi’i gwblhau gan na allent 
ddadansoddi’r sefyllfa’n gyfan gwbl.  Mae felly wedi’i aildrefnu y bydd yr 
adroddiad yn dod ger bron y Pwyllgor fis Hydref 2020.  Yn y cyfamser, os 
yw’r aelodau lleol yn dymuno, mae swyddogion y Cyngor yn barod i ddod 
i Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau i roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i gynrychiolwyr 
lleol am y cynnydd hyd yma ynghlwm â’r astudiaeth.  

 
(ii) Strategaeth Arwyddion Twristiaeth Sir Ddinbych:  Oherwydd pwysau 

staffio, yn anffodus, nid yw’r Gwasanaeth wedi gallu parhau â’r gwaith i 
ddatblygu strategaeth arwyddion twristiaeth fel y disgwylid yn wreiddiol.  
Fodd bynnag, mae’r Cyngor yn ddiweddar wedi recriwtio Peiriannydd 
Traffig i swydd sydd wedi bod yn wag ers peth amser, felly mae’r 
Gwasanaeth yn hyderus y gall ddatblygu’r prosiect hwn dros y misoedd 
nesaf.  O ganlyniad, mae’r adroddiad wedi cael ei aildrefnu ar gyfer 
cyfarfod y Pwyllgor ar 12 Mawrth 2020. 

4.9 Rhaglen Waith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet 

Wrth benderfynu ar eu rhaglen waith i’r dyfodol mae’n bwysig fod 
pwyllgorau craffu yn ystyried amserlen rhaglen waith y Cabinet. Ar gyfer 
y diben hwn, mae rhaglen waith y Cabinet wedi ei chynnwys yn Atodiad 
3.  

 
4.10 Datblygiad Penderfyniadau’r Pwyllgor 

Yn Atodiad 4 mae tabl yn crynhoi penderfyniadau diweddar y Pwyllgor ac 
yn cynghori aelodau am eu gweithrediad.  

Tudalen 91



 
5. Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu 
 

Dan drefniadau craffu’r Cyngor mae’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-
gadeiryddion Craffu (GCIGC) yn gweithredu fel pwyllgor cydlynu.  
Cyfarfu’r Grŵp ar 31 Gorffennaf 2019.  Yn y cyfarfod hwnnw, gofynnodd 
i’r Pwyllgor hwn ystyried adroddiad Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru ar y pwnc 
‘Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol mewn perthynas â Llifogydd’.  
Mae cyflwyniad yr adroddiad wedi’i drefnu am y tro yn rhaglen waith i’r 
dyfodol y Pwyllgor ar gyfer ei gyfarfod ar 24 Hydref (gweler Atodiad 1).  
Cynhelir cyfarfod nesaf y Grŵp ar 11 Medi 2019.    

 
6. Cais am gynrychiolwyr o’r Pwyllgor 
  

Prosiect isadeiledd i’w gwneud yn haws cynnal digwyddiadau 
6.1 Mae hwn yn brosiect ar draws y sir ac yn un o’r meysydd gwariant mwy 

sydd ar restr brosiectau’r Cynllun Corfforaethol.  Mae Bwrdd Prosiect 
wedi’i sefydlu i’w gyflawni ac mae’r Bwrdd o’r farn y byddai’n ddefnyddiol 
cynnwys y Pwyllgor Craffu fel aelod sefydlog ar Fwrdd y Prosiect er 
mwyn helpu i ymgysylltu a sicrhau dull trawsbleidiol o wneud 
penderfyniadau.  Ystyriodd y GCIGC y cais hwn a phenderfynodd y 
dylai’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau benodi’r cynrychiolydd hwn, gan y 
bydd gwaith y Bwrdd yn canolbwyntio ar ddatblygu isadeiledd i helpu 
cymunedau i gynnal digwyddiadau.  O ran ymrwymiad amser, y bwriad 
yw cynnal cyfarfod dwyawr bob mis, gan ddechrau ym mis Hydref a 
gorffen ym mis Mai.  Ar ôl hynny, bydd y rhan fwyaf o benderfyniadau 
allweddol y prosiect wedi’u gwneud ac ni fydd ond rhaid i’r Bwrdd 
gyfarfod yn achlysurol i ystyried cynnydd a datrys unrhyw broblemau 
sy’n codi.  Mae disgwyl i’r Prosiect barhau tan 31 Mawrth 2021.  Mae 
gofyn i’r Pwyllgor enwebu aelod i fod ar y Grŵp. 

  
Grŵp Monitro Safonau Ysgolion 

6.2 Mae gofyn i’r Pwyllgor hefyd benodi dau gynrychiolydd i fod ar y Grŵp 
Monitro Safonau Ysgolion. Mae copi o gylch gorchwyl y Grŵp ynghlwm 
yn Atodiad 5 er gwybodaeth i aelodau. 

  
7. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 

Corfforaethol? 
 
 Bydd craffu effeithiol yn gymorth i'r Cyngor gynnal y blaenoriaethau 

corfforaethol yn unol ag anghenion cymunedau a dymuniadau trigolion. 
Bydd datblygu ac adolygu’r rhaglen waith gydlynol yn barhaus yn 
cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i ddarparu ei flaenoriaethau corfforaethol, i wella 
canlyniadau i breswylwyr tra hefyd yn dygymod â thoriadau llym yn y 
gyllideb. 

 
  

Tudalen 92



8. Faint fydd hyn yn costio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau 
eraill? 

 
Mae’n bosib y bydd yn rhaid i wasanaethau neilltuo amser swyddog i 
gynorthwyo’r Pwyllgor gyda’r eitemau a nodwyd yn y rhaglen waith a 
chydag unrhyw gam gweithredu yn dilyn ystyried yr eitemau hynny. 

 
9. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? Gellir 

lawrlwytho’r adroddiad Asesiad o Effaith ar Les o'r wefan a dylai 
gael ei gynnwys fel atodiad i'r adroddiad hwn 

 

Nid oes Asesiad o Effaith ar Les wedi ei wneud mewn perthynas â 
phwrpas neu gynnwys yr adroddiad hwn.  Ond bydd y Pwyllgor Craffu, 
drwy ei waith yn craffu darpariaeth gwasanaethau, polisïau, 
gweithdrefnau ac argymhellion, yn ystyried eu heffaith neu eu heffaith 
posib ar yr egwyddor o ddatblygu cynaliadwy a'r amcanion o ran lles a 
nodir yn Neddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. 

 
10. Pa ymgynghori sydd wedi digwydd?  
 
 Does dim angen cynnal ymgynghoriad ar yr adroddiad hwn. Fodd bynnag, 

mae’r adroddiad ei hun a’r ystyriaeth a roir gan y Pwyllgor i’w raglen waith 
ar gyfer y dyfodol yn gyfystyr ag ymgynghoriad gyda’r Pwyllgor o ran ei 
raglen waith. 

 
11. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 

lleihau?   
 
 Nid oes risg wedi ei ganfod o ran y Pwyllgor yn ystyried ei raglen waith. 

Fodd bynnag, wrth adolygu ei raglen waith yn rheolaidd gall y Pwyllgor 
sicrhau bod meysydd sy’n peri pryder yn cael eu hystyried a’u harchwilio 
fel y maent yn dod i’r amlwg a bod argymhellion yn cael eu gwneud er 
mwyn mynd i’r afael â nhw. 

 
12. Grym i wneud Penderfyniad 
 

Mae Adran 7.11 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn amodi fod y pwyllgorau 
Craffu a/neu Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-Gadeiryddion Craffu yn gyfrifol am 
osod eu rhaglenni gwaith ac y dylent, pan yn penderfynu ar eu rhaglenni 
roi ystyriaeth i ddymuniadau yr Aelodau hynny o’r Pwyllgor nad ydynt yn 
aelodau o’r grŵp gwleidyddol mwyaf ar y Cyngor. 
 
Swyddog Cyswllt:   
Cydlynydd Craffu   
Rhif ffôn: (01824) 712554    
e-bost: rhian.evans@sirddinbych.gov.uk    

Tudalen 93

http://wellbeing.denbighshire.gov.uk/
mailto:rhian.evans@sirddinbych.gov.uk


Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 1 

Note: Items entered in italics have not been approved for submission by the Committee.  Such reports are listed here for information, pending 
formal approval. 
 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

        

24 Oct Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch 
Roberts 

1. Impact of the 
Ruthin Primary 
Education Area 
Review  
 
[Education] 
 

To consider the 
findings of the of 
the impact 
assessment 
(based on the 
WBFG Act 
principles and 
goals) undertaken 
following the 
conclusion, 
implementation of 
the decisions 
relating to the 
review 

Identification of any negative or 
unintended/unexpected outcomes 
from the school reorganisation 
decisions that will assist planning for 
similar projects in future to ensure the 
well-being of all stakeholders 

Karen 
Evans/Geraint 
Davies/James 
Curran  

October 2017 
(rescheduled 
June 2019) 

 Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

2. Proposed New 
Waste and 
Recycling 
Service Design 

To consider 
detailed 
information on the 
proposed new 
services, including 
service design, 
depot 
reconfiguration 
requirements, 
indicative costings 
and funding 
available and 
proposed 
communication 
strategy 

Assurances that the proposal are 
progressing in accordance with the 
Council and the national vision in 
relation to waste management, 
reconfiguration costs are manageable 
and will realise indicative savings and 
ease budget pressure and that 
residents are buying into the new 
waste concept which will deliver the 
corporate priority relating to an 
attractive and protected environment 
that supports well-being and 
economic prosperity 

Tony Ward/Tara 
Dumas/Peter 
Clayton 

October 2018 
(rescheduled 
March 2018 & 
June 2019) 

T
udalen 95



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

 Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

3. Well-being of 
Future 
Generations 
Wales Act in 
Relation to 
Flooding 
(tbc) 

To consider a 
report by the 
Wales Audit Office 
on the Council’s 
approach to flood 
risk management 
and compliance 
with the Act’s 
sustainable 
development 
principle and 5 
well-being goals 

Formulation of recommendations to 
aid better compliance with the Act’s 
sustainable development principle 

Tony 
Ward/Wayne 
Hope/Nicola 
Kneale 

By SCVCG 
July 2019 

        

12 
December  

Cllr. Mark 
Young 

1 Planning 
Compliance 
Charter 

To present a 
revised version of 
the Charter 
following the 
consultation 
exercise with the 
county’s city, town 
and community 
councils.  (the 
report to include 
information on 
staffing resources, 
communication 
timescale with the 
public and the 
number of 
complaints 
received by the 
Service on 

To endorse and recommend the 
adoption of a Charter that will be 
useful to town and community 
councils and other stakeholders to 
understand how the compliance 
function works and how they can 
support compliance work through 
early prevention/intervention work in 
their locality. The Charter will help 
support the delivery of the 
Environment and Resilient 
Communities corporate priorities. 

Emlyn 
Jones/Paul 
Mead/Adam 
Turner 

July 2019 

T
udalen 96



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

planning 
contraventions) 

        

23 January 
2020 

       

        

12 March Leader 1. Tourism 
Signage 
Strategy for 
Denbighshire 

To outline the 
progress made by 
the Working Group 
in developing a 
tourism signage 
strategy for the 
county, 
consideration of 
potential funding 
sources, and the 
anticipated 
timescale for the 
project’s delivery 

The development of a tourism 
signage strategy that complements 
trunk road signage and technological 
innovations in the field of tourism, 
takes into account the aims of ‘The 
Wales Way’ project, attracts visitors 
and increases the value of tourism 
spend in the county in line with the 
corporate priority relating to the 
Environment, and in-keeping with the 
outcomes of Denbighshire’s Tourism 
Strategy 

Mike 
Jones/Peter 
McDermott 

May 2018 
(rescheduled 
by SCVCG 
December 
2018 & 
rescheduled by 
the Committee 
June 2019) 

        

7 May Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

1. Welsh 
Government’s 
Free Childcare 
Offer in 
Denbighshire  
 
 

To assess the 
take-up and impact 
of the WG’s free 
childcare offer in 
the county since its 
introduction in April 
2019 

To evaluate whether the introduction 
of the free childcare offer has 
supported the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities relating 
to young people and resilient 
communities, supported the local 
economy and will enhance better 
outcomes for children and families  

Karen 
Evans/James 
Wood 

September 
2018 

        

2 July        

        

3 
September 

       

T
udalen 97



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

        

22 October Cllr. Brian 
Jones 
 
Reps from Dŵr 
Cymru Welsh 
Water & NRW 
to be invited 
 
 

1. Flood 
Management 
Responsibilities 
in Denbighshire 

To present the 
conclusions of the 
joint study into 
whether 
improvements 
could be made to 
the management of 
the Rhyl Cut and 
Prestatyn Gutter, 
adjacent drains 
and sewers, and to 
outline each 
organisation’s 
responsibilities in 
relation to flood 
management and 
flood mitigation   

An assessment of whether the 
Council effectively fulfils its 
responsibilities in relation to flood 
management and mitigation and 
works effectively with partner 
organisations to reduce the risk of 
flooding and deliver the Environment 
and Resilient Communities priorities 
of the Corporate Plan 

Tony 
Ward/Wayne 
Hope 

March 2018 
(rescheduled 
February 2019 
& June 2019) 
rescheduled 
until conclusion 
of the Phase 3 
study 

        

10 
December 

       

        

early 2021 
 
(prov. date 
– tbc) 

Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

1. Universal Credit  
 

To detail: 
(i) the impact of 

migrating 
legacy benefits 
residents on to 
Universal Credit 
on Council 
services; and 

(ii) the 
effectiveness of 
the measures 

(i)  An understanding of the impact of 
migrating legacy benefit recipients 
onto UC on Council services and on 
residents themselves; and  
 
(ii) an assessment of the 
effectiveness of measures taken to 
support services and residents to 
deal with the changes and proposed 
plans for dealing with the remainder 
of the rollout. 

Paul 
Barnes/Rachel 
Thomas 

May 2019 

T
udalen 98



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 5 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

taken by the 
Council and its 
partners with a 
view to 
mitigating the 
effects of 
migrating 
legacy benefits 
residents on to 
UC (including 
the lessons 
learnt 

 
Scrutiny’s consideration of the above 
matters will assist it to identify 
proposed ways to mitigate against the 
effects of UC adversely affecting the 
Council’s aim of building resilient 
communities   

        

 T
udalen 99



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 6 

Future Issues 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

Denbighshire’s Learner Transport 
Policy:  Non-Statutory Elements 

To present the findings of the Task and 
Finish Group’s study into the county’s 
learner transport provision for pupils and 
students accessing non-statutory 
elements of education  

(i) Clarity and understanding of 
Council’s annual learner 
transport budget and the cost of 
transporting pupils/students to 
statutory and non-statutory, 
discretionary and non-
discretionary education, 
including an enhanced 
knowledge of education and 
learner transport legislation and 
their impact on the budget; 

(ii) an assessment of the potential 
impact of withdrawing the 
provision of free learner 
transport for pupils/students 
who access the various non-
statutory or discretionary 
educational elements currently 
offered, including any risks to 
the wider education provision in 
the area and to the skills base 
required in local economy; and   

(iii)  ensuring that every 
pupil/student in the county has 
fair and equitable access to 
education provision and is not 
discriminated against in any 
way  

Task and Finish 
Group 

May 2019 

     

 
  

T
udalen 100



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 7 

For future years 

     

     

 
Information/Consultation Reports 

Information / 
Consultation 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author(s) Date Entered 

INFORMATION  
 

(for circulation January 
2021) 

 

Car Park Asset/Investment 
Management Plan 

To detail the progress made to date with 
the delivery of the asset management plan 
and associated initiatives  

Emlyn Jones/Mike Jones July 2019 

 
 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

24 October 10 October 12 December 28 November 23 January 2020 9 January 2020 

 
15/08/2019 RhE 
 
 

T
udalen 101



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



 

Atodiad 2 

Ffurflen Gynnig ar gyfer Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol Craffu 
 

 
ENW'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 
 

 

 
AMSERLEN I'W HYSTYRIED 
 

 

 
TESTUN   
 

 

 
Beth sydd angen ei graffu arno (a pham)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn un o bwys i 
drigolion/busnesau lleol? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi craffu yn gallu dylanwadu ar bethau 
a’u newid?  
(Os 'ydi' nodwch sut rydych chi’n meddwl y 
gall craffu ddylanwadu neu newid pethau) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn ymwneud â gwasanaeth 
neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi’r mater yn effeithio ar nifer fawr o 
drigolion neu ardal fawr o’r Sir?  
(Os 'ydi', rhowch syniad o faint y grŵp neu’r 
ardal yr effeithir arni) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

Ydi’r mater yn gysylltiedig â 
blaenoriaethau corfforaethol y Cyngor? 
(Os 'ydi' nodwch pa flaenoriaethau) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 

 
Hyd y gwyddoch, oes yna rywun arall yn 
edrych ar y mater hwn? 
(Os 'oes', nodwch pwy sy'n edrych arno) 
 

 
OES/NAC OES 

 

Os derbynnir y testun ar gyfer craffu, pwy 
fyddai arnoch chi eisiau eu gwahodd e.e. 
Aelod Arweiniol, swyddogion, arbenigwyr 
allanol, defnyddwyr y gwasanaeth? 

 

 
Enw'r Cynghorydd/Aelod Cyfetholedig 
 

 

 
Dyddiad 

 

Tudalen 103



 

 

Ystyried addasrwydd pwnc ar gyfer craffu 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NA (dim cam gweithredu nac adroddiad 

gwybodaeth pellach) 

 

 

Ffurflen Gynnig / Cais a dderbyniwyd 

(dylid rhoi ystyriaeth ofalus i’r rhesymau dros wneud cais) 

 Ydi o’n bodloni’r gofynion canlynol? 

 Diddordeb Cyhoeddus – ydi’r mater o bwys i drigolion? 

 Effaith– fedr craffu yn gael effaith ar bethau a’u newid? 

 Perfformiad – ydi o’n wasanaeth neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 

 Graddfa – ydi o’n effeithio ar nifer o drigolion neu ardal 

ddaearyddol fawr? 

 Ailadrodd – ydi’r mater yn destun craffu/ymchwiliad gan berson 

neu gorff arall? 

 

 Penderfynu ar y canlyniadau a ddymunir  

 Penderfynu ar gwmpas a swmp y gwaith craffu sydd ei angen a’r dull mwyaf 

priodol o graffu (h.y. adroddiad pwyllgor, ymchwiliad grŵp tasg a gorffen neu 

aelod cyswllt ac ati) 

 Os penderfynir sefydlu grŵp tasg a gorffen, dylid penderfynu ar amserlen yr 

ymchwiliad, pwy fydd yn rhan o’r ymchwiliad, beth yw’r gofynion ymchwilio, a oes 

angen cyngor arbenigol a thystion, a beth yw’r trefniadau adrodd ac ati. 

YDI 

NAC 

YDI 

Dim gweithredu pellach gan y 

Pwyllgor Craffu. Gellir ei gyfeirio 

at gorff arall neu ofyn am 

adroddiad er gwybodaeth. 

Tudalen 104



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

24 Sep 2019 1 Rhyl Vision and Master Plan 
(report and presentation) 

To agree to pursue the vision 
and key projects over the 
long term, committing 
resources to bring about the 
desired changes in 
collaboration with a wide 
range of stakeholders 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Emlyn Jones / Mike Horrocks 

 2 Implementation of Alternative 
Delivery Model (ADM) for 
various leisure related functions 
and activities: Board 
Membership 

To consider and approve the 
Council’s Strategic 
Governance Board for the 
Local Authority Trading 
Company (LATC) and review 
and recommend to Council 
the Board membership of the 
LATC 

Yes Councillors Bobby Feeley and 
Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Graham Boase / Sian Lloyd 
Price 

 3 Former Savoy Hotel and the 
Queen’s Market, Theatre and 
Hotel (known as Queen’s 
Buildings) 

To seek approval to proceed 
with the procurement 
process 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase / Russell 
Vaughan 

 4 Contract Procedures Rules To consider the reviewed 
contract procedures rules 
which will require adoption 
and form part of the council 
constitution 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Lisa Jones / Helen 
Makin 

T
udalen 105



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 5 Ethical Code of Employment To seek Cabinet approval of 
the Ethical Code of 
Employment 

Yes Councillor Richard Mainon / 
Helen Makin 

 6 Strategic Planning Group – 
Proposed changes to Terms of 
Reference 

To seek approval of changes 
to the Strategic Planning 
Group’s Terms of Reference 

Yes Councillor Mark Young / 
Angela Loftus 

 7 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 8 Civica Contract To consider/approve an 
extension to the Civica 
Contract 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 9 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

22 Oct 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

T
udalen 106



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

19 Nov 2019 1 Quarter 2 Performance Report 
on the Corporate Plan 

To provide members with 
analysis about performance 
and progress against our 
corporate priorities 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Nicola Kneale / Iolo 
McGregor 

 2 Denbighshire and Flintshire 
Joint Archive Project 

To consider the creation of a 
single shared Archive 
Service for Denbighshire and 
Flintshire 

Yes Councillor Tony Thomas / 
Alan Smith / Helen Vaughan-
Evans 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

17 Dec 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

T
udalen 107



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

21 Jan 2020 1 North Wales Growth Bid 
Governance Agreement 2 

To approve the governance 
arrangements in relation to 
the implementation of the 
growth deal 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase / Gary 
Williams 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 
 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

September 10 September October 8 October November 5 November 
 
Updated 16/08/19 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

T
udalen 108



Appendix 4 
Progress with Committee Resolutions 

 

Date of Meeting Item number and title Resolution  Progress 

4 July 2019 6.  Adoption of a 
Planning Compliance 
Charter 

RESOLVED that subject to the above 
observations – 
(a)  to endorse the Charter as drafted; 
(b) to request that the draft Charter be 

circulated to City, Town and Community 
Councils for consultation and comments, 
and 

(c) that the revised Charter, following the 
consultation process, be presented to the 
Committee for endorsement and 
recommendation for adoption in 
December 2019 along with the requested 
additional information. 

The Lead Member and officers 
have been informed of the 
Committee’s recommendations.   
 
Revised version of the Charter 
following the consultation exercise 
with the county’s city, town and 
community councils has been 
scheduled into the Committee’s 
forward work programme for its 
meeting on 12 December 2019 
(see Appendix 1) 

 7.  Review and 
Update of Holiday 
Caravan Regulation 
Project 

RESOLVED  – 
(a)  subject to the above observations to 

endorse the efficacy of the ‘business as 
usual’ approach towards regulating the 
use of holiday parks in Denbighshire; 

(b) to support officers of the Council to 
continue to investigate potential 
unauthorised residential occupation of 
holiday parks, and 

(c) agree that the regulation of Caravan and 
Holiday Parks in Denbighshire should 
now continue on a “business as usual” 

 
Lead Member and officers 
informed of the Committee’s 
recommendations 

T
udalen 109



basis without the need for further referral 
to Scrutiny. 

 8.  Seagull 
Management Update 
Report 

RESOLVED that subject to the above 
observations and the provision of the requested 
information – 
(a)  correspondence be sent once again to 

the Welsh Government, Natural 
Resources Wales and the Welsh Local 
Government Association seeking 
support and assistance for local 
authorities to deal with problems 
associated with Seagulls due to their 
protected species status, and; 

(b) to support the actions taken to date, and 
identified for the future, in relation to 
Seagull Management in Denbighshire. 

 
 
 
Lead Member and officers 
informed of the Committee’s 
recommendations 

 9.  Car Parks in 
Denbighshire 

RESOLVED that, subject to the above 
observations – 
(a)  to support the continuation of the work to 

implement the Car Park Investment Plan 
and the other parking initiatives detailed 
within the report, and 

(b) requested that an Information Report be 
submitted to the Committee in 18 
months’ time to update members on the 
progress made with the delivery of the 
Car Park Asset Management/Investment 
Plan and associated activities. 

 
Lead Member and officers 
informed of the Committee’s 
recommendations. 
 
 
Information report scheduled into 
the Committee’s forward work 
programme for January 2021 
(Information/Consultation report 
section)  

T
udalen 110



 10.  Scrutiny Work 
Programme  

RESOLVED that – 
(a)  subject to the above, the forward work 

programme as detailed in Appendix 1 to 
the report be approved, and 

(b) Councillors Brian Blakeley, Graham 
Timms, Cheryl Williams, Huw Williams 
and Co-opted Member Kathy Jones be 
appointed to serve on Learner Transport 
Policy Working Group; and subject to his 
confirmation, Councillor Mabon Ap 
Gwynfor also be appointed to serve on 
that Group. 

 
 
 
 
Unfortunately, Councillor Mabon 
ap Gwynfor due to work pressures 
cannot commit the required time to 
serve on this Working Group.  
Committee members have been 
approached for expressions of 
interest to fill the vacant position 

 T
udalen 111



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



School Standards Monitoring Group (SSMG) 
Terms of Reference 

 
 
Key Principles 
The SSMG is a sub-group of the Performance Scrutiny Committee and has the responsibility 
to support and challenge schools. 
 
The SSMG was established in 2007 to ensure that schools which are under-performing are 
rigorously challenged by the Local Authority but are also appropriately supported in order to 
make progress and improve the outcomes for their learners. The group also provides 
elected members with the opportunity to strengthen their knowledge of the level of school 
performance within the authority and actively work alongside officers in providing that 
challenge and support.  
 
The meeting is as an important two-way process and will seek to engage in meaningful 
discussion between elected members, officers, headteachers and Chairs of Governors.  
Schools will called to the SSMG on a rolling programme.   
 
Meetings are held monthly, chaired by the Lead Member for Education and Children’s 
Services, some meetings may be held in schools. 

 
From 2019 Denbighshire schools are facing unprecedented change driven by national 
education initiates and significant budgetary challenges. To support members 
understanding SSMG will focus secondary schools in 2019-20 allowing a two way dialog for 
members to gain a greater understanding of the changes facing schools and allowing 
schools to share challenges in implementing change.    
 
All secondary schools will be invited to attend SSMG during 2019A range of factors will 
influence the timing of their invite including:  
SSMG members will: 

 nominate from each scrutiny committee for two representatives on the SSMG  

 invite local elected member(s) for each school 

 draw up a timetable for school attendance with officers on an annual basis 

 invite schools to attend the next SSMG session (4 weeks prior to the meeting). This 

will include a personal invite to the Head teacher and Chair of Governors.  

 receive a 30 minute update from officers on current school performance and issues. 

 receive school classification profile from GwE two weeks prior to the meeting; 

 familiarise themselves with the relevant data and paperwork 

 ask questions sensitively and engage in discussion with the head and chair of 

governors in relation to the data and information about the school.  

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 113



Officers will: 

 provide all administrative support for SSMG. 

 provide training and support for members. 

 notify GwE of the schools due to attend the next SSMG session (One term prior to 

the meeting). 

 officers will record actions/issues raised by schools in their presentations that a 

require Local Authority or GwE for action. 

 provide a 30 minute update on current position of LA schools for members. 

 provide school performance data for members. 

GwE will:  

 provide school classification profile for SSMG members 2 weeks before the SSMG 

meeting.  

 ensure that the school in attendance is accompanied by its GwE Support and 

Improvement Adviser.  

Schools will: 

 ensure that it is represented by the headteacher and Chair of Governors. 

 schools can make a presentation if they wish. 

 host meetings that are in schools. 

 
Group Membership:   

Lead Member for Education and Children’s Services 
6 members from the Scrutiny Committees  
Local elected member (s) 
Education and Children’s Services Principal Managers  
Education and Children’s Services Business Manager  
GwE Support and Improvement Advisers  
Business and Performance Manager (BIM),  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 114


	Rhaglen
	2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT
	4 Cofnodion
	5 TÂN MYNYDD LLANTYSILIO, HAF 2018
	Llantysilio Mountain Fire Report 050919FINALPUBLICATION

	6 Rhaglen Waith Archwilio
	Work Programme Report - App 1[1]
	Work Programme Report - App 2W
	Work Programme Report - App 3
	Work Programme Report - App 4
	Work Programme Report - App 5


